
 

City of Wilsonville 
City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2019 
 

 



4/1/2019 2:18 PM Last Updated  

City Council   Page 1 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Agenda\2019 Agendas\4.1.19 Amended Agenda.docx  

AMENDED AGENDA 
 

WILSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
APRIL 1, 2019 

7:30 P.M. 
 

CITY HALL 
29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOP EAST 

WILSONVILLE, OREGON 
 

Mayor Tim Knapp 
Council President Kristin Akervall      Councilor Susie Stevens 
Councilor Charlotte Lehan       Councilor Ben West 
 

CITY COUNCIL MISSION STATEMENT 
To protect and enhance Wilsonville’s livability by providing quality service to ensure a safe, attractive, 

economically vital community while preserving our natural environment and heritage. 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Executive Session is held in the Willamette River Room, City Hall, 2nd Floor 
 
5:00 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION        [20 min.] 

A. Pursuant to: ORS 192.660 (2)(e) Real Property Transactions 
 ORS 192.660(2)(h) Legal Counsel / Litigation 

 
5:20 P.M. REVIEW OF AGENDA AND ITEMS ON CONSENT   [5 min.] 
 
5:25 P.M. COUNCILORS’ CONCERNS       [5 min.] 
 
5:30 P.M. PRE-COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

A. Garden Acres/WWSP IGA (Weigel)       [10 min.] 
B. Transfer of Ownership/Maintenance for Hathaway, Willow Creek and  

Landover Parks (McCarty)         [20 min.] 
C. Canyon Creek Land Donation (Rappold/Jacobson)      [20 min.] 
D. Comprehensive Plan & TSP Amendments Related to Basalt Creek 

Concept Plan (Rybold)         [20 min.] 
E. Change Order with Paul Brothers, Inc. for the Memorial Park Dog Park  [10 min.] 

and Community Garden Parking Lot Project (Rappold) 
F. Break to move downstairs into Council Chambers.      [5 min.] 
G. Status and Update on the Villebois Fire      [25 min.] 

7:30 P.M. ADJOURN 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
The following is a summary of the legislative and other matters to come before the Wilsonville City 
Council a regular session to be held, Monday, April 1, 2019 at City Hall. Legislative matters must have 
been filed in the office of the City Recorder by 10 a.m. on March 19, 2019. Remonstrances and other 
documents pertaining to any matters listed in said summary filed at or prior to the time of the meeting 
may be considered there with except where a time limit for filing has been fixed.  



4/1/2019 2:18 PM Last Updated  

City Council   Page 2 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Agenda\2019 Agendas\4.1.19 Amended Agenda.docx  

 
 
7:30 P.M. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Roll Call 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Motion to approve the following order of the agenda and to remove items from the consent 

agenda. 
 
7:35 P.M. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. None. 
 

7:35 P.M. CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda. It is also the 
time to address items that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing. Staff and the City 
Council will make every effort to respond to questions raised during citizens input before tonight's 
meeting ends or as quickly as possible thereafter. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 
 
8:10 P.M. MAYOR’S BUSINESS 

A. Volunteer Appreciation Proclamation (Monahan) 
B. 21st Consecutive Tree City USA Designation, Sterling Tree City USA Designation (10th Growth 

Award), and Arbor Day Proclamation (Tso) 
C. Upcoming Meetings 

 
8:20 P.M. COUNCILOR COMMENTS 

A. Council President Akervall 
B. Councilor Stevens  
C. Councilor Lehan  
D. Councilor West 

 
8:30 P.M. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Resolution No. 2743 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into An 
Intergovernmental Agreement With Tualatin Valley Water District And The City Of Hillsboro To 
Jointly Design And Construct The Garden Acres Road Project (CIP #4201) And Willamette Water 
Supply Plm_1.2 Garden Acres To 124th Pipeline Project. (Weigel) 
 

B. Minutes of the November 19, 2018 Council Meeting. (Veliz) 
 
8:35 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING  

A. Ordinance No. 834 (Legislative Hearing) 
An Ordinance Of The City Of Wilsonville Approving Comprehensive Plan Text And Map 
Amendments And Transportation System Plan Amendments Related To The Basalt Creek 
Concept Plan And Approving A Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment Related To The Coffee 
Creek Master Plan. (Rybold) 

  



4/1/2019 2:18 PM Last Updated  

City Council   Page 3 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Agenda\2019 Agendas\4.1.19 Amended Agenda.docx  

 
8:45 P.M. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution No. 2730 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing The City Parks And Recreation Department 
To Assume Ownership Of And All Maintenance Responsibilities For The Following 
Neighborhood Parks: Hathaway Court, Landover And Willow Creek Park. (McCarty) 
 

B. Resolution No. 2742 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing A Change Order With Paul Brothers, Inc. 
For The Memorial Park Dog Park And Community Garden Parking Lot Project (Capital 
Improvement Project #9132). (Rappold) 

 
9:00 P.M. CITY MANAGER’S BUSINESS 
 
9:05 P.M. LEGAL BUSINESS 
 
9:10 P.M. ADJOURN 
 
 
Time frames for agenda items are not time certain (i.e. Agenda items may be considered earlier than 
indicated.) Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be 
scheduled for this meeting if required at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. The city will also endeavor to 
provide the following services, without cost, if requested at least 48 hours prior to the meeting: Qualified sign 
language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments. Qualified bilingual interpreters. To 
obtain services, please contact the City Recorder, (503) 570-1506 or cityrecorder@ci.wilsonville.or.us. 

mailto:cityrecorder@ci.wilsonville.or.us


Canyon Creek Land Donation Staff Report      Page 1 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Canyon Creek Land Donation\a. Canyon Creek Land Donation 
SR.docm     

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2019 
 
 
 

Subject: Canyon Creek Land Donation 
 
Staff Member: Kerry Rappold, Natural Resources 
Manager and Barbara Jacobson, City Attorney 
 
Department: Community Development / Legal 
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission 
Recommendation  

☐ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☐ Resolution Comments: Staff will present the proposed land 

donation of a forested area and BPA easement on the 
Parkway Woods Business Park. The land donation 
parcel is 31 acres.  
 

☒ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: Staff is seeking comment and guidance from the City Council on 
the proposed Canyon Creek land donation.  
 
Recommended Language for Motion: N/A 
 
Project / Issue Relates To: 
☐Council Goals/Priorities ☐Adopted Master Plan(s) ☒Not Applicable 

 
 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL:  
ScanlanKemperBard (SKB) Companies, the owner of Parkway Woods Business Park, proposes to 
donate a parcel of land to the City of Wilsonville. 
  

Page 5 of 129



Canyon Creek Land Donation Staff Report      Page 2 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Canyon Creek Land Donation\a. Canyon Creek Land Donation 
SR.docm     

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The proposed land donation is a 31-parcel area located in the far northeast corner of the Parkway 
Woods Business Park. Comprised of an upland forest and forested and emergent wetland bisected 
by an unnamed creek, the property includes a portion of BPA power lines across the north end 
(Exhibit A). The property is located within the City’s Significant Resource Overlay Zone, except 
for the BPA easement. SKB estimates the property has an assessed value of approximately $3.6 
million, based on the tax assessor’s valuation. SKB has offered to donate to the City because it can 
serve no useful purpose for their business due to the land use restrictions and donating it to the 
City will save SKB approximately $60,000 in property taxes. 
 
Anderson Geological completed a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment to determine the 
historic uses and the likelihood of contamination or hazardous substances on the property. In the 
late 1950s, the property was logged. Over the last 60 years, the forest has regenerated with a diverse 
array of native trees and plants and little in the way of invasive plant species. In the late 1970s, 
Tektronix developed the adjacent properties into a campus, which were later purchased by Xerox 
Corporation. Based on the site assessment, no contamination or hazardous substances were 
identified on the property or within the surrounding area that might negatively impact this property.  
Thus, no additional environmental studies or soil sampling were recommended by Anderson 
Geological.  
 
The property is located to the west of Canyon Creek Park, which provides an opportunity to link 
it with the park. Parks and Recreation staff prepared three conceptual trail alignments, including 
cost estimates. These trails would provide access to the forest and the area within the BPA 
easement. In addition, the Engineering Division prepared a cost estimate for an enhanced 
crosswalk for Canyon Creek Road, which allows for a future connection to Canyon Creek Park. 
 
The preliminary cost estimates include the following*: 
 

1. Conceptual trail system – materials and labor (Appendix B):  
a. Option #1 (Parks and Recreation preferred option): $34,000 
b. Option #2: $28,500 
c. Option #3: $27,000  

 
2. Annual maintenance costs (litter, trail maintenance, invasive species): $4,000 

 
3. Canyon Creek Road enhanced crosswalk (Appendix C): $156,100 

 
*It should be noted that that the estimates provided above are for the current year. There are no 
funds budgeted for this project for the suggested improvements. Therefore, depending on when the 
work is done and economic conditions at the time, the numbers will likely change. In the meantime, 
the annual maintenance will need to be performed. The Parks Department has indicated that it 
has adequate capacity to perform this work within its current budget. 
 
If Council directs staff to accept the donation on behalf of the public, Staff would return to the 
Council with a Resolution formalizing the action. 
 

Page 6 of 129



Canyon Creek Land Donation Staff Report      Page 3 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Canyon Creek Land Donation\a. Canyon Creek Land Donation 
SR.docm     

EXPECTED RESULTS:  
If the City Council approves the land donation, SKB Companies will apply for a partition plat. 
Upon completion of the partition plat and a formalized agreement for transferring the property, the 
City would take ownership.  
 
TIMELINE:  
The partition plat process will take approximately six months to complete. SKB will take the lead 
in preparing the documents that are needed to partition the site from the remainder of the property. 
Improvements to the property (i.e., trail system and crosswalk connection to Canyon Creek Park) 
will be included in future CIP and operating budget requests.   
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS:  
There are no current year budget impacts. Future budgets will include appropriation requests for 
the identified improvements and annual operating costs.  
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: CAR  Date: 3/20/2019 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: BAJ  Date: 3/21/2019 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:   
The proposed land donation has not included a community involvement process.  The community 
would be engaged as part of improving the site with trails.  
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY: 
 The proposed land donation is a unique opportunity to acquire a large and relatively intact natural 
area. In the future, the public will be able to explore and enjoy the forest and wetlands. By 
connecting the property to Canyon Creek Park, it will expand the park’s existing trail system and 
provide a more diverse experience for the public.  It will also enable the City to ensure habitat 
preservation and good environmental stewardship of this significant natural resource.   
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT:   
N/A 
 
EXHIBITS: 

A. Site Map 
B. Options for Trail System 
C. Preliminary Cost Estimate for Enhanced Crosswalk 

 
 

Page 7 of 129



Page 8 of 129



Page 9 of 129



EXHIBIT B

Page 10 of 129



EXHIBIT B

Page 11 of 129



Page 12 of 129



EXHIBIT C

Page 13 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE
2OI9 VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION MONTH

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, the month of April is recognized as the time to appreciate the hard
work, dedication, and passion of volunteers throughout our nation; and

WHEREAS, government alone cannot meet all of our nation's needs, so we partner
with businesses, faith-based organizations, non-profit organizations and individuals to make

a difference; and

WHEREAS, citizens who volunteer their time provide assistance which cannot be

measured in terms of dollars; volunteers provide a spirit of helping that multiplies in value

when each citizen reaches out to assist another; and

WHEREAS, volunteers throughout the City of Wilsonville donate their time to a
wide variety of human service programs such as literacy, delivering meals to homebound

seniors, teaching our children, planting trees, tending gardens, caring for others; and

WHEREAS, citizens also donate their time in helping the City of Wilsonville
through their service on City Council, Planning Commission, Development Review Boards,

Library Board, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and Budget Committee as well as task

forces; and

WHEREAS, volunteers will be recognized at the volunteer appreciation dinner on

April 16, 2019, and

WHEREAS, by volunteering and recognizing those who serve, we can promote

partnership, understanding and compassion in our community.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Knapp, Mayor of the City of Wilsonville hereby do

proclaim April as

VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION MONTH

In the City of Wilsonville and urge my fellow citizens to volunteer in the community in the

coming year.

Tim Knapp, Mayor
Dated this 1't day of April 2019

Page 14 of 129



Tree City & Arbor Day Staff Report       Page 1 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Tree City & Arbor Day\a. Tree City & Arbor Day SR ZM.docm 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2019 
 
 
 

Subject: 21st Consecutive Tree City USA 
Designation, Sterling Tree City USA Designation (10th 
Growth Award), and Arbor Day Proclamation  
 
Staff Member: Charles Tso, Assistant Planner 
 
Department: Community Development 
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission 
Recommendation  

☐ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☐ Resolution Comments: N/A 

 ☐ Information or Direction 
☒ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: There is no recommendation; this item is for Council’s 
information.  
 
Recommended Language for Motion: N/A  
 
Project / Issue Relates To:  
☐Council Goals/Priorities 
 

☐Adopted Master Plan(s) 
 

☒Not Applicable 
 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL:  
Staff is pleased to announce that the City of Wilsonville has been recognized for the 21st 
consecutive year as a Tree City USA and certified as a Sterling Tree City USA for receiving its 
10th growth award as designated by the National Arbor Day Foundation. 

Page 15 of 129



Tree City & Arbor Day Staff Report       Page 2 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Tree City & Arbor Day\a. Tree City & Arbor Day SR ZM.docm 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The Tree City USA recognition reflects Wilsonville’s continued commitment to maintaining and 
promoting its urban forest. In order to receive a Tree City USA designation, a City must have: 1) 
a comprehensive urban forestry program consisting of a tree ordinance; 2) a city department that 
is responsible for trees; 3) an annual community forestry budget of at least $2 per capita; and 4) 
an annual Arbor Day observance and proclamation.  
 
In conjunction with meeting the four criteria for Tree City designation, Wilsonville also received 
its 10th Growth Award from the Arbor Day Foundation. The Growth Award designation is for 
communities that go above and beyond the minimum Tree City requirements.  In this case, the 
Growth Award recognizes the City’s expansion of the tree-maintenance budget (a $22,000 
increase), development and protection of wildlife habitat (Bee Stewards 2018), and approval of 
new park developments involving major tree plantings (Boeckman Trail and new publically 
accessible green space in Frog Pond West). As a result, the City has been certified as a Sterling 
Tree City USA. 
 
Staff is pleased to announce this Tree City designation and Growth Award achievement to the City 
Council, and appreciates the opportunity to work on projects that raise awareness of the importance 
of Wilsonville’s urban forest. 
 
To celebrate Arbor Day 2019 and honor the history of this community’s relationship with trees, 
the City and the Oregon Travel Information Council are hosting a State Heritage Tree Dedication 
event in Memorial Park on Friday, April 26, at 2 pm.  At the event, the City will receive recognition 
for two cable trees that played a historical role in anchoring log rafts on the Willamette River. The 
event will include guest speakers, a tugboat, and a ceremony that is open to community members.  
 
EXPECTED RESULTS:  
Tree City USA recognition contributes to a strong sense of pride and community livability. 
 
TIMELINE:  
Tree City USA is applied for on an annual basis.  
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS:  
N/A 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: CAR  Date: 3/22/2019 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: BAJ  Date: 3/22/2019 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:   
The public is invited to the State Heritage Tree Dedication event through a variety of means, 
including the Boones Ferry Messenger, social media, and the City’s website.  
 

Page 16 of 129



Tree City & Arbor Day Staff Report       Page 3 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Tree City & Arbor Day\a. Tree City & Arbor Day SR ZM.docm 

POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY:  
Tree City USA status demonstrates to the community and visitors the City’s commitment to the 
natural resources that comprise the urban forest. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT:   
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

A. 2019 Arbor Day Proclamation 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 129



\

CITY OF WILSONVILLE
2OI9 ARBOR DAY PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of
Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees; and

WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting
of more than a million trees in Nebraska, and Arbor Day is now observed throughout the

nation and the world; and

WHEREAS, trees reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water,

cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce oxygen

and provide habitat for wildlife; and

WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes,

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products; and

WHEREAS, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of
business areas, and beautify our community; and

WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual
renewal; and

WHEREAS, Wilsonville has been recognized as a Tree City USA by the National

Arbor Day Foundation and desires to continue its tree-planting practices.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Knapp, Mayor of the City of Wilsonville, urge

all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our trees and

woodlands; and

Further, I encourage all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-
being of this and future generations.

Tim Knapp, Mayor
Dated this l't day of April 2019

s

ffi
2<5
€

4< \
ffi
Tn #

V4wl

ffi

ffi

ffiw
rer{

H

ffi

ffiW
G\

ffi

ffi

ffi

ffi

Q
I,J

J=+=+:t

-.\

L\'1-\m#!

ffiW

\JF

-dffi
CI&wWN
R

MN
<2

' !.,

-.' l' -", 
'ti

I

{.
i

.f
:?

Page 18 of 129



All dates and times are tentative; check the City’s online calendar for schedule changes at www.ci.wilsonville.or.us. 
 

CITY COUNCIL ROLLING SCHEDULE  PAGE 1 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\8. Rolling Schedule.docx 

CITY COUNCIL ROLLING SCHEDULE  
Board and Commission Meetings 2019 

 
Items known as of 04/01/19 

 
April 
DATE DAY TIME EVENT LOCATION 
4/8 Monday 6:00 p.m. Community Enhancement 

Committee 
Willamette 1 & 2 

4/8 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel A - Cancelled Council Chambers 

4/9 Tuesday 6:00 p.m. Community Enhancement 
Committee (if needed) Willamette 1 & 2 

4/10 Wednesday 6:00 p.m. Planning Commission Council Chambers 

4/11 Thursday 6:00 p.m. Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board Council Chambers 

4/15 Monday 7:00 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 

4/22 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel B  Council Chambers 
 
May 
DATE DAY TIME EVENT LOCATION 

5/6 Monday 7:00 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 

5/8 Wednesday 6:00 p.m. Planning Commission Council Chambers 
5/9 Thursday 4:30 p.m. Parks and Recreation Advisory 

Board 
Parks and Recreation 
Administration Building 

5/13 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel A Council Chambers 

5/20 Monday 7:00 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 

5/22 Wednesday 6:30 p.m. Library Board Library 

5/27 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel B - Cancelled Council Chambers 

5/28 Tuesday 6:00 p.m. Budget Committee Meeting  Council Chambers 

5/29 Wednesday 6:00 p.m. Budget Committee Meeting  
(if needed) Council Chambers 

 
Community Events: 
4/4 Community Garden Sign Up Day at Parks and Recreation Admin Building, 8:00 a.m. 
 
4/5 First Friday Films at Wilsonville Library, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 
4/11 Citizens Academy at Wilsonville City Hall, 6:00 p.m. 
 
4/16 Volunteer Appreciation Dinner at Wilsonville Holiday Inn, 5:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
 
4/26 Willamette Cable Tree Dedication at the River Shelter and Dock at Memorial Park, 2:00 p.m. 
 
4/30 History Pub at Wilsonville McMenamins' Old Church, 6:30 p.m. - 8:00 p.m. 
 
5/27 City Offices closed in observance of Memorial Day 

Page 19 of 129

file://cityhall/cityhall/City%20Recorder/Rolling/www.ci.wilsonville.or.us
file://cityhall/cityhall/City%20Recorder/Rolling/www.ci.wilsonville.or.us


Resolution No. 2743 Staff Report       Page 1 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2743\a. Resolution No. 2743 SR.docm 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2019 
 
 
 

Subject: Resolution No. 2743 
A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter 
into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Tualatin 
Valley Water District and the City of Hillsboro for the 
Willamette Water Supply Program to Jointly Design 
and Construct the Garden Acres Road (CIP #4201) and 
PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline Projects. 
 
Staff Member: Zachary J. Weigel, P.E. Capital 
Projects Engineering Manager 
 
Department: Community Development 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission 
Recommendation  

☒ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☒ Resolution Comments: N/A 

 
 

☐ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☒ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council adopt the Consent Agenda. 
Recommended Language for Motion: I move to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Project / Issue Relates To: 
☒Council Goals/Priorities: 
Educate, Inform, and Monitor 
the Big Pipe Project. 

☒Adopted Master Plan(s): 
High Priority Urban Upgrade 
Project UU-08 of the City’s 
2016 Transportation System 
Plan 

☐Not Applicable 
 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL: 
A City of Wilsonville resolution authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Willamette 
Water Supply Partners to jointly design and construct the Garden Acres Road (CIP #4201) and 
PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline projects. 

Page 20 of 129



Resolution No. 2743 Staff Report       Page 2 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2743\a. Resolution No. 2743 SR.docm 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
In May 2017, Wilsonville City Council approved Resolution No. 2628 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a Ground Lease Agreement with Tualatin Valley Water District and the City 
of Hillsboro (Lessees) in which the City leased land along an agreed upon route for a period of 99 
years in which to place underground an approximately six-foot diameter raw water pipeline. In 
consideration for the Ground Lease, the City will receive significant benefits in terms of rent 
received and road improvements, to be constructed by the Lessees, as part of the pipeline 
construction. 
 
Section 7.33 of the Ground Lease Agreement requires that the City and Lessees enter into a 
separate agreement for construction projects that are to be jointly undertaken and that should the 
joint construction project include a new road or road widening, Lessor will pay all costs for all 
improvements located above the Lease Area. 
 
The Garden Acres Road Project (CIP #4201) currently under design includes a 2700-foot long 
upgrade of a two-lane County road (Garden Acres Road) to an urban Minor Arterial standard, 
including wider travel lanes, bike facilities, and sidewalks preparing the Coffee Creek Industrial 
Area for development.  In addition, Garden Acres Road is the designated alignment of the Lessees’ 
raw water pipeline, designated as PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th, and is identified as a potential 
joint construction project. 
 
In accordance with the Ground Lease, Tualatin Valley Water District and the City of Hillsboro, 
jointly referred to as the Willamette Water Supply Program (WWSP), and the City of Wilsonville 
developed an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) to jointly design and construct the Garden 
Acres Road and the PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline projects. Key elements of the IGA 
include: 
 

1. The City will provide design and construction documents for the Garden Acres Roadway 
project. WWSP, in coordination with the City, will provide design and construction 
documents for the raw water pipeline project. 
 

2. The City, in coordination with WWSP, will prepare a joint construction bid package and 
will administer project bidding. 
 

3. WWSP will reimburse the City for costs associated with coordination of the Garden Acres 
Road Project and incorporation of the raw water pipeline project into the design documents 
and creation of the joint contract documents. 
 

4. The City will enter into the Construction Contract with the selected contractor for the 
projects and is responsible for the overall management and administration of the joint 
construction project and agrees to coordinate and work collaboratively with WWSP during 
the joint construction project. 
 

5. The City will obtain WWSP approval for any design or cost change relating to the raw 
water pipeline portion of the work. 

  

Page 21 of 129



Resolution No. 2743 Staff Report       Page 3 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2743\a. Resolution No. 2743 SR.docm 

 
6. The City will allow the WWSP raw water pipeline to be installed shallower than the eight 

feet required by the Ground Lease Agreement, as shown on the approved construction 
documents.  As compensation, WWSP is responsible for costs for increased depth of City 
utilities due to the WWSP pipeline being less than that required under the Ground Lease 
Agreement. 
 

7. WWSP will reimburse the City for costs associated with construction management and 
administration on the raw water pipeline construction as part of the joint construction 
project. 
 

8. WWSP is responsible for a fixed percentage of the Garden Acres Road construction costs, 
calculated as 21.6%, and all construction costs associated with the raw water pipeline. 

 
EXPECTED RESULTS: 
Upon execution of the Intergovernmental Agreement of the joint construction project, the City, in 
coordination with WWSP, will finalize the joint design and construction documents and advertise 
for construction bids. 
 
Design and construction of the joint project will maximize the benefits to the City and WWSP 
constituents, reduce overall construction costs for both parties, and minimize construction impacts 
to residents and businesses within the project area. In addition, the City will receive an additional 
benefit in that WWSP will be paying for 21.6%, currently estimated at $1.2 million, of the Garden 
Acres Road construction costs which could not otherwise be constructed at this time based on City 
funds available within the Coffee Creek Urban Renewal Area. 
 
TIMELINE: 
Advertisement of construction bids is anticipated to occur April 22, 2019 and, upon award of a 
contract, construction beginning in July 2019.  Construction is expected to last 18 months, 
wrapping up in December 2020. 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS: 
The FY 2018/19 Wilsonville Budget includes $1,500,000 in Coffee Creek Reserve funds for the 
design and property acquisition for the Garden Acres Road project.  City costs associated with 
coordination and incorporation of the raw water pipeline project into the Garden Acres project are 
accumulated under CIP #1127 Willamette River Water Supply Coordination and invoiced to 
WWSP for payment on a quarterly basis. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: CAR  Date:  3/20/2019 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: BAJ  Date: 3/25/2019 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:  
A public open house was held in Fall 2017 for community members to review and comment on 
the preliminary design concepts proposed for the roadway improvements on Garden Acres Road.  
In addition to the public open house, staff directly met with representatives from the properties 
adjacent to the project location to discuss project impacts and the procurement of right-of-way and 
easements needs for the work. 

Page 22 of 129



Resolution No. 2743 Staff Report       Page 4 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2743\a. Resolution No. 2743 SR.docm 

 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY: 
Completion of the project will positively impact near-term and long-term development of 
industrial properties within the Coffee Creek Urban Renewal Area, increasing employment and 
generating tax increment for the URA. New bike lanes and sidewalks will be constructed, 
expanding Wilsonville’s multi-modal network. Joint construction of the Garden Acres Road and 
raw water pipeline projects will minimize construction costs between the two projects while 
decreasing the length of construction time and impacts than if the two projects were to be 
constructed independently. 
 
Current residents (who are currently outside the City limits) will be negatively impacted by 
construction, loss of frontage via ROW and easement acquisitions, including loss of trees and other 
screening vegetation, and increased traffic. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Reject the Intergovernmental Agreement with WWSP and construct the two projects 
independently.  This option is not recommended, as it will significantly increase the cost of the 
City’s Garden Acres Road project and likely lead to significant delay as the additional construction 
funds are accumulated. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT:   
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 2743 
A. Intergovernmental Agreement for Joint Design and Construction of Garden Acres 

Road and PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline Projects. 

Page 23 of 129



RESOLUTION NO. 2743  Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2743 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH TUALATIN VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AND THE 
CITY OF HILLSBORO TO JOINTLY DESIGN AND CONSTRUCT THE 
GARDEN ACRES ROAD PROJECT (CIP #4201) AND WILLAMETTE WATER 
SUPPLY PLM_1.2 GARDEN ACRES TO 124TH PIPELINE PROJECT. 

 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 190.003 - 190.010 authorizes agencies to enter into 

intergovernmental agreements for the performance of any or all activities and functions 

that a Party to the agreement has the authority to perform; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville (WILSONVILLE) has jurisdiction over a 

network of roads and streets serving Wilsonville-wide travel needs, including Garden 

Acres Road; and 

WHEREAS, WILSONVILLE’s Transportation System Plan, adopted by the 

Wilsonville City Council, identifies the Garden Acres Road Urban Upgrade (UU-08) as a 

high priority transportation improvement, hereafter referred to as “Road Work.” 

WHEREAS, Tualatin Valley Water District (TVWD) and City of Hillsboro 

(Hillsboro), collectively doing business as and referred to herein as Willamette Water 

Supply Program (WWSP),  desire to construct a large diameter water supply transmission 

line and related improvements in coordination and association with the Road Work, and 

such improvements are hereinafter referred to as "Waterline Work," which is generally 

coincident with the Road Work; and 

WHEREAS, WILSONVILLE (Lessor), TVWD and Hillsboro (collectively 

Lessee) entered into a Ground Lease for Raw Water Pipeline, dated March 21, 2018, 

hereinafter referred to as “Ground Lease,” which includes, among other things, the goal 

and objective to complete the design and construction of the Waterline Work; and 

WHEREAS, Section 7.33 of the Ground Lease, Joint Construction Projects 

Between Lessee and Lessor, stipulates the development of a separate agreement for 

construction or maintenance projects that are to be jointly undertaken between Lessor and 

Lessee; and 

Page 24 of 129



RESOLUTION NO. 2743  Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, it is the mutual understanding of the Parties that incorporation of the 

design and construction of the Waterline Work into the design and construction of the 

Road Work is mutually beneficial to Lessor and Lessee, and Lessee agrees to pay all of 

the Waterline Work and a proportionate share of the  road construction work; and 

WHEREAS, the terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement are to be interpreted 

to be consistent with the requirements of the Ground Lease, with the exception of the 

agreed upon modification to the referenced Ground Lease term(s) made specifically for 

this Project as stated in the Intergovernmental Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE RESOLVES AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. WILSONVILLE and WWSP agree to jointly design and construct the 
Garden Acres Road and PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline projects 
in accordance with the Intergovernmental Agreement, substantially in the 
form attached as Exhibit A. 

2. WWSP will provide design and construction documents for the PLM_1.2 
Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline Project. 

3. WILSONVILLE will provide design and construction documents for the 
Garden Acres Road Project and will prepare a joint project bid package 
and will administer the project bidding. 

4. WILSONVILLE will enter into a construction contract with the successful 
bidder and will be responsible for overall management and administration 
of the joint construction project and agrees to coordinate and work 
collaboratively with WWSP in the delivery of the joint project. 

5. WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for all costs associated with 
incorporation of the Waterline Work into the design documents and 
creation of joint contract documents. 

6. WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for all costs associated with 
construction, construction management and administration of the 
Waterline Work as part of the joint construction project. 

7. WWSP is responsible for all costs associated with the Waterline Work and 
a fixed percentage of the Road Work construction costs, calculated to be 
21.6%. 

Page 25 of 129



RESOLUTION NO. 2743  Page 3 of 3 

8. They Manager is authorized to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement in 
substantially the form attached hereto but, with latitude to make minor 
revisions, as determined by the City Engineer, to reflect construction 
variances and clarifications. 

3. This Resolution becomes effective upon adoption. 
   
 ADOPTED by the Wilsonville City Council at a regular meeting thereof this 1st 
day of April 2019, and filed with the Wilsonville City Recorder this date. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Tim Knapp, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 
 
SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
Mayor Knapp  
Council President Akervall  
Councilor Stevens  
Councilor Lehan  
Councilor West  
 
Exhibit: 

A. Intergovernmental Agreement for Joint Design and Construction of Garden 
Acres Road and PLM_1.2 Garden Acres to 124th Pipeline Projects. 

Page 26 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 1 of 21 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE AND 
TUALATIN VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF HILLSBORO 

FOR THE WILLAMETTE WATER SUPPLY PROGRAM 
 

JOINT DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
 

GARDEN ACRES ROAD AND 
PLM_1.2 GARDEN ACRES TO 124TH 

PIPELINE PROJECTS 
 
THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into between 
the City of Wilsonville, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, acting by and through its 
City Council, hereinafter referred to as “WILSONVILLE”; the Tualatin Valley Water District, a 
domestic water supply district organized under ORS Chapter 264, acting by and through its 
Board of Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as “TVWD”; and the City of Hillsboro, a 
municipal corporation, acting by and through its City Council, hereinafter referred to as “CITY”; 
TVWD and CITY joined together in the Willamette Water Supply Program, hereinafter referred 
to as "WWSP"; WILSONVILLE and WWSP are jointly referred to hereinafter as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. WHEREAS, ORS 190.003 - 190.010 authorizes agencies to enter into intergovernmental 

agreements for the performance of any or all activities and functions that a Party to the 
agreement has the authority to perform; and 

B. WHEREAS, WILSONVILLE has jurisdiction over a network of roads and streets serving 
Wilsonville-wide travel needs, including Garden Acres Road; and 

C. WHEREAS, WILSONVILLE’s Transportation System Plan, adopted by the Wilsonville City 
Council, identifies the Garden Acres Road Urban Upgrade (UU-08) as a high priority 
transportation improvement, hereafter referred to as “Road Work,” and as shown generally 
on the attached project map in Exhibit 1, Project Map (Exhibit 1), attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference; and 

D. WHEREAS, TVWD, as WWSP Lead Agency, and CITY, as a WWSP Partner, along with 
other municipal water supply agencies, are participating in the WWSP and have entered into 
intergovernmental agreements to establish responsibilities and obligations for the planning 
and design of proposed water system improvements; and 

E. WHEREAS, WWSP desires to construct a large diameter water supply transmission line and 
related improvements in coordination and association with the Road Work, and such WWSP 
improvements are hereinafter referred to as "Waterline Work," which is generally coincident 
with the Road Work; and 

F. WHEREAS, WILSONVILLE and WWSP have entered into a separate Ground Lease for 
Raw Water Pipeline, dated March 21, 2018, hereinafter referred to as “Ground Lease,” 
which includes, among other things, the goal and objective to complete the design and 
construction of the Waterline Work; and 

Page 27 of 129

weigel
Text Box
Exhibit A



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 2 of 21 

G. WHEREAS, Section 7.33 of the Ground Lease, Joint Construction Projects between Lessee 
and Lessor, stipulates the development of a separate agreement for construction or 
maintenance projects that are to be jointly undertaken between WILSONVILLE (Lessor) and 
WWSP (Lessee); and 

H. WHEREAS, it is the mutual understanding of the Parties that incorporation of the design and 
construction of the Waterline Work into the design and construction of the Road Work is 
mutually beneficial to WWSP and WILSONVILLE, and WWSP agrees to pay for the 
Waterline Work and a proportionate share of other Road Work costs as provided herein; and 

I. WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement are to be interpreted to be consistent with the 
requirements of the Ground Lease, with the exception of the following agreed upon 
modification to the referenced Ground Lease term(s) made specifically for this Project as 
follows: Section 2.1 defines the Lease Area to be a minimum of eight feet below ground 
surface. Section 3.3 provides that in the Garden Acres Road, the depth may need to be 
greater and that Lessee may be required to modify the installed depth as needed by Lessor 
and as determined by Lessor. Finally, Section 3.3 also allows that Lessor, in its sole 
discretion, may elect to allow portions of the pipe to be located less than eight feet below the 
surface but that determination will be made during Lessor’s design and Plan review, as 
described in Section 7.5; and 

J. WHEREAS, for a portion of the segment of Waterline Work covered by this Agreement, 
Lessor has agreed to allow for a lesser depth than is required in the Ground Lease, as 
outlined in Exhibit 4, Construction Costs (Exhibit 4). In consideration of this allowance, 
WWSP agrees to pay WILSONVILLE for its increased costs associated with accommodating 
this lesser depth and allowing portion of the water transmission pipeline to go over utilities 
WILSONVILLE will be placing in the road, or has placed in the road; and 

K. WHEREAS, it is the mutual desire of the Parties to enter into this Agreement to cooperate in 
the design and construction of the Waterline Work in conjunction with the Road Work, with 
the allocation of responsibilities as described below. 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, and covenants set forth below, 
and the recitals set forth above, which are incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

PROJECT GOALS 

 The Parties are coordinating the design and construction of the Road Work 
and Waterline Work to maximize the benefits to their constituents and the 
community at large. Road Work and Waterline Work shall hereinafter be 
referred to jointly as the “Project.” The Parties desire to work in 
collaboration and as integrated work groups where possible to achieve 
Project goals and timelines. Pursuant to Section 7.32 of the Ground Lease, 
the Project timeline is defined by the design and construction milestones 
set forth in Exhibit 2, Milestones (Exhibit 2). 

 The Project is intended to achieve the following goals: 

WILSONVILLE: To design and construct Road Work to upgrade the existing 
roadway to an urban street cross-section in support of future development 

Page 28 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 3 of 21 

within the Coffee Creek Industrial Areas, part of WILSONVILLE’s ongoing 
capital program. 

WWSP: To design and have portions of the water transmission pipeline 
constructed to further the objectives of WWSP in increasing water supply, 
reliability, redundancy, and resiliency to its member service areas. The 
Waterline Work under this Agreement is part of that effort. 

 The Parties understand that the Road Work and the Waterline Work must 
be completed according to the key milestones identified in Exhibit 2 and 
agree to work collaboratively to meet the established milestones. Further, 
Parties understand that if either Party is unable to proceed with or 
construct the Project in accordance with aforementioned milestones, the 
Party who is ready to move forward retains the right to independently move 
forward with the design and construction of that Party’s part of the Project 
and the other Party will have to move forward at a later date or in a way that 
does not impede or interfere with the work of the Party who has already 
begun construction. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 WILSONVILLE Road Work consists of design and construction of the road 
improvements on Garden Acres Road, including the design, construction, 
and responsibility for permits, utilities, and appurtenances, as depicted in 
Exhibit 1. 

 The WWSP Waterline Work consists of design and construction of a large 
diameter water transmission line and appurtenances according to design, 
plans, and technical specifications within the Road Work limits and beyond 
the Road Work limits, crossing Day Road and connecting to the WWSP 
PLM_3.0 (124th Pipeline) pipeline, as depicted in Exhibit 1. 

 The Project consists of one Contract Document inclusive of two schedules 
of work: Schedule A Garden Acres Road and Schedule B WWSP PLM_1.2 
Waterline Work covering work within the Project Area, as depicted on 
Exhibit 1. 

WILSONVILLE OBLIGATIONS FOR DESIGN 

 WILSONVILLE hereby designates Zach Weigel, P.E. as WILSONVILLE 
Project Manager for the Road Work and the WILSONVILLE representative 
responsible for coordination of the Waterline Work with WWSP pursuant to 
this Agreement. Patty Nelson, P.E. is WILSONVILLE’s Principal Engineer 
for the Project. 

 WILSONVILLE will perform or cause to be performed all tasks needed to 
design and construct the Road Work and temporary access to Cahalin 
Road, including all permitting, real estate acquisition, public outreach, and 
developing construction documents suitable for bidding the Road Work. 

 WILSONVILLE will make all Road Work design and construction plans and 
information available to WWSP, as needed to coordinate the Waterline 
Work with the Road Work. Such information will include: Project 

Page 29 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 4 of 21 

milestones; permitting; specifications; opinions of probable construction 
costs; plans, applications, and permit documents; ROW and easement 
acquisition plans; utility relocation plans and agreements; health and 
safety plans; stakeholder input; and other information as required for 
successful coordination and collaboration. The documentation will be 
available electronically and hosted by WILSONVILLE. 

 WILSONVILLE will prepare design plans and technical specifications for 
the Road Work. WILSONVILLE will provide the design topographical survey 
and Road Work base maps to WWSP. WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Road Work design prior to final 
design documents. Design documents include plans/drawings, 
specifications, standard details, engineer's opinion of probable 
construction costs, and other documents that are required for each 
milestone shown in Exhibit 2. WILSONVILLE will incorporate WWSP 
comments that do not unreasonably impact the Road Work, including, but 
not limited to, cost, scope, or configuration, or interfere with the 
WILSONVILLE design standards and performance goals. In the event 
WWSP requests any changes that increase the cost of the Road Work, 
WILSONVILLE will advise WWSP if the changes are acceptable and, if so, 
of the estimated cost increase and will require that WWSP agree, in writing, 
to pay the additional costs before the changes are agreed to. 

 WILSONVILLE will prepare the Project bid package inclusive of the ‘front-
end’ documents, including Bidding Information, Bid Forms, Contract 
Forms, Standard General Conditions, Special Provisions, Technical 
Specifications, design plans and others as required for successful bidding 
and construction of the Road Work and the Waterline Work (collectively, 
“Contract Documents”). The Contract Documents will have two schedules 
of work: Schedule A Road Work and Schedule B Waterline Work. 

 WILSONVILLE will prepare the draft Contract Documents and provide them 
to WWSP for review and comment. WILSONVILLE will incorporate or 
address/respond to review comments in a manner acceptable to both 
Parties’ Project Managers. 

 WILSONVILLE will administer the Project bidding and solicit bids in 
compliance with all public contracting laws. Prequalification requirements 
for the Project will be included in the bid documents and will be a 
requirement of award of the bid. Minimum insurance requirements for the 
construction contractor shall be set in accordance with WILSONVILLE’s 
standard minimum requirements but may be increased by mutual 
agreement of the Parties prior to bid solicitation and will be included in the 
Contract Documents. A minimum four-week bid period will be provided. A 
mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held with representatives of both the 
Road Work and Waterline Work. Bidder questions will be responded to by 
the WILSONVILLE Project Manager, incorporating technical responses 
from the representative technical leads. Bidder questions relating to 
Waterline Work will be directed to the WWSP Project Manager for response 
back to the WILSONVILLE Project Manager, who will issue the final 
response. Final responses will be copied to the WWSP Project Manager. 

Page 30 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 5 of 21 

 WILSONVILLE will administer all addenda to the Contract Documents and 
related bidding activities, subject to the Administrative Charge, as 
identified in Exhibit 3, Design Costs (Exhibit 3), to the WWSP including the 
costs to incorporate any addenda into the Contract Documents. 

 WILSONVILLE will be responsible for right-of-way and easement 
acquisition; regulatory and land use permits and approvals, permit 
compliance, mitigation measures, and permit enforcement; and public 
information for the Road Work. WWSP will be responsible for obtaining any 
permits and right-of-way over and above those required for the Road Work 
for the Waterline Work. 

WWSP OBLIGATIONS FOR DESIGN 

 WWSP hereby designates Eric Ward, P.E. as WWSP Project Manager for 
the Waterline Work and the WWSP representative responsible for 
coordination of the Waterline Work with WILSONVILLE pursuant to this 
Agreement. Mike Britch, P.E. will be the WWSP Principal Engineer for the 
Waterline Work. 

 WWSP will perform or cause to be performed all tasks needed to design 
and construct the Waterline Work, including preparation of plans/drawings, 
standard details, technical specifications, engineer’s estimate, and other 
documents required for completion of the Contract Documents and design 
milestones described in Exhibit 2. WWSP will provide WILSONVILLE a 
minimum of fourteen (14) Business Days to complete a design review of 
the Waterline Work at each significant milestone: 90-, and 100-percent 
design documents. Design documents include plans/drawings, 
specifications, standard details, engineer's estimate, and other documents 
that are required for each milestone. Documents will be prepared in a 
format agreeable to WILSONVILLE. As provided in Section 3.3 of the 
Ground Lease, WWSP must work with WILSONVILLE to coordinate the 
pipeline design to be consistent with WILSONVILLE’S planned utilities and 
must either modify pipe depth in those areas of the right-of-way, as 
required by WILSONVILLE, as needed or adjust the location within those 
segments of the right-of-way that may conflict with WILSONVILLE utilities 
which take priority. 

 WWSP will coordinate and will cause its consultants to coordinate with 
WILSONVILLE and its consultants, including attendance at all design team 
meetings, permit team meetings, real estate meetings, public 
information/outreach meetings, and other scheduled meetings. 
WILSONVILLE and WWSP Project Managers will mutually determine the 
type, frequency and timing of meetings in order to meet the needs of a well-
coordinated Project. 

 WWSP will share and coordinate updates on the Waterline Work schedule 
with the WILSONVILLE Project Manager. 

 WWSP will provide necessary design coordination to advance the design 
and construction of the Project to achieve the key milestones described in 
Exhibit 2. This coordination includes timely review of Road Work design 
plans, additional geotechnical studies, survey, and other available 

Page 31 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 6 of 21 

documents as required and as described herein. As the design plans and 
studies are prepared, WWSP will propose any requested revisions to the 
Road Work design and/or Waterline Work design, plans, and specifications 
and consult with WILSONVILLE to resolve differences to the mutual benefit 
of WWSP and WILSONVILLE. The Principal Engineers from each agency 
will meet as needed to consult and resolve the differences. 

 WWSP will make its Waterline Work information available to WILSONVILLE 
and its consultants for the Project. 

 WWSP will provide the design and design coordination for all Waterline 
Work, including impacts to the existing roadway, utilities, and adjacent 
properties for the portion of the pipeline outside of the Road Work area, as 
shown in Exhibit 1. 

 WWSP will provide to WILSONVILLE a prequalified pipeline construction 
contractor list, developed in accordance with Oregon public contracting 
laws, for inclusion in Project. WWSP will provide WILSONVILLE upon 
request, supporting documentation demonstrating the creation of the 
prequalified pipeline construction contractor list has been developed in 
accordance with Oregon Public contracting laws. 

 Ten business days prior to the bid advertisement date set by 
WILSONVILLE, WWSP will provide to WILSONVILLE a complete design for 
the Waterline Work previously approved by WILSONVILLE, including 
design drawings, plans, bid items, quantities, and technical specifications 
in a format acceptable to WILSONVILLE to be incorporated in the Contract 
Documents as a separate bid schedule. WWSP will participate in the 
mandatory pre-bid meeting and provide timely responses to bidder's 
questions about the Waterline Work during the advertisement period. 

 For Waterline Work outside the right of way acquired by WILSONVILLE for 
the Road Work portion of the Project, as shown in Exhibit 1, WWSP is 
responsible for any other additional land and permits it may need for its 
Waterline Work, including but not limited to, permanent easement and 
temporary construction easement acquisition; regulatory and land use 
permits and approvals, permit compliance, mitigation measures, and 
permit enforcement; public information; and contract administration. 
WWSP will provide secured right-of-way and permits for WILSONVILLE and 
its agents and contractors to perform work for the Project. WILSONVILLE 
must review and approve the form of easements to ensure WILSONVILLE 
has the ability to enter to perform any required work within any easement 
area of the Project. 

JOINT OBLIGATIONS FOR DESIGN 

 To minimize Project delays or cost increases, the Parties agree to work 
together diligently to identify and jointly resolve any design or 
constructability issues with the Road Work and Waterline Work at the 
earliest possible stage of the design process. When such issues arise, the 
Parties agree to work together to find mutually acceptable solutions in 
furtherance of the stated Project Goals. 

Page 32 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 7 of 21 

 The Parties will hold a public information strategy meeting in accordance 
with Exhibit 2 to jointly develop and agree on the approach to be used for 
public information communications, publications, presentations, events, or 
signage. 

 The Parties will coordinate and identify those technical specifications that 
apply to both the Road Work and the Waterline Work. Project Managers will 
agree on how to coordinate the specifications. The author of the technical 
specifications will be responsible for updating to reflect agreed upon 
updates for coordination of the specifications. WILSONVILLE is the author 
of the Road Work technical specifications and WWSP is the author of the 
Waterline Work technical specifications. Both Parties will have adequate 
opportunity to review and revise the specifications as needed to meet both 
Parties’ requirements and objectives. 

 The Parties agree that performance of the work by a prequalified contractor 
is imperative. As such, the Parties agree that the basis of award for of the 
bid will require confirmation that the contractor performing the work is 
prequalified for the work, as identified in the sealed bids. 

 The Parties agree to jointly develop and maintain a Project schedule and 
Project Managers shall work collaboratively to achieve Project milestones. 
These schedule milestones are included in Exhibit 2. 

 The location of the pipeline and pipeline appurtenances related to the 
Waterline Work shall be mutually agreed to by both Parties during the 
design of the Project. If mutual agreement cannot be reached, 
WILSONVILLE shall have final determination of the pipeline and pipeline 
appurtenances. 

 The Parties will jointly perform a constructability review of the Contract 
Documents at 90-percent design completion of the Project and incorporate 
comments into final Contract Documents. 

 The Parties will coordinate and attend regular design coordination 
meetings, regular permit team meetings, public information and outreach 
team meetings, and other meetings as required for successful coordination 
and completion of the Project. The Parties’ Project Managers will determine 
the anticipated frequency and timing of meetings depending on the needs 
of the Project. 

 The Parties will work collaboratively in developing Project schedules, 
milestones, reviews, health and safety plans, Project performance metrics, 
and other activities as required for the successful coordination and 
completion of the Project. WILSONVILLE will manage Road Work and 
WWSP will manage Waterline Work to achieve the design milestones 
described in Exhibit 2. 

COMPENSATION FOR DESIGN 

 The Parties agree WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for Administrative 
Costs, as defined in Exhibit 3, attached, for work related to the design, 
coordination, and incorporation of the Waterline Work. 

Page 33 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 8 of 21 

 The Parties agree WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for costs associated 
with coordination of the Road Work and incorporation of the Waterline 
Work in the Project design documents and creation of the Contract 
Documents. Costs for this effort shall include WILSONVILLE’s staff and 
consultant team. 

 The Parties will each be solely responsible for the fully burdened labor 
costs of their individual staff on their respective portions of work: 
WILSONVILLE for Road Work and WWSP for the Waterline Work. 

 The Parties agree WILSONVILLE will be responsible for overall 
administration of the Project but will receive financial contribution from 
WWSP for its share of actual costs related to the Waterline Work as 
provided in Exhibit 3. WWSP will also reimburse WILSONVILLE for the cost 
of coordinating and incorporating the Waterline Work to ensure a cohesive 
contract document for the Project. 

WILSONVILLE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

 WILSONVILLE hereby designates Zach Weigel, P.E. as WILSONVILLE 
Project Manager and Construction Manager for the Road Work and 
WILSONVILLE representative responsible for coordination of the Waterline 
Work with WWSP pursuant to this Agreement. Patty Nelson, P.E., is 
WILSONVILLE’s Principal Engineer for the Project to handle dispute 
resolution. 

 WILSONVILLE will be responsible for the overall management and 
administration of the construction contract for the Project. 

 WILSONVILLE is responsible for engineering, inspection, construction 
management, and administration for the Road Work. 

 WILSONVILLE will include the WWSP in regular construction coordination 
meetings, public information and outreach meetings, and other meetings 
as required for successful coordination and completion of the Project. 

 WILSONVILLE is solely responsible for managing the Project schedule, 
including established milestones. WILSONVILLE will provide construction 
contractors’ baseline schedule and monthly schedule updates for WWSP 
review and comments. WILSONVILLE will consider and incorporate WWSP 
review comments that do not significantly impact Road Work costs or 
Project schedule. 

 WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP a minimum of ten (10) calendar days to 
evaluate the bid results for the Waterline Work and shared costs prior to 
issuing notice of intent to award for the Project. 

 WILSONVILLE will receive, catalog, and route to WWSP requests for 
information (RFIs), requests for substitutions, submittals, and any other 
documents pertaining to the Waterline Work for review and comment using 
e-Builder as administered by the WWSP for the Parties. WILSONVILLE will 
defer to WWSP for the disposition and/or response for all RFIs, 
substitutions, and submittals related to the Waterline Work. Access to all 

Page 34 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 9 of 21 

Project documents, including, but not limited to, submittals, RFIs, contract 
correspondence, QA/QC, daily reports, and photos will be available to the 
Parties through e-Builder. 

 WILSONVILLE will cause the construction contractor to name and endorse 
WILSONVILLE and WWSP (or TVWD and CITY if no legal entity between 
them has been formed) their elected or appointed officials, staff, 
employees, consultants, and agents as additional insureds on all policies 
provided by the construction contractor under the contract. The 
endorsements to policies shall provide for not less than thirty (30) days 
written notice of cancellation. WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP a copy of 
the certificates for its records. WILSONVILLE will cause the construction 
contractor to extend indemnity and hold harmless provisions given to 
WILSONVILLE to WWSP (or to TVWD and CITY if no legal entity between 
them has been formed) its members, officers, boards, agents, employees, 
and consultants. 

 WILSONVILLE will have overall responsibility for Project administration 
and inspection of Road Work and at all times be responsible to monitor and 
manage the construction contractor's work as provided in the construction 
contract documents. With respect to the Waterline Work and subject to the 
provisions of the Ground Lease providing the Waterline Work cannot 
negatively impact the Road Work, WILSONVILLE will defer to the Waterline 
Construction Manager for decisions, recommendations, and interpretations 
regarding the construction of the Waterline Work to meet the quality, 
timelines, and performance of the water system design as long as such 
decisions do not negatively impact the Road Work or cost. WILSONVILLE 
will communicate and direct the contractor performing the Waterline Work 
consistently with the decisions of the Waterline Construction Manager. 
WILSONVILLE will have sole and total decision-making authority on Road 
Work. 

 WILSONVILLE agrees and will provide in the construction contract that the 
Waterline Construction Manager or designated onsite inspectors may also 
stop the construction contractor's work if they observe, in their sole 
judgment, a situation involving safety issues that threaten life or bodily 
harm. Further, the Waterline Construction Manager shall notify the 
WILSONVILLE Project Manager of the need to stop the Waterline Work 
based on observations that the Waterline Work is not being performed 
according to the Contract Documents. The WILSONVILLE Project Manager 
will stop the Waterline Work at the request of the Waterline Construction 
Manager. WILSONVILLE’s Construction Manager shall also have the 
authority to issue a stop work order at any time and will notify WWSP’s 
Construction Manager or designated onsite supervisor as soon thereafter 
as reasonably possible. 

 WILSONVILLE will review the monthly estimate of Waterline Work 
performed by the construction contractor prepared by the Waterline 
Construction Manager and onsite inspectors based on their inspection of 
the work performed to date, the method of payment and schedule of values 
specified in the contract, and other matters deemed appropriate for 
payment. The monthly estimate shall be provided to WILSONVILLE for 

Page 35 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 10 of 21 

WILSONVILLE to meet its requirements to maintain the schedule and for 
periodic pay request process under the construction contract. 

 WILSONVILLE will provide a final cost accounting for the Waterline Work 
and WWSP’s proportion of shared cost items, including all internal and 
external costs, to WWSP within forty-five (45) days of Final Completion of 
the Project and payment to the construction contractor. 

 WILSONVILLE will require the construction contractor to complete and 
submit Exhibit 5, Quarterly Net Spend Report. This report shall include, at a 
minimum, the following information: 

Total amount spent by construction contractor and each 
subcontractor, vendor, and supplier for the quarter; 

Subcontractor/subconsultant name, address, and type of service(s) 
provided; and 

Other business attributes that may be required by WWSP. 

WILSONVILLE will require the construction contractor to submit the 
Quarterly Net Spend Report to WILSONVILLE by the fifteenth (15th) day of 
the last month for each calendar quarter for the entire duration of its 
contract. WILSONVILLE will forward the construction contractor’s 
Quarterly Spend Report to WWSP when it receives it from the construction 
contractor. WWSP may change the content and frequency of spend 
reporting and would incur the cost of such changes. 

 WILSONVILLE will submit to WWSP all contract construction Change 
Order, Work Change Directive, or other proposed revisions to the Project 
for review to determine if the change impacts the Waterline Work. 
WILSONVILLE will endeavor to provide notice of potential Project Change 
Orders, claims, or disputes at the earliest possible time. If it is determined 
by the Parties that the change is related to or impacts the Waterline Work, 
then written approval from the WWSP Construction Manager must be 
received prior to approval of a written Change Order or Work Change 
Directive. 

 WILSONVILLE will coordinate with WWSP on any disagreements, disputes, 
delays, or claims with the construction contractor related to or as a result 
of the Waterline Work as provided by Section 11.6. 

 WILSONVILLE will perform actions regarding compensation as set forth in 
Article X, Compensation for Construction. 

 WILSONVILLE will provide a potable water source for use by the WWSP 
during construction for testing of the Waterline Work as well as use of 
storm drain or sanitary sewer infrastructure, as directed by the 
WILSONVILLE Project Manager, for disposal of water following testing. 

Upon completion of the Waterline Work and acceptance of the Project, 
WWSP, as Lessee as defined in the Ground Lease, shall operate, inspect, 

Page 36 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 11 of 21 

maintain, replace, and access the Waterline as provided in the Ground 
Lease for the duration of the Ground Lease. 

 WILSONVILLE and the construction contractor shall participate in WWSP 
monthly health and safety meetings. 

 WILSONVILLE will not authorize or consent to construction contractor’s 
changes to Waterline Work key milestones, as shown in Exhibit 2, without 
written approval by WWSP, except in the case of a force majeure as defined 
in the Contract Documents. 

 Claims 

WILSONVILLE will promptly notify WWSP of any construction contractor 
claim or request for Change Order. If a claim or request for Change Order 
would increase the proportionate share of shared costs, or if it affects the 
WWSP-only cost for Waterline Work, WWSP will respond to WILSONVILLE 
within ten (10) business days regarding whether it approves or disapproves 
of the claim or request for Change Order. WILSONVILLE will not resolve or 
settle a claim for extra compensation or schedule adjustment for such 
claims without WWSP approval in writing. If WILSONVILLE proceeds to 
resolve the claim or issue a Change Order without WWSP written approval, 
WWSP reserves all rights to contest responsibility for payment and to seek 
indemnity for all costs and impacts resulting from WILSONVILLE's action. 

In the case of a claim or Change Order related to the proportionate share of 
shared costs, WILSONVILLE, as the contract holder, may need advice from 
WILSONVILLE legal counsel. WILSONVILLE will notify WWSP that it is 
seeking advice of legal counsel. WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for 
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by WILSONVILLE for counsel advice 
based on the proportionate share of the responsibility. 

 Bonds and Warranties 

WILSONVILLE agrees to assign all rights under performance and payment 
bonds, warranties, and claims arising out of the construction contract 
related to the Waterline Work to WWSP so that WWSP has a direct cause of 
action against the construction contractor. 

 Litigation with Contractor 

In the event of a dispute with any contractor or consultant that results in 
litigation, WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for all costs and attorney 
fees associated with all claims based on the Waterline Work, including but 
not limited to any claims for delay damages or Change Orders. If the claim 
is based on a contract term not specifically relating to either the Waterline 
Work or the Road Work, the parties will share the cost equally (example a 
weather-related delay damage force majeure claim). WILSONVILLE will pay 
all costs and Attorney fees for all claims based on the Road Work that do 
not involve the Water Work, including but not limited to claims for delay 
damages or Change Orders. 

WWSP OBLIGATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION 

Page 37 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 12 of 21 

 WWSP will designate a WWSP Construction Manager, ________________. 
The WWSP Construction Manager shall be the designated point of contact 
with the WILSONVILLE Project Manager. The WILSONVILLE Project 
Manager shall have authority to accept and act upon the written directions 
and decisions of the WWSP Construction Manager relating to the Waterline 
Work during solicitation and construction and to instruct the construction 
contractor and incur costs based on those decisions. Mike Britch, P.E., will 
be the WWSP Principal Engineer and the WWSP representative to handle 
dispute resolution for this Project. 

 WILSONVILLE and WWSP will establish an account and Irrevocable Limited 
Power of Attorney Agreement with the Local Government Investment Pool 
(“Account”) which will authorize WILSONVILLE’s Director of Finance to 
make monthly withdrawals from an account established by WWSP for 
WWSP’s monthly share of each invoice submitted by the construction 
contractor for the Project. The Power of Attorney Agreement will be signed, 
an account will be opened, and the amount of the WWSP deposit will be 
agreed upon when Bids are opened. The account will be fully funded by 
WWSP including a contingency as shown in Exhibit 4 on or before the date 
the bids are opened by WILSONVILLE. The Account funding amount 
reflected in Exhibit 4 shall be modified to reflect actual bid amounts prior to 
Notice to Proceed. If Change Orders for which WWSP is fully or partially 
responsible cause there to be insufficient funds remaining to pay for all of 
WWSP’s share of the work in the Account, WWSP will deposit additional 
funds, as required within thirty (30) days of written notice and supporting 
documentation thereof from WILSONVILLE. 

 WWSP will monitor permit compliance and coordinate with WILSONVILLE 
for compliance with the requirements of the Ground Lease and this 
Agreement related to the Waterline Work. 

 WWSP will provide review of shop drawings, submittals, RFIs, and other 
requested clarifications related to the Waterline Work. WWSP shall provide 
a response to WILSONVILLE within the timeframe required by the Contract 
Documents. 

 WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for construction contractor 
mobilization based on bid amounts of the value of the Waterline Work and 
shared items. Mobilization for the Project shall not exceed eight percent 
(8%). WWSP will provide materials testing, independent of construction 
contractor testing requirements of the Contract Documents, and 
construction inspection for Waterline Work. WWSP may require additional 
or corrective work to be completed for the Waterline Work if, in the sole 
judgment of WWSP, the work is not complete in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, or it is in the public interest to do so. If WWSP 
determines the Waterline Work is not in compliance with the Contract 
Documents, the Waterline Construction Manager shall inform 
WILSONVILLE at the earliest opportunity following discovery, and 
WILSONVILLE will require construction contractor to perform corrective 
actions as necessary. The method of enforcement will be agreed upon and 
the cost of enforcement will be reimbursed in full by WWSP. If WWSP 
believes litigation is required, WILSONVILLE will assign its rights to litigate 
the claim to WWSP. Further, if a change is required not because of a 

Page 38 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 13 of 21 

breach of contract, but for some other reason, WWSP will be fully 
responsible for any additional charge incurred as a result thereof. The 
provisions of this Section are independent of the authority granted to 
WWSP set forth in Section 7.11 above. 

 WWSP will provide WILSONVILLE with the following Waterline Work 
construction documentation: 

Daily progress reports; 

Quantity documentation used for monthly payment estimates; 

Quality documentation and test results as specified in the 
construction contract; and 

Any other documentation reasonably requested by WILSONVILLE to 
administer the contract. 

 WWSP will promptly review invoices from WILSONVILLE. WWSP will 
provide notice of any disputed amount within seven (7) business days from 
the day WILSONVILLE provides the invoice to WWSP. Parties will then 
meet to resolve the disputed amounts. Undisputed amounts shall be paid 
as provided in Article X, Compensation for Construction, and disputed 
amounts shall be resolved as provided therein. Payment from the Account 
will be made unless the payment is disputed by WWSP within seven (7) 
business days. 

 WWSP will determine, in its reasonable discretion, when Waterline Work 
has achieved Substantial Completion and Final Completion. The Waterline 
Construction Manager shall provide a construction punch list to 
WILSONVILLE upon Substantial Completion of the Project and participate 
with the WILSONVILLE Project Manager for inspection and Final 
Completion of the Waterline Work. 

 WWSP must review and approve any Change Orders and/or Work Change 
Directives relating to the Waterline Work prior to issuance to the 
construction contractor. Within five (5) business days of receiving the 
proposed Change Order or Work Change Directive, WWSP will notify 
WILSONVILLE in writing of any concerns or disputes with a proposed 
Change Order or Work Change Directive. WILSONVILLE may proceed to 
direct its construction contractor to perform work only if it deems an 
emergency or other circumstance requires immediate action to prevent 
adverse health and safety conditions. In such a case, WWSP reserves all 
rights to dispute responsibility for payment of the Change Order or Work 
Change or to modify a Change Order or Work Change Directive for 
consistency with the Waterline Work scope and design. In no event shall 
WILSONVILLE authorize any change in the Waterline Work that affects the 
quality, integrity, or operational attributes of the Waterline Work. 
WILSONVILLE will have no liability to WWSP for any contract delays as a 
result thereof or for any other damages or claims by WWSP. WWSP will 
only be entitled to seek relief from the construction contractor. 
WILSONVILLE will assign all contractual rights necessary for WWSP to 
seek relief from the construction contractor. 

Page 39 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 14 of 21 

 WWSP will coordinate and meet with WILSONVILLE to resolve any 
disagreements, disputes, delays, or claims related to, or as a result of, the 
Waterline Work or WWSP’s share of shared costs of the Waterline Work as 
provided by Section 11.6. 

 WWSP will perform actions regarding compensation as set forth in Article 
X, Compensation for Construction. 

 WWSP, its consultants, and its construction contractors shall coordinate 
with WILSONVILLE and its consultants, including jointly attending regular 
construction coordination meetings, regular permitting and environmental 
meetings, real estate meetings, public information and outreach meetings, 
and other meetings as required for successful coordination and completion 
of the Project. The WILSONVILLE Project Manager and WWSP Construction 
Manager shall mutually determine the anticipated frequency and timing of 
meetings depending on the needs of the Project. 

 The Ground Lease requires that unless otherwise agreed to, in writing, by 
WILSONVILLE, all WWSP pipe must be located below all WILSONVILLE 
utility pipes, including in Garden Acres Road. WILSONVILLE has agreed to 
allow the WWSP pipe to be above WILSONVILLE pipe in Garden Acres 
Road and shallower than the required 8 feet, as shown on the approved 
Construction Documents. In consideration of this Agreement and the 
challenges and expense WWSP would face if it were required to go below 
all of WILSONVILLE utility work in Garden Acres Road and maintain a 
minimum 8-foot depth, WWSP agrees to payment of the sum and other 
requirements, as set forth in Exhibit 4. 

JOINT OBLIGATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 The Parties’ Project Managers shall mutually determine the anticipated 
frequency and timing of meetings depending on the needs of the Project. 

 The Parties will coordinate and work collaboratively in developing Project 
milestones, constraints, work sequences, construction administration 
requirements, quality control and assurance requirements, and other 
activities as required for successful coordination and completion of the 
Project. 

 The Parties will coordinate and work collaboratively in coordination of the 
construction work, including work sequences, construction administration 
requirements, quality control and assurance requirements, and other 
activities as required for successful coordination and completion of the 
Project. 

 To minimize potential Project schedule delays, construction contractor 
cost increases, or other Project issues, the Parties agree to work together 
diligently to identify and jointly resolve any construction issues with the 
Road Work and Waterline Work at the earliest possible stage, including 
those issues that involve the construction contractor. When such issues 
arise, the Parties agree to work together to find mutually acceptable 
solutions in furtherance of the stated Project goals. WILSONVILLE will lead 

Page 40 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 15 of 21 

the resolution with the construction contractor as mutually agreed by the 
Parties. 

 The Parties agree to include health and safety requirements in the Contract 
Documents that meet the objectives of both Parties for their portions of the 
Project. 

 The Parties agree that the construction contractor shall be required to 
develop and maintain a Project baseline schedule on which the 
WILSONVILLE Project Manager and WWSP Construction Manager shall 
collaboratively review and comment. The construction contractor shall 
provide monthly schedule updates electronically (in PDF and native format) 
using Primavera P6 or Microsoft Project. The schedule shall be Critical 
Path Method and have Type C requirements as defined by the Oregon 
Department of Transportation. These schedule obligations shall include 
milestones as jointly agreed upon by the Parties. Each Party shall allow the 
other Party to comment on schedule revisions. 

 The Parties agree to co-manage complaints, including, but not limited to, 
general public complaints and complaints related to environmental and/or 
land use permitting. 

 The Parties agree to the following guidelines for handling public/media 
interactions: 

Social media includes all means of communicating or posting 
information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to one’s 
own or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or diary, personal 
website, social networking or affinity website, web bulletin board, 
chat room, whether or not associated or affiliated with WWSP or 
WILSONVILLE, or any other form of electronic communication. 

Posting of social media content related to Waterline Work by WWSP 
or WILSONVILLE staff, consultants, or construction contractors is 
prohibited unless approved, in writing, by WWSP. 

Posting of social media content related to Road Work by WWSP or 
WILSONVILLE staff, consultants, or construction contractors is 
prohibited unless approved, in writing, by WILSONVILLE. 

 The Parties agree to coordinate on outreach efforts such as signage, 
groundbreaking, and ribbon cutting. 

COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 Exhibit 4 summarizes the construction cost sharing for the Project. Parties 
will proportion actual cost for construction as shown in Exhibit 4 and as 
described below: 

Construction management - WWSP responsible for actual cost of 
Road Work consultant for coordination between Waterline Work 
during construction. Costs will be tracked separately by 
WILSONVILLE’s Road Work consultant. WWSP will be allowed to 

Page 41 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 16 of 21 

review and comment on Road Work consultant fee prior to the Road 
Work consultant contracting with WILSONVILLE. 

Construction administration - WWSP responsible for WILSONVILLE 
actual costs plus Administrative Charge as shown in Exhibit 4. 

Mobilization (Schedule A) - WWSP is responsible for the 
proportionate share between cost of the Waterline Work (Schedule 
B) and the total cost for construction plus WWSP portion of the 
Road Work (Schedule A) identified below. Mobilization for the 
Project shall be limited to a maximum of 8 percent. 

Cahalin Temporary Road Bid Item (Schedule A) – WWSP is 
responsible for the costs of construction, demolition, and 
restoration of a temporary access road during construction of the 
Waterline Work, limited to and as detailed in the following sheets of 
the Road Work 95% Design drawing set:  DM-07, EC-09, EC-16, SP-
05, RD-13, and LA-08. 

Road Work (Schedule A) – WWSP responsible for the fixed 
percentage Road Work share as shown in Exhibit 4. The amount of 
the Road Work share shall be determined based on the Road Work 
bid amount and applying the fixed percentage Road Work share. The 
responsibility includes payment for the increased depth of city 
utilities due to the WWSP pipeline being less than that prescribed in 
the Ground Lease per Section 8.13 of this Agreement. 

Waterline Work (Schedule B) - WWSP responsible for 100 percent. 

 Subject to WWSP’s requirements to pay WILSONVILLE Administrative 
Costs, the Parties will otherwise each bear the fully burdened labor costs 
of their individual staffs on the Road Work and the Waterline Work. The 
Parties agree WWSP will pay to WILSONVILLE actual costs of overall 
administration of the Project related to the Waterline Work an 
administration charge to administer the construction contract, as shown in 
Exhibit 4. Aside from the Administrative Charge, there shall be no markup 
on construction contractor payment amounts, Road Work consultant actual 
costs, or other costs outside those incurred by WILSONVILLE staff. The 
costs to invoice WWSP shall be included as part of WILSONVILLE’s 
Administrative Charge. 

 WILSONVILLE will submit invoices monthly as described below: 

Account withdrawals shall follow issuance of invoices. 

Prior to issuance of each invoice, the Parties will agree on 
construction contractor pay request amounts, design consultant 
Road Work fees, and other compensable costs. 

Each invoice shall be accompanied with documentation supporting 
all requested costs for compensation or reimbursement. 

Prior to withdrawal from the Account the above activities shall be 

Page 42 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 17 of 21 

completed. WILSONVILLE's invoice shall show the actual cost and 
percentage allocation between WWSP and WILSONVILLE for the 
shared costs. 

 WILSONVILLE will submit a final billing statement within forty-five (45) 
days of the completion of the work authorized herein. 

 WWSP will pay WILSONVILLE the amount due within thirty (30) days of its 
receipt of billing statement for costs not withdrawn from the Account. 

 Work Change Directives and Change Orders shall use the following 
protocol: 

Work Change Directives will be defined in the construction 
agreement between WILSONVILLE and the construction contractor. 
WILSONVILLE can direct work that is considered minor that does 
not impact, delay, or affect Waterline Work. Work Change Directives 
shall not affect administrative or shared costs and shall be paid 
according to Exhibit 4. WWSP will have sole responsibility to 
prepare Work Change Directives related to Waterline Work. All Work 
Change Directives shall be issued through WILSONVILLE. 

All modifications to the construction contract that will change 
shared costs or impact the schedule will not be effective until 
approved by a written Change Order, signed by the Parties. The 
Party causing the change in shared costs shall be responsible for 
those costs. 

Change Orders to the Project that do not affect the Waterline Work 
or Waterline Work Schedule will be managed and approved by 
WILSONVILLE. If WWSP or WILSONVILLE dispute a shared cost 
Change Order, WILSONVILLE may still elect to proceed with the 
Change Order and the Parties reserve all rights to contest and 
determine responsibility for payment under the dispute resolution 
and remedy provisions below. The Party causing the change in any 
costs shall be responsible to pay those costs. 

As provided in Section 8.10, Change Orders that affect the cost, 
schedule, quality of performance, workmanship, or material of the 
Waterline Work must be approved in writing by both Parties. Except 
as provided in Section 10.6.6, WWSP will respond with approval or 
disapproval for Waterline Work Change Orders to WILSONVILLE 
within five (5) business days following receipt of the proposed 
Change Order. WILSONVILLE may direct the construction contractor 
to perform the Waterline Work if it deems emergency conditions 
exist or action is necessary to prevent adverse health or safety 
issues. In emergency circumstances, WILSONVILLE will provide 
notice reasonable under the circumstances, and WWSP will respond 
in a timely manner reasonable under the circumstances. 

WWSP may initiate Change Orders for the Waterline Work by 
providing WILSONVILLE a requested Change Order with supporting 
documents to negotiate the cost and time impact with the 

Page 43 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 18 of 21 

construction contractor, which shall be paid by WWSP. 
WILSONVILLE will participate in discussions with the WWSP and the 
construction contractor to negotiate an agreeable Change Order. 

Any Change Order that increases the combined value of all prior 
Change Orders to a cost to WWSP of $875,000 or more shall require 
approval by the CITY Utilities Commission. No Change Order shall 
be binding upon WWSP while approval is pending, subject to 
WILSONVILLE's power under Section 10.7.4. 

 Within forty-five (45) days after the Final Completion of the Project, 
WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP a final statement of Waterline Work to be 
withdrawn from the Account. If insufficient funds remain, WWSP will pay 
the difference within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice and 
supporting documentation. Upon the completion of the construction and 
completion of record drawings, WILSONVILLE will deliver one set of redline 
as-built drawings for Waterline Work. WWSP will be responsible for 
producing record drawings and will provide electronic copies (PDF and 
native format) related to the Waterline Work to WILSONVILLE. 
WILSONVILLE will be responsible for producing record drawings for the 
Road Work. The record drawings provided by WILSONVILLE will satisfy the 
requirements of Section 7.24, As-Built Survey, of the Ground Lease. The 
record drawing information will be relied upon by WWSP to provide a 
portion of the metes and bounds description of the Lease Area to 
WILSONVILLE as described in Section 2.4 of the Ground Lease. Upon Final 
Acceptance of the Project by WILSONVILLE and verification that all 
contractors and suppliers have been paid WILSONVILLE will release any 
remaining Account funds to the WWSP within forty-five (45) days. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 Laws of Oregon 

Parties agree to abide by all applicable laws and regulations regarding the 
handling and expenditure of public funds. This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Oregon. The construction contract 
shall contain all required public contract provisions of ORS Chapter 279A 
and 279C. 

 Default 

Either Party will be deemed to be in default if it fails to comply with any 
term, condition, or covenant in this Agreement. Parties agree time is of the 
essence in the performance of this Agreement. The non-defaulting Party 
will provide the defaulting Party with written notice of default and allow 
thirty (30) days within which to cure or diligently commence to cure the 
defect within a reasonable time. If a defaulting Party fails to cure or fails to 
diligently commence to cure the default, the non-defaulting Party may elect 
to terminate this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, 
Parties will pay for costs incurred for satisfactorily completed and 
authorized work up to the time of termination. Each Party will be liable for 
all costs and damages arising from its individual default. 

Page 44 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 19 of 21 

 Indemnification 

This Agreement is for the benefit of Parties only and there are no third-
party beneficiaries. Subject to the limitations related to government 
agencies under the Oregon Constitution, each Party agrees to indemnify 
and hold the other harmless, including their respective officers, employees, 
agents, and representatives, from and against all claims, demands, causes 
of action, and suits of any kind or nature for personal injury, death, or 
damage to persons or property on account of any acts or omissions arising 
out of this Agreement. Indemnification is subject to and shall not exceed 
the limits of liability of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 through 
30.300). In addition, each Party shall be solely responsible for any contract 
claims, delay damages, permit compliance, permit violations, or similar 
items arising from or caused by the action or inaction of the Party. 

 Documents are Public Records 

All records, reports, data, documents, systems, and concepts, whether in 
the form of writings, figures, graphs, or models, that are prepared or 
developed in connection with this Project shall be subject to the applicable 
provisions of the Oregon public records law. 

 Modification of Agreement 

No waiver, consent, modification, or change of terms of this Agreement 
shall bind either Party unless in writing, signed by both Parties. Such 
waiver, consent, modification, or change, if made, shall be effective only in 
specific instances and for the specific purpose given. 

 Dispute Resolution 

Parties will attempt to informally resolve any dispute concerning any 
Party’s performance, acts, omissions or decisions under this Agreement, 
or regarding the terms, conditions, or meaning of this Agreement. Dispute 
resolution will conform to the requirements of Section 15, Dispute 
Resolution, of the Ground Lease, which are incorporated herein as if fully 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 Remedies 

Subject to the provisions of Article X - Compensation for Construction, and 
the dispute resolution process set forth in Section 11.6, any Party may 
institute legal action to cure, correct, or remedy any default, to enforce any 
covenant or agreement, or to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation 
of this Agreement. All legal actions shall be initiated in Clackamas County 
Circuit Court. Parties, by signature of their authorized representative 
below, consent to the personal jurisdiction of that court. 

 Severability 

If any term(s) or provision(s) of this Agreement or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be determined by a court 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement and the 

Page 45 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 20 of 21 

application of those terms and provisions shall not be affected thereby and 
shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 Nondiscrimination 

No person shall be denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the 
benefits of any services or activities made possible by or resulting from 
this Agreement on the grounds of race, color, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status. Any violation 
of this provision shall be considered a material defect and shall be grounds 
for cancellation, termination, or suspension in whole or in part by 
WILSONVILLE or WWSP. 

 Excused Performance 

In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, no default shall be 
deemed to have occurred where delays or default is due to war, 
insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, drought, earthquakes, fires, 
casualties, acts of God, governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by 
governmental entities other than Parties, enactment of conflicting state or 
federal laws or regulations, new or supplementary environmental 
regulation, litigation, or similar bases for excused performance that are not 
within the reasonable control to the Party to be excused. 

 Integration 

Except for the Ground Lease, which remains the controlling document, this 
Agreement supersedes any prior discussions or agreements regarding the 
Project. 

 Assignment/Additional Parties 

This Agreement may be assigned in accordance with the assignment 
provision of the Ground Lease (Section 20.2). 

 Access to Books, Records, and Accounting 

WILSONVILLE will maintain books, records, and reports of the Road Work 
and Waterline Work showing all income, receipts, expenses, and costs. 
These records shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years following 
Final Completion. All such books, records, and reports may be examined, 
and copies made by WWSP at reasonable times upon reasonable notice. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution through the 
end of the Project warranty period, two (2) years following Final 
Acceptance of the Project, unless mutually agreed to by both Parties in 
writing. 

 This Agreement may be amended or extended for periods of up to one (1) 
year at a time by mutual written consent of Parties, subject to provisions of 
this Agreement. In the event of default of this Agreement, the non-

Page 46 of 129



{00338008; 2 }                                                                                      Page 21 of 21 

defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement after giving thirty (30) days 
written notice specifying the nature of the default with reasonable 
particularity and the defaulting Party fails to cure within that 30-day period. 
If the default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied 
within the 30-day cure period, this provision shall be complied with if the 
defaulting Party begins correction of the default within the 30-day period 
and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to 
effect the remedy as soon as practicable. In the event of termination or 
cancellation, Parties will pay all costs due and owing for work performed 
prior to termination or cancellation. Parties will, in good faith, agree to such 
reasonable provisions for completing the Project and paying for any 
additional costs as necessary. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Parties hereto have set their hands as of the day 
and year hereinafter written. 

 
CITY OF WILSONVILLE, OREGON  TUALATIN VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

  
 
 
 
_________________________________ 

By  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 
 

  

Date ______________________________  Date __________________________ 
 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

  
 
Approved as to Form 
 
 
_________________________________ 

   
 
CITY OF HILLSBORO, OREGON 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By 

 

Date _____________________________ 
 

Page 47 of 129



!(

!(

G
RA

HA
M

S 
FE

RR
Y 

RD

DAY RD

RIDDER RD

G
AR

D
EN

 A
C

R
ES

 R
D

Legend
WWSP Approximate Pipeline Alignment

Approximate Project Area

Tax Lot

Wilsonville City Limit ¯
0 250 500

Feet

NOTE: WWSP Pipeline
Alignment is approximate

Date: 09/06/2018

Exhibit 1 - Garden Acres Road
And PLM_1.2 Projects

PLM_1.3 Pipeline

PLM_3.0 Pipeline

PLM_3.0/PLM_1.2
Connection

PLM_1.2/PLM_1.3
Connection

WWSP PLM_1.2 
Pipeline

Road Work and
Waterline Work

Waterline Work Only

Page 48 of 129



GARDEN ACRES ROAD AND PLM_1.2 TO 124TH PIPELINE PROJECTS 

Exhibit 2 

Scheduled Design and Construction Milestones 

 

Design Milestones Date 
100% Garden Acres Road/PLM_1.2 Constructability Review April 2019 
Bid Documents Complete April 2019 
Public Information Strategy Meeting June 2019 

Construction Milestones Date 
Invitation to Bid Published (Key Milestone) April 2019 
Bids Due May 2019 
WWSP Consent to Award June 2019 
Notice of Intent to Award  June 2019 
Bid Award June 2019 
Construction Notice to Proceed (Key Milestone) July 2019 
Utilities Relocation (coordinated by Wilsonville) Complete (Key Milestone) March 2020 
Substantial Completion of the Project (Key Milestone) November 2020 
Final Completion of the Project March 2021 
Warranty Starts March 2021 
Final Invoice May 2021 
Record Drawings May 2021 

 

 

 

  

Page 49 of 129



GARDEN ACRES ROAD AND PLM_1.2 TO 124TH PIPELINE PROJECTS 

Exhibit 3 

Wilsonville Compensation for Design Costs 

 

Description Costs 
Wilsonville Staff Coordination and Review of Waterline Design and 
Construction Documents and Incorporation of Waterline Construction 
Documents into Garden Acres Contract Documents  Actual Cost + 8% 
Garden Acres Consultant Team Coordination and Review of Waterline 
Design and Construction Documents and Incorporation of Waterline 
Construction Documents into Garden Acres Contract Documents Actual Cost  

 

Page 50 of 129



GARDEN ACRES ROAD AND PLM_1.2 TO 124TH PIPELINE PROJECTS 

Exhibit 4 

Wilsonville Compensation for Construction Costs 

 

Description Costs 
Wilsonville Staff Administration of Waterline Work portion of the Garden 
Acres Construction   Actual Cost + 8% 
Garden Acres Consultant Team Construction Management or Inspection 
of Waterline Work portion the Garden Acres Construction Actual Cost 
WWSP share of the Road Work 21.6%* of the awarded 

bid total of Schedule A  
(Road Work) less 
Mobilization & Cahalin 
Temporary Roadway bid 
items. 

WWSP share of Schedule A Mobilization Bid Item  Proportionate share 
between cost of the 
Schedule B (Waterline 
Work ) plus 21.6% of the 
Schedule A (Road Work) 
and the Total Cost of 
Construction 

WWSP share of Schedule A Cahalin Temporary Roadway bid item. 100% 
Local Government Investment Pool Deposit WWSP share of the 

Road Work plus WWSP 
share of Schedule A 
Mobilization Bid Item 
plus WWSP share of 
Schedule A Cahalin 
Temporary Roadway bid 
item plus 100% of 
Schedule B (Waterline 
Work) plus  10% 
Contingency 

*The cost basis determination of the fixed percentage of WWSP Road Work share is based on the 90% 
construction cost estimate attached as part of Exhibit 4. 

Page 51 of 129



Exhibit 4 ‐ Garden Acres Intergovernmental Agreement ‐ WWSP Cost Share Basis
February 22, 2019

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY
UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
WWSP 

QUANTITY
WWSP SHARE 

TOTAL
Methodology for WWSP Share and WWSP Added

Mobilization and Traffic Control
1 Mobilization (8%) L.S. 1 $390,000 $390,000 21.6% $84,360 Based on percentage of the summation of WWSP Cost Share items below divided by 

the total Garden Acres Road Project Total Costs.
2 Temporary Work Zone Traffic Control, Complete (4%) L.S. 1 $200,000 $200,000 50% $100,000.00 WWSP pipeline requires extension into second construction season.  One season for 

WWSP work & one season for Wilsonville work.  Share 50/50.
3 Erosion Control L.S. 1 $20,000 $20,000 50% $10,000.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.
4 Compost Filter Berm L.F. 5170 $7 $36,190 50% $18,095.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.
5 Construction Entrance Each 2 $2,500 $5,000 50% $2,500.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.
6 Concrete Washout Facility Each 2 $2,000 $4,000 50% $2,000.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.
7 Inlet Protection, Type Each 36 $125 $4,500 50% $2,250.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.
8 Construction Signing L.S. 1 $1,500 $1,500 50% $750.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.

Mobilization and Traffic Control Subtotal $661,190 $219,954.81

Roadwork
9 Clearing and Grubbing Acre 4.9 $7,000 $34,300 0.89 $6,230.00 Includes area between edge of pavement and  edge of trench plus an additionl 6 

inches.
10 Tree Protection Fencing L.F. 1,000.0 $5 $5,000 50% $2,500.00 Same project limits with same impacts, share 50/50.
11 Removal of Structures and Obstructions L.S. 1 $100,000 $100,000 19% $19,000.00 12 feet of pipeline trench width over 63.5 feet removal width (includes PUE).

12 General Excavation C.Y. 6,360.0 $24 $152,640 19% $29,001.60 12 feet of pipeline trench width over 63.5 feet removal width (includes PUE).
13 12 Inch Subgrade Stabilization S.Y. 750 $35 $26,250 22% $5,775.00 Portion under roadway.  7 feet wide trench width over 32 roadway width.
14 Subgrade Geotextile S.Y. 12,120.0 $2 $24,240 3105 $6,210.00 9' wide AC and concrete pavement and curb within 12' Project Area width for 

Roadwork Subtotal $342,430 $68,716.60

Drainage and Sewers
15 8 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 235 $80 $18,800 148 $11,840.00 Portion of pipe crossing over WWSP pipeline trench width.
16 10 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 500 $65 $32,500 197 $12,805.00 Portion of pipe crossing over WWSP pipeline trench width.
17 12 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 123 $70 $8,610
18 18 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 554 $120 $66,480
19 21 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 23 $130 $2,990 12 $1,560.00 Portion of pipe crossing over WWSP pipeline trench width.
20 30 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 783 $150 $117,450
21 36 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 1018 $180 $183,240
22 42 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 1034 $225 $232,650
23 48 Inch Storm Pipe L.F. 1093 $250 $273,250
24 6 Inch Sanitary Pipe L.F. 606 $70 $42,420
25 18 Inch Sanitary Pipe L.F. 1568 $200 $313,600
26 Concrete Manholes, 48" Sanitary Each 6 $5000 $30,000
27 Concrete Manholes, 60" Storm w/ Inside Drop Each 9 $10000 $90,000
28 Concrete Manholes, 72" Storm w/ Inside Drop Each 9 $14000 $126,000
29 Concrete Manholes, 72" Storm w/ Orifice Each 1 $15000 $15,000
30 Catch Basin, Ditch Inlet Each 3 $2500 $7,500
31 Catch Basin, CG‐30 Each 12 $2500 $30,000 12 $30,000.00 12 catch basins are within the WWSP pipeline trench (12' width)
32 Catch Basin, CG‐48 Each 1 $3500 $3,500
33 Catch Basin, Beehive Each 21 $1800 $37,800 15 $27,000.00 15 area drains are within the WWSP pipeline trench (12' width)
34 Sanitary Sewer Cleanout Each 14 $900 $12,600
35 Minor Adjustment of Manholes Each 3 $500 $1,500
36 Major Adjustment of Manholes Each 1 $1200 $1,200
37 Adjusting Boxes Each 26 $300 $7,800
38 Connect to Existing Structures Each 15 $500 $7,500

Drainage and Sewer Subtotal $1,662,390 $83,205.00

Page 1 of 3

Page 52 of 129



ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY
UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
WWSP 

QUANTITY
WWSP SHARE 

TOTAL
Methodology for WWSP Share and WWSP Added

Base
39 3/4"‐0" Aggregate Base C.Y. 3,672 $45 $165,240 175 $7,875.00 183' at 12' width @ 2" depth and 2907' at 9' width @ 2" depth
40 1 1/2"‐0" Aggregate Base C.Y. 2,708 $45 $121,860 622 $27,990.00 183' at 12' width @ 11" depth and 323' at 9' width @ 11" depth and 2454' at 9" width 

@ 6" depth and 128' at 9' width at 11" depth
Base Subtotal $287,100 $35,865.00

Wearing Surfaces
41 Level 3, 1/2 Inch ACP Mixture Ton 2,118 $85 $180,030 281 $23,885.00 183' at 12' width @ 8.5" depth and 323' at 7' width @ 8.5" depth at 128' at 7' width @ 

8.5" depth
42 Plain Concrete Pavement, Dowelled, 9 Inches Thick S.Y. 8,324 $75 $624,300 1909 $143,175.00 2454' length at 7' width of WWSP pipeline trench.
43 Extra for Asphalt Approaches Each 20 $1,000 $20,000
44 Extra for Asphalt Drainage Curb Each 162 $20 $3,240
45 Concrete Curb, Concrete Street Curb and Gutter L.F. 2441 $26 $63,466 2454 $63,804.00 Curb and gutter are within the 12' WWSP pipe trench for 2454 feet.
46 Concrete Curb, Asphalt Street Curb and Gutter L.F. 1,030 $26 $26,780 451 $11,726.00 Asphalt street curb is within the 12' WWSP pipe trench for 323' + 128'.
47 Concrete Driveways S.F. 6026 $10 $60,260 690 $6,900.00 11 Concrete driveways of varying widths, 3' within 12' WWSP pipe trench
48 Concrete Walks S.F. 17,410 $7 $121,870
49 4 Inch Concrete Surfacing S.F. 20735 $8 $165,880
50 Extra for Curb Ramps Each 4 $500 $2,000
51 Truncated Domes on New Surfaces Each 4 $300 $1,200

Wearing Surface Subtotal $1,269,026 $249,490.00

Permanent Traffic Control & Illumination
52 Pavement Line Removal LF 1,750 $1 $1,750
53 Pavement Legend Removal Each 2 $100 $200
54 Mono‐Directional White Type 1 Markers Each 14 $5 $70
55 Bi‐Directional Yellow Type 1 Markers Each 93 $5 $419
56 Pavement Legend, Type B‐HS: Arrows Each 4 $275 $1100
57 Pavement Legend, Type B‐HS: Bicycle Lane Stencil Each 11 $275 $3025
58 Pavement Bar, Type B‐HS S.F. 300 $10 $3000
59 Pavement Legend, Type B‐HS: Green Bike Path Driveway Marking S.F. 1400 $12 $16800
60 Remove Existing Signs L.S. 1 $650 $650
61 Remove and Reinstall Existing Signs L.S. 1 $1400 $1400
62 Sign Support Footings L.S. 1 $4140 $4140
63 Perforated Steet Square Tube Anchor Sign Supports L.S. 1 $7707 $7707
64 Signs, Standard Sheeting, Sheet Aluminum S.F. 105 $25 $2625
65 Pole Foundations L.S. 1 $70500 $70500
66 Luminaires, Lamps, and Ballasts L.S. 1 $31900 $31900
67 Switching, Conduit, and Wiring L.S. 1 $142500 $142500
68 Lighting Poles and Arms L.S. 1 $83400 $83400

Traffic Control / Illumination Subtotal $371,186 $0.00

Right of Way Development and Control
69 Water Quality Planter S.F. 11,175 $30.00 $335,250 67% $223,500.00 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 

width is 4.5'
70 Permanent Seeding Acre 0.4 $3,500.00 $1,540
71 Topsoil C.Y. 1,167.0 $50.00 $58,350 33% $19,450.00 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 

width is 9.0' including landscape strip.
72 Deciduous Trees, 2 Inch Caliper Each 92.0 $300.00 $27,600
73 Shrubs, #5 Container Each 291.0 $40.00 $11,640 67% $7,760.00 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 

width is 4.5'
74 Shrubs, #1 Container Each 1874.0 $15.00 $28,110 260 $3,900.00 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 
75 Groundcovers, #1 Container Each 2,990.0 $15.00 $44,850
76 Wetland Plants, Plugs Each 12291.0 $3.00 $36,873 1 $24,582.00 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 
77 Bark Mulch C.Y. 125.0 $55.00 $6,875 33% $2,291.67 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 

width is 9.0' including landscape strip.
78 Root Barrier L.F. 3720.0 $15.00 $55,800
79 Monument Boxes Each 7.0 $500.00 $3,500
80 Remove and Reinstall Mailbox Supports Each 16.0 $800.00 $12,800

ROW Development and Control $623,188 $281,483.67

Page 2 of 3

Page 53 of 129



ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY
UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
WWSP 

QUANTITY
WWSP SHARE 

TOTAL
Methodology for WWSP Share and WWSP Added

Water Supply System
81 Irrigation System L.S. 1 $70,000 $70,000 33% $23,333.33 3' width of filtration planter is within the 12' WWSP pipeline trench.  Total planter 

width is 9.0' including landscape strip.
82 6 Inch Potable Water, Complete L.F. 650 $40 $26,000 108 $4,320.00 9 ‐ 6" water services crossing over WWSP pipeline trench (12' width).
83 18 Inch Tapping Sleeve and 6 Inch Valve Assembly Each 15 $5,000.00 $75,000

84 Fire Hydrant Assembly Each 4 $2,000.00 $8,000 3 $6,000.00 3 fire hydrants located within WWWSP pipeline trench (12' width).
85 Relocate Existing Water Service Each 1 $2,500.00 $2,500

Water Supply System $181,500 $33,653.33

Miscellaneous Utilities
86 Joint Trench and Backfill L.F. 2,700 $15.00 $40,500 19% $7,653.54
87 5106 Vault for Power Each 5 $5,000.00 $25,000 19% $4,724.41
88 4 Inch Grey Schedule 40 PVC Conduit for Power L.F. 2,700 $3.00 $8,100 19% $1,530.71
89 4 Inch Fiberglass Conduit Bend for Power Each 5 $300.00 $1,500 19% $283.46

Miscellaneous Utilities $75,100 $14,192.13

Project Sub‐Total $5,473,110 $986,561

Extra Depth Excavation for WWSP Pipeline CY 0 $53.00 $0 3723 $197,312.60 Depth based on HHPR storm drainage analysis and unit cost based on Kinsman Road 
Extension (CIP #4004) bid tabulation average bids for general excavation and base 
aggregrate.

Project Total $5,473,110.00 $1,183,873.14

21.6%

Existing utilities over WWSP pipeline trench.  Shared cost for relocation. 
12 feet of WWSP pipeline trench over 63.5 feet of work area width (includes PUE 
width).

WWSP Share of Roadway Construction

Page 3 of 3

Page 54 of 129



EXHIBIT 5 – Spend Report Template 
Willamette Water Supply Program 

Construction

Subcontractor/ 
Vendor Tax ID

Subcontractor/ Vendor Name
 Previously 

Reported Spend 
(ALL) 

 2015 Q4 Spend 
 Previous + Current 

Quarter Spend 
Primary Goods 

or Service
Contact Name Contact Phone

Subcontractor/ 
Vendor Street 

Address

Subcontractor/ 
Vendor City

Subcontractor/ 
Vendor State

Subcontractor/ 
Vendor ZIP

Subcontractor/ 
Vendor County

Minority 
Owned

Women 
Owned

Veteran 
Owned

Service-
Disabled 
Veteran 
Owned

Local Owned
Small Business 

Owned

[your firm here] -$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
-$  FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE

Page 55 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 1 OF 6 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018   
N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2018 Minutes\11.19.18 DRAFT Council Minutes.docx 

 

A regular meeting of the Wilsonville City Council was held at the Wilsonville City Hall beginning 

at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, November 19, 2018. Mayor Knapp called the meeting to order at 7:12 

p.m., followed by roll call and the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

The following City Council members were present: 

 Mayor Knapp  

 Council President Starr 

 Councilor Stevens 

 Councilor Lehan 

 Councilor Akervall 

 

Staff present included: 

 Bryan Cosgrove, City Manager 

 Barbara Jacobson, City Attorney 

 Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 

 Scott Simonton, Fleet Manager 

Cathy Rodocker, Finance Director 

 Mark Ottenad, Public/Government Affairs Director  

 Dwight Brashear, SMART Director 

Mike McCarty, Parks and Recreation Director 

Brian Stevenson, Parks and Recreation Program Manager 

Bill Evans, Communications & Marketing Manager 

Zach Weigel, Capital Projects Engineering Manager 

Erica Behler, Recreation Coordinator 

Tod Blankenship, Parks Supervisor 

Miranda Bateschell, Planning Manager 

Nancy Kraushaar, Community Development Director 

 

Motion to approve the order of the agenda. 

 

Motion: Councilor Starr moved to approve the order of the agenda. Councilor Stevens 

seconded the motion. 

 

Vote:  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

SUMMARY OF VOTES 

Mayor Knapp   Yes  

Council President Starr Yes  

Councilor Stevens  Yes  

Councilor Lehan  Yes  

Councilor Akervall  Yes  

  

Page 56 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 2 OF 6 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018   
N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2018 Minutes\11.19.18 DRAFT Council Minutes.docx 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. Korean War Veterans Association, Oregon Trail Chapter 

 

Mark Ottenad, Public/Government Affairs Director introduced Bob Cassidy and Chuck Lusardi of 

the Korean War Veterans Association (KWVA), Oregon Trail Chapter. They presented a plaque 

of appreciation to Brian Stevenson and Parks & Recreation Team, along with a $1,000 check to 

support the Oregon Korean War Memorial  

 

CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda. It is also 

the time to address items that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing. Staff and 

the City Council will make every effort to respond to questions raised during citizens input before 

tonight's meeting ends or as quickly as possible thereafter. Please limit your comments to three 

minutes. 

 

None. 

 

MAYOR’S BUSINESS 

 

A. Small Business Saturday Proclamation 

 

Mayor Knapp read a proclamation proclaiming November 24, 2018 as Small Business Saturday. 

 

B. Upcoming Meetings  

 

Upcoming meetings were announced by the Mayor as well as the regional meetings he attended 

on behalf of the City.   

 

COUNCILOR COMMENTS  

 

A. Council President Starr  

 

Councilor Starr stated that even though Mr. Cassidy and Mr. Lusardi were no longer in the 

audience, he would still like to thank them for their service.  

 

B. Councilor Stevens   

 

Mentioned the following: 

 There is not a Library Board meeting in November; the next meeting scheduled for 

December 5, 2018.  

 French Prairie Bridge Taskforce meeting scheduled for December 5, 2018.   

 City offices closed Thursday and Friday for Thanksgiving. 

 Toy Drive occurring at the Parks and Recreation building located in Town Center Park 

until December 14, 2018. 

 

Page 57 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 3 OF 6 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018   
N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2018 Minutes\11.19.18 DRAFT Council Minutes.docx 

C. Councilor Lehan  

 

Councilor Lehan recalled how the Korean community, government and businesses pulled together 

to support the funding of the Korean War Memorial.  

 

Ms. Lehan noted that the Director of the Parks & Recreation Board sent her an email. The Parks 

& Recreation Board is requesting to be tasked with park safety issues.  

 

Councilor Lehan announced that on Tuesday, November 27, 2018 at 7:00 p.m., the City of 

Wilsonville would be holding a public hearing regarding the Aurora Airport. 

 

D. Councilor Akervall  

 

Wished all a happy Thanksgiving and shared that she is thankful for being a part of the Council. 

Ms. Akervall pointed out that the Tree Lighting is on Wednesday, November 28, 2018. Moreover, 

it would be an opportune time to drop off a gift at the Toy Drive. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Ms. Jacobson read the title of the Consent Agenda item into the record. 

 

A. Resolution No. 2712 

A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A 

Construction Contract With R.L. Reimers Company For The Willamette River Water 

Treatment Plant Surge Tank Project (Capital Improvement Project #9132).  

 

Motion: Councilor Starr moved to approve Resolution No. 2712. Councilor Lehan seconded 

the motion. 

 

Vote:  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

SUMMARY OF VOTES 

Mayor Knapp   Yes  

Council President Starr Yes  

Councilor Stevens  Yes  

Councilor Lehan  Yes  

Councilor Akervall  Yes  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

A. Resolution No. 2715 
A Resolution Authorizing A Supplemental Budget Adjustment For Fiscal Year 2018-19.  

 

Ms. Jacobson read the title of Resolution No. 2715 into the record. 

 

Mayor Knapp provided the public hearing format and opened the public hearing at 7:53 p.m.  

Page 58 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 4 OF 6 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018   
N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2018 Minutes\11.19.18 DRAFT Council Minutes.docx 

 

Finance Director Rodocker presented the staff report. 

 

The Mayor invited public testimony, seeing none he closed the public hearing at 7:55 p.m. 

 

Motion: Councilor Lehan moved to approve Resolution No. 2715. Councilor Akervall 

seconded the motion. 

 

Vote:  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

SUMMARY OF VOTES 

Mayor Knapp   Yes  

Council President Starr Yes  

Councilor Stevens  Yes  

Councilor Lehan  Yes  

Councilor Akervall  Yes 

 

NEW BUSINESS  
 

A. Resolution No. 2714 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing South Metro Area Regional Transit 

(SMART) To Purchase Two 35’ Battery Electric Buses And Charging Equipment From 

Proterra, Inc.  

 

Ms. Jacobson read the title of Resolution No. 2714 into the record. 

 

SMART Director Dwight Brashear along with Fleet Manager Scott Simonton presented on 

Resolution No. 2174. Staff stated that the contract is for two buses and charging equipment, which 

became available earlier than anticipated. 

 

City Manager Cosgrove informed that during the budget process staff could provide details on the 

cost savings associated with battery electric buses. 

 

Motion: Councilor Lehan moved to approve Resolution No. 2714. Councilor Akervall 

seconded the motion. 

 

Vote:  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

SUMMARY OF VOTES 

Mayor Knapp   Yes 

Council President Starr Yes 

Councilor Stevens  Yes 

Councilor Lehan  Yes 

Councilor Akervall  Yes 

  

Page 59 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 5 OF 6 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018   
N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2018 Minutes\11.19.18 DRAFT Council Minutes.docx 

 

A. Resolution No. 2716 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing Acquisition Of Real Property.  

 

Ms. Jacobson read the title of Resolution No. 2716 into the record. 

 

Staff members Miranda Bateschell, Planning Manager and Zach Weigel, Capital Projects 

Engineering Manager introduced themselves. Followed by City Attorney Jacobson updating 

Council with background on Resolution No. 2716.  

 

Staff members Bateschell and Weigel presented the staff report along with additional details on 

background. Staff acknowledged that this particular parcel has been on the market for a while now.  

 

City Attorney Jacobson stated for the record that the purchase price the City offered for the 

property is One Million Five Hundred Twelve Thousand Dollars ($1,512,000) which is the 

appraisal price. 

 

Staff described that through the Town Center Planning process they have learned that the 

community desires a gathering place. Additionally, the community wants this space to serve as a 

gateway, moving them into the Town Center area. Possible ideas for the space include a bike rack, 

and seating area. The exact design on the property unknown at this time, as design will begin at a 

later phase. 

 

Attorney Jacobson explained when the restricted covenants were written there was no thought of 

a bridge to be placed in this location. Legal continues to negotiate to have the restricted covenants 

reduced because if the project fails less covenants on the parcel will help in the selling of the parcel. 

 

Motion: Councilor Lehan moved to approve Resolution No. 2716. Councilor Akervall 

seconded the motion. 

 

Vote:  Motion carried 4-1. 

 

SUMMARY OF VOTES 

Mayor Knapp   Yes  

Council President Starr No  

Councilor Stevens  Yes  

Councilor Lehan  Yes  

Councilor Akervall  Yes  

 

CITY MANAGER’S BUSINESS 

 

The City Manager recognized Community Development Director Kraushaar and Council 

President Starr for their contributions to the City’s operations. Kraushaar is retiring at the end of 

November; Starr’s tenure on the Council concludes in December. 

  

Page 60 of 129



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 6 OF 6 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018   
N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2018 Minutes\11.19.18 DRAFT Council Minutes.docx 

 

LEGAL BUSINESS 

 

No report. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

Mayor Knapp adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m. 

 

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Tim Knapp, Mayor 

 

Page 61 of 129



Ordinance No. 834 Staff Report      Page 1 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Ord. No. 834\a. Ordinance No. 834 SR.docx 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT  
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2019 
 
 

Subject: Ordinance No. 834 – 1st Reading 
Comprehensive Plan & TSP Amendments related to 
Basalt Creek Concept Plan 
 
Staff Members: Kimberly Rybold, AICP, Associate 
Planner 
 
Department: Community Development  
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission 
Recommendation  

☒ Motion ☒ Approval 
☒ Public Hearing Date:  

April 1, 2019 
☐ Denial 

☒ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: 
April 1, 2019 

☐ None Forwarded 

☒ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: 
April 15, 2019 

☐ Not Applicable 

☐ Resolution Comments: At their February 13, 2019 meeting the 
Planning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval to the City Council. 
 

☐ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council adopt Ordinance No. 834 on first 
reading. 
Recommended Language for Motion: I move to approve Ordinance No. 834 on first 
reading. 
Project / Issue Relates To:  
☒Council Goals/Priorities: 
Basalt Creek Concept Plan 

☐Adopted Master Plan(s) 
 

☐Not Applicable 
 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL:  
Council will consider amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan & Transportation System 
Plan (TSP).  

Page 62 of 129



Ordinance No. 834 Staff Report      Page 2 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Ord. No. 834\a. Ordinance No. 834 SR.docx 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
In 2004, Metro added the Basalt Creek Planning Area to the region’s Urban Growth Boundary 
(UGB) in order to accommodate growth in industrial employment. The area consists of 
approximately 847 acres, located west of I-5 between the cities of Tualatin and Wilsonville, known 
as the Basalt Creek and West Railroad Areas and generally referred to as the “Basalt Creek 
Planning Area (BCPA).” In 2011, the two cities, Metro, and Washington County entered into an 
Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) that outlines the coordinated planning responsibilities 
regarding the BCPA. The project team worked with property owners, citizens, service providers, 
regional partners, and both Cities’ Planning Commissions and City Councils, to complete 
transportation, infrastructure and land use planning. The Cities of Tualatin and Wilsonville 
adopted the Basalt Creek Concept Plan (Attachment 2) in August 2018, which presents a unified 
framework for future development in the BCPA. The proposed Comprehensive Plan and 
Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) amendments will reflect the City’s adoption of the Basalt 
Creek Concept Plan and Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan. Per the 2018 Inter-
Governmental Agreement with Metro outlining the land use decision-making process between 
Wilsonville and Tualatin, the Comprehensive Plan amendments associated with the Basalt Creek 
Concept Plan must be adopted by May 3, 2019. 
  
The proposed Comprehensive Plan and TSP amendments will reflect Wilsonville’s planning 
authority in Basalt Creek, and will set the stage for future master planning and implementation 
efforts in this area. The addition of projects from the Basalt Creek Concept Plan and Transportation 
Refinement Plan to the City’s TSP will also ensure consistency between the City and County’s 
TSPs.  
 
The proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Attachment 1, Exhibit A) include: 

• Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan Map to apply the Industrial land use designation 
to Basalt Creek and the Coffee Creek Industrial Area, consistent with anticipated 
Washington County and City of Wilsonville Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA) 
revisions. 

• Amendments to the Area of Special Concern Map to include Wilsonville’s portion of the 
Basalt Creek Planning Area, including the West Railroad Area. 

• Amendments to the language of the Area of Special Concern section to provide guidance 
on future development and implementation planning efforts for Wilsonville’s portion of 
the Basalt Creek Planning Area and West Railroad Area. 

• Amendments to the language of the Industrial Development Policies section to include 
important principles from the Concept Plan for development of the BCPA. 

The proposed TSP Amendments (Attachment 1, Exhibit B) will be added to the Higher Priority 
Projects list in the TSP: 

• Current alignment of 124th Avenue extension and the Basalt Creek Parkway extension 
from 124th Avenue to Boones Ferry Road. 

• Grahams Ferry Road widening to three lanes from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway. 
• Boones Ferry widening to 5-lanes from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway. 
• Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue Intersection access management project. 
• Second southbound right turn lane on the ramp at Boones Ferry Road/I-5 Southbound. 
• Basalt Creek Canyon and I-5 Easement trail projects on the bicycle/pedestrian map. 

Page 63 of 129



Ordinance No. 834 Staff Report      Page 3 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Ord. No. 834\a. Ordinance No. 834 SR.docx 

• Garden Acres Road (from Grahams Ferry Road to Ridder Road) designation as a Minor 
Arterial. 

• Selected Brown Road Extension Alignment to 5th Street. 
• Updated figures to show new City of Wilsonville jurisdiction.  

 
The following project will also be added to the Additional Planned Projects list in the TSP: 

• Day Road overcrossing (Boones Ferry Road to Elligsen Road) to the additional planned 
project list.  
 

City staff held a work session with the Planning Commission on December 12, 2018 to seek 
feedback on the proposed amendments. On February 13, 2019, a public hearing was held before 
the Planning Commission for consideration of a recommendation to the City Council on the 
Comprehensive Plan and TSP amendments. 
 
The proposed TSP amendments in Attachment 1, Exhibit B include one modification from the 
Planning Commission recommendation. The cost estimate for Project RE-P15, listed in Table 5-
9, has been changed from “Developer Funded” to $4,000,000 with a brief statement of project 
need added to the “Why Not Higher Priority?” column. While this project is a local road that would 
typically be funded by development, uncertainty surrounding the timing of development relative 
to the need for this connection, resulting from the anticipated failure of the Pioneer Court / Boones 
Ferry Road intersection, may require the City to construct this improvement prior to adjacent 
development.   
 
Additionally, staff from the City and Washington County coordinated to draft an update to the 
Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA) to include the Basalt Creek Planning Area to reflect the 
future boundary between Wilsonville and Tualatin as determined through the Concept Plan, giving 
Wilsonville planning authority over the portion of the BCPA south of the Basalt Creek Parkway 
and SW Greenhill Lane. City Council reviewed the UPAA amendments at a work session on 
February 21, and approved Resolution No. 2726 on March 4 authorizing the Mayor to execute this 
UPAA. Washington County is scheduled for hearings on March 20 and April 16 to adopt the new 
UPAA. 
 
EXPECTED RESULTS:  
Adoption of the Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and TSP Amendments and an updated UPAA 
with Washington County will set the stage for the next great business district in Wilsonville. 
 
TIMELINE: 
The public hearing and first reading is scheduled for April 1, 2019, with a second reading of the 
Ordinance on April 15. Washington County is expected to adopt the revised UPAA on April 16. 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS:  
The fiscal year budget allocated $30,000 for CIP #3000 for staff time to adopt the Comprehensive 
Plan Amendments. An additional $15,000 was requested in March as a supplemental budget 
adjustment. A portion of the professional services funds from the Planning Division budget will 
cover consultant time to prepare the TSP Amendments.   
  

Page 64 of 129



Ordinance No. 834 Staff Report      Page 4 of 4 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Ord. No. 834\a. Ordinance No. 834 SR.docx 

 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: CAR  Date: 3/20/2019 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: BAJ  Date: 3/25/2019 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:   
The concept planning process included participation from affected residents, businesses, and 
property owners. The City’s website is updated to reflect the most recent work and staff sent notice 
of the amendments to the interested parties list and property owners via email and U.S. postal mail. 
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY:  
The Basalt Creek area is important for the long-term growth of Tualatin, Wilsonville, and the 
Metro region. The Basalt Creek area presents an opportunity to integrate jobs and housing, develop 
efficient transportation and utility systems, create an attractive residential and business 
community, incorporate natural resource areas, and provide recreational opportunities as 
community amenities and assets. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The City Council may provide recommendations and modifications to the Comprehensive Plan 
and TSP Amendments.  
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT:   
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Attachment 1: Ordinance No. 834 
Exhibits: 

A. Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A – Comprehensive Plan Text and Map Amendments 
B. Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B – Transportation System Plan Amendments 
C. Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit C – Planning Commission Record 

2. Attachment 2: Basalt Creek Concept Plan and Supporting Documentation: 
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/2
7721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf 

 

Page 65 of 129

https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 834  Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 834 
 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE APPROVING 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AND MAP AMENDMENTS AND 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN AMENDMENTS RELATED TO THE BASALT 
CREEK CONCEPT PLAN AND APPROVING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP 
AMENDMENT RELATED TO THE COFFEE CREEK MASTER PLAN. 
 
 

WHEREAS, in 2004, the Metro Council added two areas located generally between the 

cities of Wilsonville and Tualatin to the Metro Urban Growth Boundary (“UGB”) in Metro 

Ordinance No. 04-1040B to meet an identified industrial land need; and  

WHEREAS, the above-described two areas are known as the Basalt Creek and West 

Railroad Planning Areas which are generally referred to as the “Basalt Creek Planning Area;” and  

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City of Wilsonville approved Resolution No. 2293 authorizing an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (“2011 IGA”) with Metro, Washington County, and the City of 

Tualatin (the “Parties”) to engage in concept planning for the Basalt Creek Planning Area; and 

WHEREAS, the above Parties agreed to memorialize and endorse the recommendations 

and results of the 2013 Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan, and in 2013 the City of 

Wilsonville approved Resolution No. 2435 acknowledging the Basalt Creek Transportation 

Refinement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, from October 2013 through October 2016, the Wilsonville and Tualatin City 

Councils held five joint Council work sessions considering several boundary and land use 

alternatives for the Basalt Creek Planning Area; and 

WHEREAS, over that same time period, two public workshops were held and the 

Wilsonville and Tualatin Planning Commissions and City Councils convened several work 

sessions; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville approved Resolution No. 2657 authorizing an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (“2017 IGA”) with Metro, Washington County, and the City of 

Tualatin to ask Metro to make an arbitration determination on the appropriate designation of the 

land use for an area within the Basalt Creek Planning Area that consists of approximately 52 net 

acres of land, commonly referred to as the “Central Subarea;” and  

Page 66 of 129



ORDINANCE NO. 834  Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, in the 2017 IGA, the City agreed to pass a Resolution adopting the Concept 

Plan, reflecting the Metro determination, within 120 days after the date Metro’s decision becomes 

final and effective, and to adopt an Ordinance amending the City’s Comprehensive Plan within 

one year after the Metro determination; and 

WHEREAS, Metro made its determination on April 19, 2018 in accordance with the 2017 

IGA and adopted Resolution 18-4885 on May 3, 2018 acknowledging that decision and beginning 

the 120-day time period requiring the City to adopt the Basalt Creek Concept Plan and one year to 

adopt comprehensive plan amendments; and 

WHEREAS, on August 6, 2018, the City of Wilsonville approved Resolution No. 2697 

acknowledging the Basalt Creek Concept Plan; and 

WHEREAS, with respect to the Coffee Creek Industrial Area, on March 4, 2019, the City 

Council adopted Resolution No. 2726, amending the Urban Planning Area Agreement, which 

expands the City of Wilsonville Urban Planning Area Boundary and, among other things, removes 

the condition requiring annexation of property in Coffee Creek prior to application of a City 

Comprehensive Plan Map designation and thus allowing the City to include the Coffee Creek 

Industrial Area in its Comprehensive Plan Map; and 

WHEREAS, in April 2019, the City and Washington County anticipate executing the 

Urban Planning Area Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2018 the Wilsonville Planning Commission held a work 

session to discuss and take public testimony on the Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and 

Transportation System Plan amendments; and 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2019 the Wilsonville City Council held a work session to 

discuss the Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and Transportation System Plan amendments and 

Urban Planning Area Agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, following the timely mailing and publication of the required notice, the 

Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on February 13, 2019, wherein the Commission 

received public testimony, staff reports and input, and Attachments and Exhibits, and thereafter 

deliberated and voted unanimously to approve Resolution No. LP19-0001 recommending approval 

to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the record of the aforementioned Planning Commission action and 

recommendation is marked Exhibit C, attached and incorporated herein; and 

Page 67 of 129



ORDINANCE NO. 834  Page 3 of 4 

WHEREAS, following the Planning Commission public hearing, the Wilsonville Planning 

Director forwarded the recommended Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and Transportation 

System Plan amendments to the City Council, along with a staff report and attachments, in 

accordance with the public hearing and notice procedures that are set forth in Sections 4.008, 

4.011, 4.012, and 4.198 of the Wilsonville Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after Public Hearing Notices were provided to a list of 

interested parties, property owners, and affected agencies, and posted in three locations throughout 

the City and on the City website, held a public hearing on April 1, 2019 to review the proposed 

Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and Transportation System Plan amendments, and to gather 

additional testimony and evidence regarding the proposal; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has afforded all interested parties an opportunity to be heard 

on this subject and has entered all available evidence and testimony into the public record of their 

proceeding; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has duly considered the subject, including the Planning 

Commission recommendations and all the exhibits and testimony introduced and offered by all 

interested parties; 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. FINDINGS. 

The above-recited findings are adopted and incorporated by reference herein as 

findings and conclusions of Resolution No. LP19-0001, which includes the staff report 

and attachments (Exhibit C). The City Council further finds and concludes that the 

adoption of the proposed Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and Transportation System 

Plan amendments are necessary to help protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the municipality by planning that will support the development of employment lands 

within the City limits. 

2. DETERMINATION. 

Based on such findings, the City Council hereby adopts Comprehensive Plan text and 

Comprehensive Plan Map amendments, attached hereto and marked as Exhibit A, and 

Transportation System Plan amendments, attached hereto and marked as Exhibit B, 

and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. The City Recorder is hereby 

Page 68 of 129



ORDINANCE NO. 834  Page 4 of 4 

directed to prepare final Comprehensive Plan formatting to make sure such style and 

conforming changes match the format and style of the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE. 

This Ordinance shall be declared to be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from 

the date of final passage and approval. 

 
 SUBMITTED to the Wilsonville City Council and read for the first time at a regular 

meeting thereof on the 1st day of April, 2019, and scheduled for a second reading at a regular 

meeting of the Council on the 15th day of April, 2019, commencing at the hour of 7:00 P.M. at the 

Wilsonville City Hall.  

 

      _________________________________  
      Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 
 
 ENACTED by the City Council on the 15th day of April, 2019 by the following votes: 
  
Yes:___ No: ___ 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 
 
 
 DATED and signed by the Mayor this   day of April, 2019. 
 
 
             
      TIM KNAPP, Mayor 
 
SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
Mayor Knapp  
Council President Akervall  
Councilor Stevens  
Councilor Lehan  
Councilor West 
 
Exhibits:  

A. Comprehensive Plan Text and Map Amendments 
B. Transportation System Plan Amendments 
C. Planning Commission Record 

Page 69 of 129



Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan 
Proposed Amendments associated with Basalt Creek: February 6, 2019 

Page 1 of 7

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Wilsonville is basically a compact City, for this reason all industrial development should be 

compatible with adjacent or nearby commercial and/or residential areas.  Therefore, there is little 

need for more than one industrial designation.  For all practical purposes, all development should 

be guided by the same general standards; dealing with intensity, etc.  

Policy 4.1.3 City of Wilsonville shall encourage light industry compatible with the 

residential and urban nature of the City. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.a   Develop an attractive and economically sound community. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.b   Maintain high-quality industrial development that enhances the 

livability of the area and promotes diversified economic growth and a broad tax base. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.c   Favor capital intensive, rather than labor intensive, industries 

within the City. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.d   Encourage industries interested in and willing to participate in 

development and preservation of a high-quality environment.  Continue to require 

adherence to performance standards for all industrial operations within the City. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.e   Site industries where they can take advantage of existing 

transportation corridors such as the freeway, river, and railroad. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.f   Encourage a diversity of industries compatible with the Plan to 

provide a variety of jobs for the citizens of the City and the local area. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.g   Encourage energy-efficient, low-pollution industries. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.h   The City, in accordance with Title 4 of the Metro Urban 

Growth Management Functional Plan, supports appropriate retail development within 

Employment and Industrial Areas.  Employment and Industrial areas are expected to 

include some limited retail commercial uses, primarily to serve the needs of people 

working or living in the immediate Employment or Industrial Areas, as well as office 

complexes housing technology-based industries.  Where the City has already designated 

land for commercial development within Metro’s employment areas, the City has been 

exempted from Metro development standards. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.i   The City shall limit the maximum amount of square footage of 

gross leasable retail area per building or business in areas designated for industrial 

development.  In order to assure compliance with Metro’s standards for the development 

of industrial areas, retail uses with more than 60,000 square feet of gross leasable floor 

Proposed additions to the
Comprehensive Plan text are
shown in purple.

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A
Page 70 of 129



Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan 
Proposed Amendments associated with Basalt Creek: February 6, 2019 

Page 2 of 7

area per building or business shall not be permitted in areas designated for industrial 

development. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.j   All industrial areas will be developed in a manner consistent 

with industrial planned developments in Wilsonville.  Non-industrial uses may be allowed 

within a Planned Development Industrial Zone, provided that those non-industrial uses do 

not limit the industrial development potential of the area.   

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.k   Encourage high-growth employment industries in which the 

City is already competitive, including advanced manufacturing, corporate and professional 

services, and health care and medical-related fields. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.l   Encourage growth in industrial business types prevalent in the 

region but new to the City, such as “craft” manufacturing (such as bicycle manufacturing, 

breweries, distilleries). Consider integrating live/work units into “craft” manufacturing 

areas.  

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.m   Encourage new industrial development that contributes to 

employment districts with a high density of jobs and a range of employment opportunities. 

Implementation Measure 4.1.3.n   Encourage development that incorporates active urban green 

spaces, such as trails, linear parks, and pocket parks, and use vegetation for buffering 

where possible.  

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A
Page 71 of 129



Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan 
Proposed Amendments associated with Basalt Creek: February 6, 2019 

Page 3 of 7 

AREAS OF SPECIAL CONCERN 

AREA M 

This area, known as Basalt Creek, is located to the northwest of Wilsonville in Washington 

County. The area is generally oriented east-west, and is bound by Interstate 5 (I-5) to the east, 

the Portland and Western Railroad (PNWR) and the Coffee Creek Correctional Facility to the 

west, and Clay Street and Day Road to the south. The northern boundary is the location of the 

Basalt Creek Parkway, which extends from 124th Avenue and connects to Grahams Ferry 

Road. The Basalt Creek Parkway will run east-west between Grahams Ferry Road and Boones 

Ferry Road, and eventually extend over I-5. The Parkway is designed as a high-capacity major 

freight arterial with limited access to local streets providing industrial access between Tualatin, 

Sherwood, and Wilsonville. 

The primary existing land uses in Basalt Creek are rural agriculture, industrial and rural 

residential consisting of low-density single-family housing. South of the area within the City of 

Wilsonville are existing and planned commercial, office, and industrial uses. The employment 

areas around Commerce Circle, Ridder Road, and 95th Avenue include advanced 

manufacturing, clean tech, warehouse, distribution, and logistics businesses. Abutting Area M 

along the south side of Day Road is the Coffee Creek Industrial Area, which has an adopted 

Master Plan and Industrial Form-based Code to enable the creation of a high-caliber business 

district.  

The Cities of Wilsonville and Tualatin prepared the Basalt Creek Concept Plan to provide a 

framework for development and the provision of services in the area between the two cities. 

Land uses planned within the Wilsonville portion of Basalt Creek include a mix of employment 

development types and modest opportunities for live/work housing to support the nearby 

employment areas. The Concept Plan identifies three land use categories within Basalt Creek.  

 High Tech Employment District. Most of the buildable acres in this area are devoted

to a mix of higher density employment land.  The High Tech Employment District is

expected to accommodate jobs in manufacturing and high tech, with warehousing

components. This land use is in the southern and eastern sections of the area, covering

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A
Page 72 of 129



Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan 
Proposed Amendments associated with Basalt Creek: February 6, 2019 

Page 4 of 7 

all land east of Boones Ferry Road, and most of the land south of Clay Street, 

extending to Day Road and bordered to the west by Coffee Creek Correctional 

Facility. 

 Craft Industrial. The southwest corner of the intersection of Boones Ferry Road and

the future Basalt Creek Parkway is planned as Craft Industrial, which allows for a mix

of smaller scale commercial uses. This area allows less than 20 percent residential use

and is expected to accommodate live/work units. This development responds to the

topography on these parcels and their location directly south from residential land and

southwest of the neighborhood commercial node north of the Basalt Creek Parkway.

Craft Industrial provides a transition to the higher intensity employment uses to the

south.

 Light Industrial District. This land is located along the southern edge of the Basalt

Creek Parkway just north of the Coffee Creek Correctional Facility and will

accommodate jobs primarily in warehousing and light manufacturing.

The 2013 Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan (TRP) sets the layout of major new roads 

and improvements for the area. As the area develops, property owners will plan and build local 

roads connecting to this network. These roadway improvements will include enhanced bike and 

pedestrian facilities and connections to the future SMART transit system. 

Design Objectives 

1. Consider adoption of a form-based code, similar to that adopted in the Coffee Creek

Industrial Area, for new industrial development located in Basalt Creek. A form-based

code in Basalt Creek would guide the development of a well-designed and uniquely

attractive business community, while providing flexibility for development.

2. Protect key natural resources and sensitive areas while making recreational

opportunities accessible by integrating the new parkland, open spaces, natural areas

and trails in Basalt Creek into existing regional networks. The area has distinctive

natural features, particularly its namesake - Basalt Creek - and the surrounding

wetlands habitat running north-south through the eastern half of the area.

Development should protect, enhance, and provide access to these natural resources.

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A
Page 73 of 129



Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan 
Proposed Amendments associated with Basalt Creek: February 6, 2019 

Page 5 of 7

3. Locate north to south trails near the Basalt Creek Canyon and provide bicycle

connections that would connect to other cities and trail systems, serving as an asset for

both residents and employees in the area.

4. Provide strong transit access to support employment within Basalt Creek. Integrate

transit access with the bike, pedestrian, and trail services at key access points along

Grahams Ferry Road, Boones Ferry Road, Day Road, SMART Central, and the Coffee

Creek Correctional Facility.

AREA N  

This area, known as West Railroad, is south of the Basalt Creek Parkway and in City of 

Wilsonville jurisdiction. The West Railroad area is divided from the Basalt Creek area by the 

Portland and Western Railroad (PNWR) and the Coffee Creek Correctional Facility. The area is 

heavily constrained by wetlands habitat, steep slopes, limited access, and fragmented property 

ownership. Without addressing any of these constraints, development potential is limited, and 

initial estimates show it would be costly to serve this area with adequate water, sewer, and 

transportation infrastructure. However, once development and the extension of infrastructure 

occurs in the rest of Basalt Creek as well as the Coffee Creek Industrial Area, additional analysis 

should be completed on infrastructure service costs and appropriate land uses. The area also has 

potential for resource conservation and future public access to nature. The area will require 

master planning before any development occurs. 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A
Page 74 of 129



ELLIGSEN RD

AIR
PO

RT
 RD

5TH ST

EST
ON

IA 
AV

E

LAKE CT

BOECKMAN RD

MILEY RD

WILSONVILLE RD

ORLE
AN

S A
V E

§̈¦5

ST MORITZ LOOP

MONT BLANC ST

BUTTE

VILLE
RD

EIL
ERS

 RD

BO
ON

ES 
FER

RY 
RD

LAKE DR

WILS
ON

VIL
LE 

RD

WI
LSO

NV
ILLE

 RD

COLEMANLP

TOOZE RD

BRUSSELS LN

CH
IA LOOP

VILLE
BOIS D

R N

CA
NY

ON
 CR

EEK
 RD

CHAMPOEG
DR

PARKWOOD LN

EDGEW
ATE

R E

DAVOS LN

BARCELONA ST

COLLIN
A LN

VALENCIA LN

CAMPANILE LN

AM
STE

RD
AM

 AV
E

BARBER ST

MCDONALD DR

OLD WILSONVI L
LE

RD

SANMIGUEL LN

MO
NT

E C
AR

LO
AVE

MEEK LN

XEROX DR

4TH ST

MARINERS DR

COFFEE LAKE DR

KALYCA ST

JESSICA ST

MC
GR

AW
 AV

E

GATE POST CT

WILLO
W

CR
EEK

DR

ASHLAND LOOP

BROCKWAY DR

BR
OW

NR
D

OREPAC AVE

METOLIUS LN

65T
H A

VE

OLD FARM
RD

SERENI TYWAY

BECKE RD

OSLO ST

MURRAY ST

MAIN ST

PRINTER PKWY

SAN
 RE

MO
 AV

E

KIN
GS

 CT

RO GU E LN

WILLAMETTE WAY W

ATHENS LN

MO
NT

EB
ELL

O 
DR

FAIRWAY DR

SUMMERTON ST

AMALFI LN

DAYBREAK ST

GUISS WAY

MEADOWS PKWY
MEADOWSCT

MCKENZIECT E

LISBON ST

LOU

VONNE DR

O AK PATCH CT

KAME TERRACECT

SERENE PL

TRANQUIL WAY

FIR
 AV

E

CARMEL CIR

MO
REY CT

PLEASANT
PL TENNIS CT

ALTA CT

LYNNWOODCT

GLENWOOD CT

NAPL
ES D

R

LAKE BLUFF CT

BOONESFERRYRD

LAFAY
ETT

EWAY

STRATFORDCT

RO
GU

E C
T

PARKVIEW DR

VILLAGE
CREST CT

RAVENNA LOOP

GRENOBLE ST

SURREY ST

EAST LAKE CT

GRAHAMS FERRY RD

BUNKER
POST CT

EN
GL

E S
T

ADVANCE RD

QU
EEN

S
CT

GREENWAY DR

HIGHLAND CT

CARRIAGE OAKS LN

RO
ME AV
E

ICE
LAN

D A
VE

ST
TR

OP
EZ

AV
E

PAULINA DR

COFFEE LAKE DR

HUNT CT

2ND ST

WHEATLAND
RUN

AR
GY

LE 
AV

E

COMO DR

BEL
FAS

T S
T

MOR
GA

NS
T

NU
TTI

NG
RD

LOVE CT

ARMITAGE
PL

ROCKBRIDGE
ST

NORMANDY LN

SAC A JAWEA WAY

GRASS CTEVERGREEN AVE

RACQUET CT

LOWRIE
LN

LANDOVER DR

GORDONS RUN

YO
SEM

ITE
WA

Y

VE
NE

ZIA
LN

FILBERT ST

WAG
NE

RS
T

ZURICH ST

TE R
RE

NE
LN

PARKWOOD
CT

ACORN ST

BERLIN AVE

DENMARK ST

WALLOWA CT

OT
TO

LN

BELNAP CT

MOR
GA

N C
T

ROLAND CT

DU
ND

EE
LN

ASHTON CIR

SANDALWOOD DR

CA
STI

NG
 ST

MIAMI

4TH ST

WINCHESTERWAY

ARTHUR CT

WILSO
N LN

BURNS WAY

TAUCHMAN ST

BERGEN LN

GLE
NBROOK

CT

TOULOUSE ST

VERDUN LOOP

GL
AC

IER WA
Y

TOURNAMENT
CT

RIVIERA LN

NE
HA

L EM
CT

ALDERCREST CT

SCO
TT 

LN

COUNTRY VIEW LOOP

FALLEN LEAF ST

JACK BURNS BLVD

ROBBY ST

ARBOR LAKE CT

EAST LAKE PT

HO LLY LN

SUN PL

TET
ON

 W
AY

MA
GN

OL
IA

AV
E

ALTA LN

MI
LAN

O L
N

SICI
LY S

T

DUBLIN ST

GAYLORD LN

FLORES ST

IRON HORSE ST

WOODBRIDGE CT

HE
ATH

ER
 PL

PRESTWICK CT

HOLLYBROOK CT

BEL
VID

ERE
WAY

MC
LEO

D S
T COLV IN LN

SEELY AVE

PIONEER CT

RIDDER RD

110
TH

AV
E

LAKESIDE DR

TONQUIN RD

MOFFITT DR

FOUNTAIN LAKE
DR

CA
NY

ON
 CR

EEK
 RD

 S

ROGER 
BLV

D

ARBOR GLEN CT

ST HELENS DR

LAN
CEL

OT
 LN

ILLAHEE DR

SAN
 RE

MO
 CT

SALISH LN

WIEDEMANN RD

CAHALIN RD

KOLBE
LN

BRYTON CT

OAKLEAF LOOP

GA
RD

EN
 AC

RE
S R

D

LONDON LN

WO
OD

 AV
E

JACKSON
WA

Y

RIVER VISTA LN

HILLMAN CT

BLU EMEADOW LN

NIKE DR

CITIZENS DR

BOUCHAINE CT

63R
D A

VE

BOUCHAINE ST

HAZEL ST

SANDY CT

BAILEY ST

DAY RD

TOWN CENTERLOOPE

GORDON LN

MAXINE LN

B EA UM
ON

T A
VE

KRUSE RD

MIDDLE GREEN
S RD

KAHLE RD

KIN
SM

AN
 RD

SUNRIDGE CT

KNOLLWOOD CT

82N
D A

VE

PEYTON LN

ELLIGSEN WAY

EASTGATE DR

VO
LLE

Y S
T

FROG POND LN

SCHROEDER WAY

KAME TER

GAG
E RD

CA
NY

ON
CR

EEK
RD

N

CLUTTER ST

TOOZE RD

WILDCAT WAY

GREENHILL LN

FREEMAN DR

BRIAR PATCH LN

BELL RD

MALLOY WAY

CLAY ST

BROWNDALE FARM RD

HOMESTEADER RD

MONTGOMERY WAY

RIVERVIEW LN

WESTFALL RD

DOW NSP
OS

T R
D

GR
AH

AM
S F

ER
RY

 RD

GR
AH

AM
S F

ERR
Y R

D

ARMITAGER D

ARMITAGE RD

WILLAMETTE WAY E

WILLA
ME

TTE
WA

Y E

PARKWAY AVE

PAR
KW

AY 
AV

E

GENEV A
LOOP

YO
SEM

ITE
ST

MO
RN

ING
SID

E A
VE

A SH MEADOWS BLVD

FRENCH PRAIRIE RD

FRENCH PRAIRIE RD

RO
SE LN

RO
SE

LN

BO
BE

RG
 RD

STOCKHOLM DR

COUNTRY V IE W
LN

ARBOR

GLEN LO OP

CHARLOTTE LN

CURRY DR

PAL
ERM

O ST

PAL
ERM

O S
T

ORCHARD DR

ORCHARD DR

MEADOWS LOOP

ME
AD

OW
S L

OO
P

COURTSIDE DR

COURTSIDE DR

COPPER CREE K
LO O P

HO
LLY

 ST

TAM
I LO

OP

BOONES BEND RD

BOONES BEN
D RD

ASHLAND DR

TOWN CENTER LOOP W

PARIS AVE

ASH MEAD OWS CIR

VLAHOS DR

LAKESIDE LO
OP

CAMELOT ST

CAMELOT ST

LAKE POINT CT

VILLA
GE

CR
EST

LN

ADEN
AVE

ARBOR LAKE DR

ARBOR LAKE DR

BO
ON

ES 
FER

RY 
RD

BO
ON

ES 
FER

RY 
RD

THO
RNTON DR

THORNTON DR

VILLE
BOIS DR S

RE
BEK

AH
ST

ASH MEADOWS RD CRESTWOODDRCARINTHIACIR

JULIETTE DR

95T
H A

VE

95T
HA

VE

PARKWAY CENTER DR

MATZEN DR

MOLALLA BEND RD

LAUSANNE ST

LAU
SAN

NE
ST

EDG
EWATER W

KENSINGTON DR

STA
FFO

RD
 RD

STA
FFO

RD
 RD

COSTA
CIR

W

EMERY
CIR

FLY
NN

 ST

EDGEWOOD CT

EST
ATE

S P
OS

T R
D

CASCADE LOOP

CASCADE LOOP

GWEN DR

OLYMPIC DR

COSTA CIRE

COSTA CIR E

PAR
KW

AY
AV

E

MEMORIAL DR

MEADOWBROO
K L

N

RU
TH

 ST

RUTH ST

CEDAR
P OIN TE DR

VALE CT

YOU
NG

WAY

VILLAGE GREENS
CIR

RO
SE 

LN

WIMBLEDON CI R S

MO
REY

 LN

PAR
KW

AY 
CT

IND
UST

RIA
L W

AY

MOREY LN

KINSMAN RD

SAL
MO

N L
N

MADRID LOOP

RO
BE

RT

BURNS DR

PARK PL

CYP
RES

S P
T

FERNBROOK

CT

MERLIN CT

ILLAHEE CT

MORGAN RD

SUNNYSIDE

DR

GR
AH

AM
RD

V ILLAGE GREEN CT

60T
H A

VE

FA IRWA Y VIL
LAG

E
LOOP

COMMERCE CIR

EVERGRE E N CT

WIMBLEDON CIR N

PREAKNESS CHURCHILL

WATERFORDLOOP

CHARBONNEA U DR

METO L IUS
LO

OP

CHANTILLY

JAMAICA

CO
LO

R C
ON

NE
CT

ION

LAWNVIEW CIR

PR
AIR

IE V
IEW

 DR

ARROWHEAD

CREEK LN

ROANOKE DR

PRAHL RD

THOMAS ST

§̈¦5

Clackamas Co.
Washington Co. Cla

cka
ma

s C
o.Wa

shi
ngt

on
 Co

.

Willamette River

Area G

Area K Area F

Area D
Area C

Area B Area E

Area A

Area I

Area J

Area N

Area M

Disclaimer: The City of Wilsonville makes no representations,
express or implied, as to the accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of the information displayed. Data errors and
omissions may exist in map and report. This map is not
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. Please
contact the City of Wilsonville Planning Division to verify
report information is complete and accurate.February 2019

Map Legend
County Boundary

Comprehensive Plan Areas of Special Concern

0 0.5
Mile

Urban Growth Boundary
City Boundary

Taxlots
Area of Special Concern

This map is to be used in conjunction with
written text provided in the Wilsonville
Comprehensive Plan.

Page 6 of 7

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A

Page 75 of 129



§̈¦5

BOONES FERRYRD

SUN
PL

HE
ATH

ER
PL

PIONEER CT

RIDDER RD

CAHALIN RD

GA
RD

EN
 AC

RE
S R

D

DAY RD

ELLIGSEN WAY

CLUTTER ST

GREENHILL LN

FREEMAN DR

CLAY ST

GR
AH

AM
S F

ER
RY

 RD

GR
AH

AM
S F

ERR
Y R

D

BO
ON

ES 
FER

RY
 RD

95T
H A

VE
PARKWAY CENTER DR

PAR
KW

AY
AV

E
RO

BE
RT

BURNS DR

COMMERCECIR

Clackamas Co.
Washington Co.

Public

Commercial

Commercial

Public

Industrial

Industrial
Industrial

CommercialIndustrial

Industrial

February 2019

Land Use Designations
County Boundary

Comprehensive Plan Map
Amendments

0 0.25
Mile

Urban Growth Boundary
City Boundary

Taxlots

Commercial
Industrial
Public

Disclaimer: The City of Wilsonville makes
no representations, express or implied, as
to the accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of the information displayed.
Data errors and omissions may exist in
map and report. This map is not suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. Please contact the City of
Wilsonville Planning Division to verify
report information is complete and
accurate.

Basalt Creek Planning Area and 
Coffee Creek Industrial Area

Basalt Creek 
Planning Area

Coffee Creek
Industrial Area

Page 7 of 7

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit A

Page 76 of 129



 

 

   

117 Commercial Street NE 
Suite 310 
Salem, OR 97301 
503.391.8773 
www.dksassociates.com 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE:  February 5, 2019 
 
TO:    Miranda Bateschell, Planning Manager | City of Wilsonville 
  Zach Weigel, Capital Projects Engineering Manager | City of Wilsonville 

 
FROM:  Scott Mansur, P.E., PTOE | DKS Associates 
 Jenna Hills, E.I. |DKS Associates 
 
SUBJECT: Wilsonville Transportation System Plan (TSP) Amendment Summary P18197-001 

 

The Basalt Creek Concept Plan was formally adopted by the City of Wilsonville on August 6, 2018.  A 
summary of the Basalt Creek Analysis is attached to memorandum for reference. This memorandum 
discusses necessary amendments to the City of Wilsonville’s Transportation System Plan (TSP) based on 
transportation requirements and projects identified in the plan. This memorandum also documents other 
amendments to the TSP based on general updates and a recent City Council Resolution. The TSP changes 
include: 

Basalt Creek Concept Plan  

 Show the current alignment of 124th Avenue extension and add the Basalt Creek Parkway 
extension project from 124th Avenue to Boones Ferry Road on the higher priority project list. 

 Add the Basalt Creek Parkway overcrossing of I-5 to the additional planned project list. 

 Add the Day Road overcrossing (Boones Ferry Road to Elligsen Road) to the additional planned 
project list (unfunded).  

 Add Boones Ferry Road widening to 5-lanes from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway on the 
higher priority project list. 

 Update Grahams Ferry Road widening to three lanes from Day Road to Basalt Creek Pkwy and 
move to the higher priority project list. 

 Update project UU-P4 text under “Why Not Higher Priority” to recognize the function of 
Grahams Ferry Road between Day and Clutter to serve Coffee Creek Industrial area. 

 Add the Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue Intersection access management project on the higher 
priority project list. 

 Add Basalt Creek Canyon and the I-5 Easement trail projects to the bicycle/pedestrian map. 
 

 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 77 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 2 of 8 

General Updates 
 Update Figure 3-1 to show Garden Acres Road, Clutter Road, and Advance Road to 60th Avenue 

as City of Wilsonville jurisdiction. 

 Update Figure 3-2 to show Garden Acres Road (from Grahams Ferry Road to Ridder Road) as a 
Minor Arterial and Ridder Road (from Garden Acres Road to Kinsman Road) as a Minor Arterial.  

 Add a second southbound right turn lane on the ramp at Boones Ferry Road/I-5 Southbound on 
the higher priority project list. 

 Update the Brown Road Extension Alignment to 5th Street that was selected and approved by 
Wilsonville City Council Resolution No. 2610.  

 Add the Pioneer Court roadway extension project to the Additional Planned Projects list. 

The following sections provide more detail for the specific proposed modifications to the TSP. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS FOR TSP COMPLIANCE 
The discussion of recommended revisions is generally organized by reference to the applicable chapter(s) of 
the TSP. In all chapters, revisions to existing TSP language are presented with deletions shown in 
strikethrough and additions shown as underlined. The revised TSP figures and text are attached to this 
memorandum. The revisions identified in this memorandum will also be addressed in a final amended TSP 
document once the revisions are approved by the Planning Commission and City Council. 

Executive Summary 
The following changes are recommended to the Executive Summary of the City of Wilsonville’s TSP. 

Higher Priority Projects Figure (Page iv) 
See the recommended changes to this figure in Chapter 5 (pages 3-4 of this memorandum). 

Higher Priority Projects Table (Page v) 
Add or update the following projects to this table: 

 RE-04B Brown Road Extension (with Bailey Street or 5th Street Connection) 

 RE-14 Basalt Creek Parkway Connection 

 RW-04 Boones Ferry Road Widening  

 RW-05 Grahams Ferry Road Widening 

 SI-07 Dual Southbound Right Turn Lanes on I-5 Off-Ramp at Boones Ferry Road 

 SI-08 Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue Access Management 

 LT-02 Basalt Creek Canyon Ridge Trail 

 LT-03 I-5 Easement Trail 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 78 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 3 of 8 

Chapter 3: The Standards 
The following changes are recommended to Chapter 3 of the City of Wilsonville’s TSP. 

Figure 3-1: Roadway Jurisdictions (Page 3-3) 
Summary of changes: 

 Change the jurisdiction of Clutter Road from Washington County to City. 

 Change the jurisdiction of Garden Acres Road (Day Road to Ridder Road) from Washington 
County to City. 

 Change the jurisdiction of Advance Road (to 60th Avenue) from Clackamas County to City. 

Figure 3-2: Functional Class Designations (Page 3-5) 
Summary of changes: 

 Update the functional classification of Clutter Road to Collector. 

 Modify the functional classification of Garden Acres Road (Day Road to Ridder Road) from 
Collector to Minor Arterial. 

 Modify the functional classification of Ridder Road (Garden Acres Road to Kinsman Road) from 
Collector to Minor Arterial.  

 Add the Day Road overcrossing (Boones Ferry Road to Elligsen Road) and show it as a Future 
Minor Arterial. 

Figure 3-4: Freight Routes (Page 3-9) 
Summary of changes: 

 Show Basalt Creek Parkway and Boones Ferry Road (between Day Road and Basalt Creek 
Parkway) as a Future Truck Route. 

Figure 3-5: Bicycle Routes (Page 3-11) 
Summary of changes: 

 Add the Basalt Creek Canyon Ridge trail project 

 Add the I-5 Easement trail project 

 Remove the bike lane and Tonquin Trail alignment for the Bailey Street Connection for the 
Brown Road Extension  

Access Management (Page 3-20) 
Add the following text to Page 3-20 after the third paragraph: 

 The Basalt Creek Parkway is considered an Access Management Interest Area because the 
parkway will be a high-capacity major freight arterial, limited to at-grade accesses at 124th 
Avenue, Grahams Ferry Road, and Boones Ferry Road. The parkway creates a new connection 
between I-5 and 99W. 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 79 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 4 of 8 

Figure 3-13: Access Management Interest Areas (Page 3-21) 
Summary of changes: 

 Add Basalt Creek Parkway as Access Management Interest Area (from Grahams Ferry Road to 
Boones Ferry Road). 

Chapter 4: The Needs 
The following changes are recommended to Chapter 4 of the City of Wilsonville’s TSP. 

Figure 4-2: Future 2035 Capacity Deficiencies (Page 4-7) 
Summary of changes: 

 Remove the textbox that states “Basalt Creek Study will refine projects” 

Chapter 5: The Projects 
The following changes are recommended to Chapter 5 of the City of Wilsonville’s TSP. 

Figure 5-2: Higher Priority Projects (Page 5-5) 
Summary of changes: 

 Remove the alignment for the Bailey Street Connection for project RE-04 Brown Road Extension  

 Remove the Brown Road Extension Area of Special Concern textbox and callout 

 Add a new project RE-14 Basalt Creek Parkway Connection (from Grahams Ferry Road to Boones 
Ferry Road as a Major Arterial Roadway Extension 

 Add project RW-04 on Boones Ferry Road from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway (Major 
Arterial) 

 Add project RW-05 Grahams Ferry Road Widening from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway 
(Collector) 

 Add project SI-07 at the I-5 Southbound Exit Ramp at Boones Ferry Road intersection 

 Add project SI-08 for access management for the Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue intersection  

 Add Basalt Creek Canyon Ridge Trail project LT-02 to Basalt Creek Planning Area as described in 
Table 5-2. 

 Add I-5 Easement Trail project LT-03 to Basalt Creek Planning Area as described in Table 5-2. 

Table 5-2: Higher Priority Projects (Northwest Quadrant) (Page 5-6) 
Add the following projects and their descriptions: 

 RE-14 Basalt Creek Parkway Connection 

Construct Basalt Creek Parkway as a limited access five-lane Major Arterial between 
Grahams Ferry Road and Boones Ferry Road. This project would be a joint Washington 
County, City of Wilsonville and City of Tualatin project and will work together to seek 
funding. RTP project #11470. 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 80 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 5 of 8 

 RW-04 Boones Ferry Road Widening 

Widen Boones Ferry Road from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway to five lanes. RTP project 
#11487. 

 RW-05 Grahams Ferry Road Widening 

Widen Grahams Ferry Road from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway to three lanes with bike 
lanes, sidewalks, and transit improvements. 

 SI-07 Dual Southbound Right Turn Lanes on I-5 Off-Ramp at Boones Ferry Road. 

Add a second southbound right turn lane to the I-5 Exit Ramp at the Boones Ferry Road 
intersection. RTP project #11489 

 SI-08 Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue Access Management. 

Improve operations at the Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue intersection by removing the east 
private access approach. Pioneer Court access onto Boones Ferry Road will be right-in / 
right-out. Additional access will occur via a north-south local street connection between 
Pioneer Drive, passing under the Day Road I-5 overcrossing approach, and a new west-east 
local street (north of Day Road) with full intersection access with Boones Ferry Road. 

 LT-02 Basalt Creek Canyon Ridge Trail. 

Build a north/south trail connection within Basalt Creek (west of the Canyon) to improve the 
pedestrian and bicycle network and make connections to east/west roads that run north 
and south. This trail would require a grade-separated crossing of Basalt Creek Parkway and 
would be connected to the regional trail network by extending Tonquin Road with 
bike/pedestrian facilities across Graham’s Ferry to this future Basalt Creek Canyon Ridge 
Trail. 

 LT-03 I-5 Easement Trail. 

Build a trail parallel to I-5 in the ODOT easement that would provide an additional 
north/south connection connecting to existing bike and pedestrian facilities. 

Figure 5-3: Higher Priority Projects (Northwest Quadrant) (Page 5-7) 
Summary of changes: 

 Remove the textbox regarding the Basalt Creek Refinement Plan 

 Add Basalt Creek Parkway Connection project RE-14 as described in Table 5-2. 

 Add Boones Ferry Road project RW-04 from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway (Major Arterial) 

 Add Grahams Ferry Road Widening project RW-05 from Day Road to Basalt Creek Parkway 
(Collector) 

 Add I-5 Southbound Exit Ramp/Boones Ferry Road project SI-07. 

 Add Boones Ferry Road/95th Avenue intersection project SI-08. 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 81 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 6 of 8 

 Add Basalt Creek Canyon Ridge Trail project LT-02 to Basalt Creek Planning Area as described in 
Table 5-2. 

 Add I-5 Easement Trail project LT-03 to Basalt Creek Planning Area as described in Table 5-2. 

 Add 124th Avenue extension to Grahams Ferry Road as a Collector Roadway  

Table 5-4: Higher Priority Projects (Southwest Quadrant) (Page 5-10) 
Update the following projects and their descriptions: 

 RE-04B Brown Road Extension  

Construct remaining 2-lane roadway with bike lanes, sidewalks, and transit stop 
improvements from Wilsonville Road to Boones Ferry Road (connecting at either Bailey 
Street or 5th Street); includes roadway connection to Kinsman Road (with bike lanes and 
sidewalks), portion of Ice Age Tonquin Trail connecting to trial terminus on Arrowhead 
Creek Lane, and Brown Road/Kinsman Road intersection 

Figure 5-5: Higher Priority Projects (Southwest Quadrant) (Page 5-11) 
Summary of changes: 

 Remove the textbox that states “Area of Special Concern:” 

 Remove the alignment for the Bailey Street Connection for project RE-04B Brown Road 
Extension. 

Brown Road Extension Alternatives (Page 5-15) 
 Remove entire page. 

Figure 5-7: Additional Planned Projects (Page 5-17) 
Summary of changes: 

 Remove the “124th Avenue Extension from Tualatin-Sherwood Road (Washington County 
Project)” text  

 Remove the “Possible Basalt Creek Connection (Conceptual)” text  

 Remove project RW-P1 Grahams Ferry Road Widening (move to Higher Priority Projects) 

 Add project RE-P6 Basalt Creek Overcrossing as a Minor Arterial (from Boones Ferry Road over I-
5) as described in Table 5-9.  

 Add project RE-P5 Day Road Overcrossing as a Minor Arterial (from Boones Ferry Road to 
Elligsen Road) as described in Table 5-10. 

 Add project RE-P15 Pioneer Court Extension as a Collector from Pioneer Court to 1,000 feet 
north of Day Road, then west to Boones Ferry Road. 

Table 5-9: Additional Planned Projects (Northwest Quadrant) (Page 5-18) 
Add, remove, or update the following projects and descriptions: 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 82 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 7 of 8 

 RE-P6 Basalt Creek Overcrossing 

Extend Basalt Creek across I-5 as a four-lane overcrossing. This project would be a joint 
Washington County, City of Wilsonville and City of Tualatin project and will work together to 
seek funding. RTP project #11436. No funding has been identified within the planning 
horizon for this project. 

 RE-P15 Pioneer Court Extension 

Extend Pioneer Court to the north, approximately 1,000 feet north of Day Road, connect to 
Boones Ferry Road to the west. 

 UU-P4 Grahams Ferry Road Urban Upgrade 

Why Not Higher Priority? Grahams Ferry Road is primarily a rural road and Ice Age Tonquin 
Trail is a preferred option for providing north-south connection through this part of 
Wilsonville. Grahams Ferry Road will be a key urban connection to serve Coffee Creek 
Industrial Area. It is assumed that the roadway segment between Day Road and Clutter Road 
will be constructed as the Coffee Creek industrial lands develop.  

Figure 5-8: Additional Planned Projects (Northwest Quadrant) (Page 5-19) 
Summary of changes: 

 Remove the “124th Avenue Extension from Tualatin-Sherwood Road (Washington County 
Project)” text  

 Remove the “Possible Basalt Creek Connection (Conceptual)” text  

 Add project RE-P6 Basalt Creek Overcrossing as a Minor Arterial (from Boones Ferry Road over I-
5) as described in Table 5-9.  

 Remove project RW-P1 Grahams Ferry Road Widening (move to Higher Priority Projects) 

 Add project RE-P15 Pioneer Court Extension as a Collector from Pioneer Court to 1,000 feet 
north of Day Road, then west to Boones Ferry Road. 

Table 5-10: Additional Planned Projects (Northeast Quadrant) (Page 5-20) 
Add the following project and description: 

 RE-P5 Day Road Overcrossing 

Extend Day Road from Boones Ferry Road to Elligsen Road as a four-lane overcrossing of I-5. 
This project would be a joint Washington County, City of Wilsonville and City of Tualatin 
project and will work together to seek funding. RTP project #11490. No funding has been 
identified within the planning horizon for this project.  

 

Figure 5-9: Additional Planned Projects (Northeast Quadrant) (Page 5-21) 
Summary of changes: 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 83 of 129



 

  
  
 

Wilsonville 2019 TSP Amendment 
February 5, 2019 
Page 8 of 8 

 Add project RE-P5 Day Road Overcrossing as a Minor Arterial (from Boones Ferry Road to 
Elligsen Road). 

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

 

Attachments: 

 Basalt Creek TSP Amendment Analysis Summary 

 TSP Amendments (Figures, Tables, and Text) 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 84 of 129



 

 

Basalt Creek TSP Amendment Analysis 
February 2019 
 
The purpose of this document is to demonstrate that the solutions identified in the 2013 Basalt Creek 
Transportation Refinement Plan are still appropriate in response to the 2018 Regional Transportation 
Plan update. The Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan was adopted in 2013 and provided the 
framework for the development of concept and comprehensive plans for the Basalt Creek Urban Growth 
Expansion Area. Since that time, the plans for the area have refined the types of expected urban 
development that will occur in the area. In addition, regional planning efforts, such as the 2018 Regional 
Transportation Plan, have continued to be refined. 
 
The Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan was developed to determine the major transportation 
system necessary to serve development throughout the Basalt Creek Planning Area. The Basalt Creek 
Transportation Refinement Plan set the stage for concept planning and comprehensive plan 
development for the Basalt Creek Planning Area. The transportation investments identified by the Basalt 
Creek Transportation Refinement Plan considered not only future growth within the Basalt Creek 
Planning Area itself, but also future growth in adjacent areas, including: 

 Southwest Tualatin Concept Planning Area 
 Tonquin Employment Planning Area (in Sherwood) 
 Coffee Creek Planning Area in Wilsonville 

 
Since the development of the Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan the Cities of Tualatin and 
Wilsonville have proceeded with concept and comprehensive planning for the Basalt Creek Planning 
Area. These planning efforts have built upon the Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan as a 
framework for organizing the land use plans. 
 
Furthermore, the 124th Avenue connection and Basalt Creek Parkway has been constructed as an 
interim 3-lane facility between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Grahams Ferry Road. Washington County is 
currently beginning design work for the extension of the Basalt Creek Parkway between Grahams Ferry 
Road and Boones Ferry Road. The interim improvement is intended to serve existing transportation 
needs. Development along the corridor is encouraged to dedicate the right-of-way and complete the 
ultimate cross-section as appropriate.  
 
The Regional Transportation Plan was updated in 2014 to reflect the Basalt Creek Transportation 
Refinement Plan. Regional land use growth assumptions and additional regional planning efforts have 
continued as the concept and comprehensive planning for the Basalt Creek area has been developed 
through an extensive multi-year and multi-jurisdictional public process. 
 
With the advent of the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan and revised growth assumptions it seemed 
prudent to revisit the Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan to ensure that the transportation 
system anticipated at the start of the process was indeed still adequate to serve the Basalt Creek 
Planning Area. 
 
  

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 85 of 129



 

 

 
The following tables document the land use assumptions for the Basalt Creek Planning Area. 
 
 

Land Use in the 2010 Regional Transportation Plan travel demand forecast 
(Land Use in the 2012 Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Plan Technical Report) 

 
Zone 
Number 

2005 
Households 

2035 
Households 

2005 Total 
Employment 

2035 Total 
Employment 

1013 94 706 52 896 
1014 54 645 16 938 
Total 148 1,351 68 1,834 
 
 

Land Use in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan travel demand forecast 
 
Zone 
Number 

2015 
Households 

2040 
Households 

2015 Total 
Employment 

2040 Total 
Employment 

980 45 0 79 1,447 
981 107 646 167 1,447 
Total 152 646 246 2,894 
 
 

Buildout of the Basalt Creek Concept Plan 
 
Zone 
Number 

2015 
Households 

2040 
Households 

2015 Total 
Employment 

2040 Total 
Employment 

980 45  79 2,227 
981 107 581 167 2,227 
Total 152 581 246 4,453 
 
 
It should be noted that the zone numbering system changed in 2013 but the geographic boundaries of 
these two zones remained the same. 
 
Also note the total 2040 employment for both zones is the same number; however the model assumed 
zone 981 will have slightly more service employment than zone 980. 
 
 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 86 of 129



 

 

The following table provides a list of transportation investments assumed in the 2040 regional travel demand forecast: 
 

2040 Financially Constrained RTP Projects near Basalt Creek Planning Area 
 

Nominating 
Agency 

2018 
RTP 
ID Project Name 

Start 
Location 

End 
Location Description 

Estimated 
Cost (2016 

Dollars) 
Time 

Period 
Financially 

Constrained 

RTP 
Investment 

Category 
Primary 
Purpose 

Washington 
County 

10568 Tualatin-
Sherwood Rd 
Improvements 

Langer 
Farms 
Pkwy 

Teton 
Ave 

Widen from three to five lanes with bike lanes and 
sidewalks. 

$35,000,000 2018-
2027 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Relieve 
current 

congestion 
Sherwood 10674 Oregon-

Tonquin 
Intersection 
Improvements 

SW 
Oregon 
St 

SW 
Tonquin 
Rd 

Reconstruct and realign three leg intersection with 
a roundabout (partial two-lane roundabout) 
approx 400 feet northeast of existing roundabout 
at SW Oregon St & Murdock Rd. ROW, PE, design 
& construction. Potential for signal in-lieu of dual-
roundabout system if better for development and 
once SW 124th Ave project is completed. If 
roundabout, project will include rapid flashing 
beacons at new roundabout and retrofit of 
adjacent roundabout to meet MUTCD suggestions 
for pedestrian crossings at roundabouts. This is 
currently a Washington County facility but would 
likely become Sherwood's upon completion of 
project to TSP standards. 

$2,400,000 2018-
2027 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Relieve 
future 

congestion 

Wilsonville 10588 Grahams 
Ferry Rd 
Improvements 

Day Rd County 
line 

Widen Grahams Ferry Road to 3 lanes, add 
bike/pedestrian connections to regional trail 
system and fix (project development only) 
undersized railroad overcrossing. 

$13,200,000 2028-
2040 

Yes Freight Improve 
freight 

access to 
indust & 

intermodal 
Washington 
County 

10590 Tonquin Rd 
Improvements 

Grahams 
Ferry Rd 

124th 
Ave 

Realign and widen to three lanes with bike lanes 
and sidewalks and street lighting. 

$11,400,000 2018-
2027 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Build 
Complete 

Street 
Wilsonville 10853 Garden Acres 

Road 
Extension 

Day 
Road 

Ridder 
Road 

Construct three lane road extension with 
sidewalks and cycle track and reconstruct/reorient 
Day Road/Grahams Ferry Road/Garden Acres Road 
intersection. 

$14,260,000 2018-
2027 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Relieve 
future 

congestion 

Wilsonville 11243 Day Rd 
Improvements 

Grahams 
Ferry Rd 

Boones 
Ferry Rd 

Widen street from 3 to 5 lanes with buffered 
bike lanes, sidewalks and street lighting. 
Improve structural integrity for increased 
freight traffic and provide congestion relief. 
Sidewalk infill and creation of Tonquin Trail 
multi-use path spur will reduce pedestrian and 
vehicle conflicts. Bike buffers will reduce 
bicycle and freight conflicts. 

$10,560,000 2028-
2040 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Relieve 
future 

congestion 

 
 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 87 of 129



 

 

2040 Financially Constrained RTP Projects near Basalt Creek Planning Area (Continued) 
 

Nominating 
Agency 

2018 
RTP 
ID Project Name 

Start 
Location 

End 
Location Description 

Estimated 
Cost (2016 

Dollars) 
Time 

Period 
Financially 

Constrained 

RTP 
Investment 

Category 
Primary 
Purpose 

Tualatin 11417 Blake Street 
Extension 

115th 
Ave 

124th 
Ave 

Extend Blake Street to create an east-west 
connection between 115th and 124th. Install 
signal at Blake and 124th. New road section will 
provide an alternative route for industrial traffic 
on the high injury corridor: Tualatin/Sherwood 
Road. 

$17,000,000 2018-
2027 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Increase 
access to 

jobs 

Washington 
County 

11470 Basalt Creek 
Parkway 

Grahams 
Ferry Rd 

Boones 
Ferry Rd 

Extend new 5 lane Arterial with bike lanes, 
sidewalks and street lighting. 

$31,700,000 2018-
2027 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Serve new 
urban area 

Washington 
County 

11487 Boones Ferry 
Improvements 

Basalt 
Creek 
East-
West 
Arterial 

Day Rd Widen from 3 lanes to 5 lanes with bike lanes, 
sidewalks and street lighting 

$1,200,000 2028-
2040 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Relieve 
future 

congestion 

Wilsonville 11489 Boones Ferry / 
I-5 off ramp 
improvements 

SB I-5 off 
ramp 

Boones 
Ferry Rd 

construct second right-turn lane $1,063,000 2028-
2040 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Relieve 
current 

congestion 
Tualatin 11962 Grahams 

Ferry Rd 
SW 
Ibach Rd 

Helenius 
Rd 

Upgrade SW Grahams Ferry Road to roadway 
standards between SW Ibach Road and 
Helenius Road. 

$5,048,800 2028-
2040 

Yes Roads and 
Bridges 

Build 
Complete 

Street 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 88 of 129



 

 

Financially Constrained 2018 Regional Transportation Plan Network 
2040 PM 1 Hour Total Vehicle Volume Forecast Results 

 
  

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 89 of 129



 

 

Financially Constrained 2018 Regional Transportation Plan Network 
2040 PM 1 Hour Basalt Creek Vehicles (and Total Vehicles) Forecast Results 

 
 
 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 90 of 129



 

 

Summary 
 
The 2018 Regional Transportation Plan contains a number of Financially Constrained projects identified 
in the Basalt Creek Planning Area. These projects were generally identified by the Basalt Creek 
Transportation Refinement Plan in 2012. It is anticipated that these projects will be implemented in 
conjunction with development in the area. The resulting planned system, including the build out 
scenario documented in the land use tables above, results in anticipated traffic operations consistent 
with regional and local level of service standards. 
 
The level of service maps and analysis in this report are intended to provide a planning level system 
assessment consistent with the requirements for Transportation Planning in Oregon. A detailed 
operational analysis will be necessary prior to project development. The detailed operational analysis 
should consider needed turn lanes and assess vehicular movements at intersections to determine the 
appropriate design configuration. This analysis is intended to provide a generalized system assessment 
that would be an appropriate input into an operational evaluation necessary for project development. 
 
 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 91 of 129



 (;(&87,9(�6800$5< 

+එඏඐඍක�3කඑකඑගඡ�3කඒඍඋගඛ 

dŚŝƐ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ƚŚĞ�͞,ŝŐŚĞƌ�
WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ͟�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŝƚǇ͘�͞�ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�WůĂŶŶĞĚ͟�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
d^W�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶ��ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϱ͘�
WƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŶƵŵďĞƌŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ĂůƉŚĂďĞƟĐĂů�
ĂŶĚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĚĞŶŽƚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ͘ 

LY���:LOVRQYLOOH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ����� 

 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 92 of 129



 

(;(&87,9(�6800$5<���Y 

EŽ͘ ,ŝŐŚĞƌ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ 

�ŝŬĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂůŬǁĂǇƐ�;^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ�͘�͘�͘��ŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ 

�t-Ϭϴ dŽǁŶ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�>ŽŽƉ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ͕��ŝĐǇĐůĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�dƌĂŶƐŝƚ�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

�t-Ϭϵ dŽǁŶ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�>ŽŽƉ��ŝŬĞͬWĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ��ƌŝĚŐĞ 

�t-ϭϬ &ƌĞŶĐŚ�WƌĂŝƌŝĞ��ƌŝǀĞ�WĂƚŚǁĂǇ 

�t-ϭϭ &ƌŽŐ�WŽŶĚ�dƌĂŝůƐ 

�t-ϭϮ WĂƌŬǁĂǇ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�dƌĂŝů��ŽŶŶĞĐƚŽƌ 

�t-ϭϯ sŝůůĞďŽŝƐ�>ŽŽƉ�dƌĂŝů 

�t-ϭϰ tĂǇĮŶĚŝŶŐ�^ŝŐŶĂŐĞ 

^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů� 
;^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ 

^Z-Ϭϭ �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^Z-ϬϮ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^Z-Ϭϯ >ŽǁƌŝĞ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^Z-Ϭϰ tŽŽĚ�DŝĚĚůĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů�^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

>ŽĐĂů�dƌĂŝůƐ� 
;^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ 

>d-Ϭϭ DĞŵŽƌŝĂů�WĂƌŬ�dƌĂŝů�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

>d-ϬϮ �ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ��ĂŶǇŽŶ�ZŝĚŐĞ�dƌĂŝů� 

>d-Ϭϯ /-ϱ��ĂƐĞŵĞŶƚ�dƌĂŝů 

ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�dƌĂŝůƐ� 
;^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ^ĂĨĞƚǇͿ 

Zd-Ϭϭ� �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�dƌĂŝů�;EŽƌƚŚͿ 

Zd-Ϭϭ� �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�dƌĂŝů�;^ŽƵƚŚͿ 

Zd-ϬϮ &ƌŽŐ�WŽŶĚ�dƌĂŝů 

Zd-Ϭϯ� dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�;EŽƌƚŚͿ 

Zd-Ϭϯ�ͬ� dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�;sŝůůĞďŽŝƐͿ 

Zd-Ϭϰ tĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�dƌĂŝů�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Zd-Ϭϱ tŝĞĚĞŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�dƌĂŝů 

Zd-Ϭϲ tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ��ŝŬĞͬWĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶͬ�ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�
�ƌŝĚŐĞ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ��Ğǀ͘ 

dƌĂŶƐŝƚ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

d/-Ϭϭ WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�dƌĂŶƐŝƚ 

d/-ϬϮ dƌĂŶƐŝƚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

EŽ͘ ,ŝŐŚĞƌ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�;DƵůƟŵŽĚĂů��ŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇͿ 
Z�-Ϭϰ� �ŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ�^ƚƵĚǇ�ĨŽƌ��ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ 
Z�-Ϭϰ� �ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�;ϱƚŚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ��ŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶͿ 

Z�-ϭϯ :ĂǀĂ�ZŽĂĚ��ŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�^ŝŐŶĂů 

Z�-ϭϰ �ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ��ŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ�tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ�;�ĂƉĂĐŝƚǇͿ 
Zt-Ϭϭ �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ƌŝĚŐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ�

/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Zt-ϬϮ �ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ 

Zt-Ϭϰ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ 

Zt-Ϭϱ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ 

hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ�;DƵůƟŵŽĚĂů��ŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇͿ 

hh-Ϭϭ �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ŝƉ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

hh-ϬϮ �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hh-Ϭϯ �ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ 

hh-Ϭϰ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hh-Ϭϱ WĂƌŬǁĂǇ��ǀĞŶƵĞ�hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hh-Ϭϲ ^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ZŽĂĚ�hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hh-Ϭϳ dŽŽǌĞ�ZŽĂĚ�hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hh-Ϭϴ 'ĂƌĚĞŶ��ĐƌĞƐ�ZŽĂĚ�hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

^ƉŽƚ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ� 
;dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚͬKƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐͿ 

^/-ϬϮ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZĂŝůƌŽĂĚ�hŶĚĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ�
�ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ 

^/-Ϭϯ ^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ZŽĂĚͬϲϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ�/ŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^/-Ϭϰ tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZĚͬdŽǁŶ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�>ŽŽƉ�tĞƐƚ�
/ŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^/-Ϭϳ �ƵĂů�^ŽƵƚŚďŽƵŶĚ�ZŝŐŚƚ�dƵƌŶ�>ĂŶĞƐ�ŽŶ�/-ϱ�Kī-
ZĂŵƉ�Ăƚ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ 

^/-Ϭϴ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚͬϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ 

�ŝŬĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂůŬǁĂǇƐ� 
;^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ 

�t-Ϭϭ��ͬ� 
�ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�ZŽĂĚ��ŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�
�ƌŽƐƐŝŶŐƐ 

�t-ϬϮ ϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 
�t-Ϭϯ �ŽďĞƌŐ�ZŽĂĚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 

�t-Ϭϰ �ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ŝŬĞ�>ĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 

�t-Ϭϱ tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�tĂǇ��ĂƐƚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů� 

�t-Ϭϲ tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�tĂǇ�tĞƐƚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů� 

�t-Ϭϳ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�^ŚĂƌƌŽǁƐ 

+එඏඐඍක�3කඑකඑගඡ�3කඒඍඋගඛ��/එඛගඍඌ�$ඔඐඉඊඍගඑඋඉඔඔඡ�%ඡ�,ඕකඞඍඕඍඖග�

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 93 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�6WDQGDUGV����-� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���5ඉඌඟඉඡ�-ඝකඑඛඌඑඋගඑඖ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 94 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�6WDQGDUGV����-� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���)ඝඖඋගඑඖඉඔ�&ඔඉඛඛ�'ඍඛඑඏඖඉගඑඖඛ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 95 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�6WDQGDUGV����-� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���)කඍඑඏඐග�5ඝගඍඛ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 96 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�6WDQGDUGV����-�� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���%එඋඡඋඔඍ�5ඝගඍඛ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 97 of 129



�-�����:LOVRQYLOOH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ����� 

 &+$37(5����7KH�6WDQGDUGV 

$උඋඍඛඛ�0ඉඖඉඏඍඕඍඖග 
�ĐĐĞƐƐ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞĨĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďƌŽĂĚ�ƐĞƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚĞĐŚŶŝƋƵĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ƐĂĨĞ͕�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƟŵĞůǇ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�
ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƟĞƐ͘��ĐĐĞƐƐ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ͘ 

tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�
ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚƌĂĸĐ�ŇŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ͘��Ǉ�ůŝŵŝƟŶŐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�
ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ĐůĂƐƐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇƐ�;ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�DĂũŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�
DŝŶŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂůƐͿ͕�ĐŽŶŇŝĐƚƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĞŶƚĞƌŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ĞǆŝƟŶŐ�ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĂƌĞ�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ͘�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďŝĐǇĐůŝƐƚƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĐŽŶŇŝĐƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĞŶƚĞƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆŝƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ͘ 

dĂďůĞ�ϯ-Ϯ�ůŝƐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ͘�
�ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŶŽŶ-ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ͕�
ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ǁŝůů�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ŐƵŝĚĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�
ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�
ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂůů-ŽƵƚ�ďŽǆ�Ăƚ�ƌŝŐŚƚ͘�K�Kd�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĂƐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�
ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�/-ϱ�ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�K�Kd�ũƵƌŝƐĚŝĐƟŽŶ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�
�ǀĞŶƵĞ�ĂŶĚ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚͿ͘�dŚĞ�/-ϱͬtŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ�

/ŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ��ƌĞĂ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�;/�DWͿ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�
ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŶĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�
tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘ 

dŚĞ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĂŶ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ��ƌĞĂ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ǁŝůů�
ďĞ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚ-ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĨƌĞŝŐŚƚ�ĂƌƚĞƌŝĂů͕�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ăƚ-
ŐƌĂĚĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ�Ăƚ�ϭϮϰƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ͕�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ͕�
ĂŶĚ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂƐ�ƐŚŽǁŶ�ŝŶ�&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϯ-ϭϯ͘�dŚĞ�
ƉĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞƐ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�/-ϱ�ĂŶĚ�
ϵϵt͘ 

)XQFWLRQDO 
&ODVVLILFDWLRQ 

$FFHVV�6SDFLQJ�6WDQGDUGVD 

'HVLUHGE 0LQLPXP 

EĞĂƌ�/ŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ 

DĂũŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂů ϭ͕ϯϮϬ�Ō ϭ͕ϬϬϬ�Ō 

DŝŶŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂů ϭ͕ϬϬϬ�Ō ϲϬϬ�Ō 

�ŽůůĞĐƚŽƌ ϯϬϬ�Ō ϭϬϬ�Ō 

>ŽĐĂů�^ƚƌĞĞƚ �ĐĐĞƐƐ��WĞƌŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ��ĂĐŚ�>Žƚ 

K�Kd�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ϭ͕ϯϮϬ�Ō 

dĂďůĞ�ϯ-Ϯ͘��ĐĐĞƐƐ�^ƉĂĐŝŶŐ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ 

Ă��^ƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĐĞŶƚĞƌůŝŶĞ�ƚŽ�ĐĞŶƚĞƌůŝŶĞ�ŽŶ�
DĂũŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�DŝŶŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ĐƵƌď�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�>ŽĐĂů�^ƚƌĞĞƚƐ 

ď���ĞƐŝƌĞĚ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�^ƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ƐŚĂůů�ďĞ�ĂĚŚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƵŶůĞƐƐ�
ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌ͘�ZĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ĚĞǀŝĂƟŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĞƐŝƌĞĚ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�^ƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĂůŝŐŶŝŶŐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇƐ͕�ƚŽƉŽŐƌĂƉŚǇ͕�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�
ůŝŵŝƚĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�
ŝŶ�Ă�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͘ 

$උඋඍඛඛ�0ඉඖඉඏඍඕඍඖග�6ගකඉගඍඏඑඍඛ 
dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ�ĐĂŶ�ƵƐĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ͗ 

· /ŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ��ƌĞĂƐ͗��ůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞ�
ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ŽŶĞ-ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ŵŝůĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/-ϱ�
ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂƌŝƐĞ͘ 

· �ĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�,ŝŐŚ�sŽůƵŵĞ�/ŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶƐ͗�WƵƌƐƵĞ�
ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�
ŚŝŐŚ�ǀŽůƵŵĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶƐ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ǁŚĞŶ�
ƋƵĞƵĞƐ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ͘ 

· �ǆŝƐƟŶŐ��ƌŝǀĞǁĂǇƐ͗��ǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽ�
ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�
ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂƐ�
ƉƌĂĐƟĐĂďůĞ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ�
ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͘ 

· KŶŐŽŝŶŐ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ͗�DĂŶĂŐĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ĐĂƐĞ-ďǇ-
ĐĂƐĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘�tŚĞƌĞ�ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇƐ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ͕�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ŵŝƟŐĂƟŽŶ�
ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ�Žƌ�

>ŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ĞĂƐƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�/-ϱͬtŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘� 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 98 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�6WDQGDUGV����-�� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-����$උඋඍඛඛ�0ඉඖඉඏඍඕඍඖග�,ඖගඍකඍඛග�$කඍඉඛ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 99 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�1HHGV����-� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���)ඝගඝකඍ������&ඉඉඋඑගඡ�'ඍඎඑඋඑඍඖඋඑඍඛ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 100 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���+එඏඐඍක�3කඑකඑගඡ�3කඒඍඋගඛ 
dŚŝƐ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ƉĞƌƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�,ŝŐŚĞƌ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ͘��ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�
ĨŽƵƌ�ƋƵĂĚƌĂŶƚƐ�;EŽƌƚŚǁĞƐƚ͕�EŽƌƚŚĞĂƐƚ͕�
^ŽƵƚŚǁĞƐƚ͕�^ŽƵƚŚĞĂƐƚͿ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƵƐĞ�/-ϱ�ĂŶĚ�
�ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂƐ�ĚŝǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ůŝŶĞƐ͘ 

 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 101 of 129



�-����:LOVRQYLOOH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ����� 

 &+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV 

3URMHFW� 'HVFULSWLRQ &RVW 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�� 

Z�-ϭϯ :ĂǀĂ�ZŽĂĚ��ŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�
ĂŶĚ�^ŝŐŶĂů 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�:ĂǀĂ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�'ĂƌĚĞŶ��ĐƌĞƐ�ZŽĂĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶĂů�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�:ĂǀĂ�ZŽĂĚͬ'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ��ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ��ůƵƩĞƌ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ͘ 

Ψϭ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Z�-ϭϰ �ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�
�ŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ĂƐ�Ă�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĮǀĞ-ůĂŶĞ�DĂũŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂů�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�
&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�ũŽŝŶƚ�tĂƐŚŝŶŐƚŽŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͕��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�
tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�dƵĂůĂƟŶ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĞŬ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘�ZdW�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ηϭϭϰϳϬ͘ 

Ψϯϭ͕ϳϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hh-Ϭϴ 'ĂƌĚĞŶ��ĐƌĞƐ�ZŽĂĚ�
hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ�'ĂƌĚĞŶ��ĐƌĞƐ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ƚŚƌĞĞͲůĂŶĞ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚŽƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝĐǇĐůĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ 
ƚŚĞ�'ĂƌĚĞŶ��ĐƌĞƐ�ZŽĂĚͬ�ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶĂů�Žƌ�Ă�ƌŽƵŶĚĂďŽƵƚ͘ 
ZĞĂůŝŐŶ�ZŝĚĚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�'ĂƌĚĞŶ��ĐƌĞƐ�ZŽĂĚ͘��ůŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ��ůƵƩĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ 
ƚŽ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ�Z�Ͳϭϯ͘��ůŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ��ŽīĞĞ 
�ƌĞĞŬ��ŽƌƌĞĐƟŽŶĂů�&ĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇ 
ƚŽ��ĂŚĂůŝŶ�ZŽĂĚ͘ 

Ψϭϰ͕ϮϲϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ�tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ� 

Zt-ϬϮ �ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ tŝĚĞŶ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƚƌĂǀĞů�
ůĂŶĞƐ�ŝŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͖�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚĞ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚͬ�ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚͬ'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶƐ 

Ψϱ͕ϵϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Zt-Ϭϰ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ 

tŝĚĞŶ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĮǀĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͘�ZdW�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ηϭϭϰϴϳ͘ 

Ψϭ͕ϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Zt-Ϭϱ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
tŝĚĞŶŝŶŐ 

tŝĚĞŶ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�
ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�ZdW�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ηϭϬϱϴϴ͘ 

Ψϭϯ͕ϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƉŽƚ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ� 

^/-ϬϮ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZĂŝůƌŽĂĚ�
hŶĚĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ�
�ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ 

WĞƌĨŽƌŵ�ƉƌĞůŝŵŝŶĂƌǇ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͕�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ĞƚĐ͘ ΨϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^/-Ϭϳ �ƵĂů�^ŽƵƚŚďŽƵŶĚ�ZŝŐŚƚ�
dƵƌŶ�>ĂŶĞƐ� 

�ĚĚ�Ă�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ƐŽƵƚŚďŽƵŶĚ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ƚƵƌŶ�ůĂŶĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�/-ϱ��ǆŝƚ�ZĂŵƉ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ͘�ZdW�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ηϭϭϰϴϵ 

Ψϭ͕Ϭϲϯ͕ϬϬϬ 

^/-Ϭϴ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚͬϵϱƚŚ�
�ǀĞŶƵĞ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� 

/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚͬϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ďǇ�ƌĞŵŽǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĂƐƚ�
ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ͘�WŝŽŶĞĞƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŽŶƚŽ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ-ŝŶ�ͬƌŝŐŚƚ-ŽƵƚ͘�
�ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ǁŝůů�ŽĐĐƵƌ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�ŶŽƌƚŚ-ƐŽƵƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�WŝŽŶĞĞƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�;Z�-
WϭϱͿ͕�ƉĂƐƐŝŶŐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�/-ϱ�ŽǀĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ͕�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ǁĞƐƚ-ĞĂƐƚ�ůŽĐĂů�ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�
;ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚͿ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨƵůů�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�Ăƚ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ͘ 

ΨϮ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;�ŝŬĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂůŬǁĂǇƐͿ� 

�t-ϬϮ ϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�
/ŶĮůů 

&ŝůů�ŝŶ�ŐĂƉƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĂƐƚ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�
,ŝůůŵĂŶ��ŽƵƌƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ƐƚŽƉ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Ψϴϱ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�dƌĂŝůƐͿ�� 

Zd-Ϭϯ� /ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�
;EŽƌƚŚͿ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ��ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ͖��ŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�
ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ��ŝƚǇ�ůŝŵŝƚƐ�;ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ΨϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬͿ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŽƌĚŝŶĂƚĞ�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ĨĂƌƚŚĞƌ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ǁŝƚŚ�
tĂƐŚŝŶŐƚŽŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƌŝŶŐ�ĐŝƟĞƐ 

ΨϮ͕ϬϰϬ͕ϬϬϬ 
;WĂƌƟĂů�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�

ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐͿ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;>ŽĐĂů�dƌĂŝůƐͿ�� 

>d-ϬϮ �ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ��ĂŶǇŽŶ�
ZŝĚŐĞ�dƌĂŝů� 

�ƵŝůĚ�Ă�ŶŽƌƚŚͬƐŽƵƚŚ�ƚƌĂŝů�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�;ǁĞƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂŶǇŽŶͿ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�ďŝĐǇĐůĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĞĂƐƚͬǁĞƐƚ�ƌŽĂĚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌƵŶ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐŽƵƚŚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƚƌĂŝů�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�Ă�ŐƌĂĚĞ-ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĚ�ĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�ŽĨ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ƚƌĂŝů�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ďǇ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚŝŶŐ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞͬƉĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�'ƌĂŚĂŵ͛Ɛ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ��ĂŶǇŽŶ�ZŝĚŐĞ�dƌĂŝů͘ 

ΨϰϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

>d-Ϭϯ /-ϱ��ĂƐĞŵĞŶƚ�dƌĂŝů �ƵŝůĚ�Ă�ƚƌĂŝů�ƉĂƌĂůůĞů�ƚŽ�/-ϱ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�K�Kd�ĞĂƐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ŶŽƌƚŚͬƐŽƵƚŚ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ďŝŬĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ͘ 

ΨϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ� 

dĂďůĞ�ϱ-Ϯ͘�,ŝŐŚĞƌ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�;EŽƌƚŚǁĞƐƚ�YƵĂĚƌĂŶƚͿ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 102 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���+එඏඐඍක�3කඑකඑගඡ�3කඒඍඋගඛ��1කගඐඟඍඛග�4ඝඉඌකඉඖග� 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 103 of 129



�-�����:LOVRQYLOOH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ����� 

 &+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV 

dĂďůĞ�ϱ-ϰ͘�,ŝŐŚĞƌ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�;^ŽƵƚŚǁĞƐƚ�YƵĂĚƌĂŶƚͿ 

3URMHFW� 'HVFULSWLRQ &RVW 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�� 

Z�-Ϭϰ� �ŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ�^ƚƵĚǇ�ĨŽƌ�
�ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ 

WĞƌĨŽƌŵ�Ă�ĐŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ��ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�
ĂůŝŐŶŵĞŶƚ 

ΨϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Z�-Ϭϰ� �ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�Ϯ-ůĂŶĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ƐƚŽƉ�
ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�;ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ�Ăƚ�ϱƚŚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚͿ͖�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�<ŝŶƐŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�;ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐͿ͕�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚƌŝĂů�ƚĞƌŵŝŶƵƐ�ŽŶ��ƌƌŽǁŚĞĂĚ��ƌĞĞŬ�>ĂŶĞ͕�ĂŶĚ��ƌŽǁŶ�
ZŽĂĚͬ<ŝŶƐŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

Ψϭϱ͕ϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ� 

hh-Ϭϯ �ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĐƌŽƐƐ-ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�ϯ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ƐƚŽƉƐͿ 

Ψϯ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hh-Ϭϰ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�
hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĐƌŽƐƐ-ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�ϯ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ƐƚŽƉ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ͖�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƌŽƵŶĚĂďŽƵƚ�Ăƚ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚͬ�ĂƌďĞƌ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�
ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ 

ΨϮ͕ϰϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hh-Ϭϳ dŽŽǌĞ�ZŽĂĚ�hƌďĂŶ�
hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĐƌŽƐƐ-ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�ϯ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ƐƚŽƉ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ͖�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƌŽƵŶĚĂďŽƵƚ�Ăƚ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚͬdŽŽǌĞ�ZŽĂĚ�
ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ 

Ψϳ͕ϵϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;�ŝŬĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂůŬǁĂǇƐͿ� 

�t-Ϭϯ �ŽďĞƌŐ�ZŽĂĚ�
^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 

&ŝůů�ŝŶ�ŐĂƉƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĂƐƚ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
ƚŽ��ĂƌďĞƌ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ƐƚŽƉ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Ψϯϳϱ͕ϬϬϬ 

�t-Ϭϱ tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�tĂǇ�
�ĂƐƚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 

&ŝůů�ŝŶ�ŐĂƉƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞƐƚ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŚĂŶƟůůǇ�ƚŽ�
ƐŽƵƚŚ�ŽĨ��ŚƵƌĐŚŝůů�;ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝůͿ 

ΨϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

�t-Ϭϲ tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�tĂǇ�
tĞƐƚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�ŽŶ�ǁĞƐƚ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�WĂƵůŝŶĂ�
�ƌŝǀĞ 

ΨϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

�t-Ϭϳ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
^ŚĂƌƌŽǁƐ 

^ƚƌŝƉĞ�ƐŚĂƌƌŽǁƐ�;ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ůĂŶĞƐͿ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϱƚŚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ƚŽ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�WĂƌŬ͖�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�;ŽŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�
ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚͿ�ƚŽ�tĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�dƌĂŝů 

Ψϱ͕ϬϬϬ 

�t-ϭϯ sŝůůĞďŽŝƐ�>ŽŽƉ�dƌĂŝů �ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ-ƵƐĞ�ƉĂƚŚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�sŝůůĞďŽŝƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͖�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�
sŝůůĞďŽŝƐ�'ƌĞĞŶǁĂǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�sŝůůĂŐĞ��ĞŶƚĞƌ 

ΨϭϴϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽůͿ� 

^Z-ϬϮ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�
WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�
ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ-ƵƐĞ�ƉĂƚŚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�tŽŽĚ�DŝĚĚůĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů͕�Ă�
ďŝĐǇĐůĞ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƐŚĞůƚĞƌ�ŶĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͕�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ-ƵƐĞ�ƉĂƚŚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďŝĐǇĐůĞ�
ƐŚĞůƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ�ĂůŽŶŐ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ 

ΨϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^Z-Ϭϯ >ŽǁƌŝĞ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĂĨĞ�
ZŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ-ƵƐĞ�ƉĂƚŚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽǁƌŝĞ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ƚŽ��ĂƌďĞƌ�
^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�sŝůůĞďŽŝƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͖�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͕�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�
dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů͕�ĂŶĚ��ĂƌďĞƌ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ƚŽ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ 

ΨϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^Z-Ϭϰ tŽŽĚ�DŝĚĚůĞ�
^ĐŚŽŽů�^ĂĨĞ�ZŽƵƚĞƐ�
ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽů�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�Ă�ďŝĐǇĐůĞ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƐŚĞůƚĞƌ�ŶĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ-ƵƐĞ�ƉĂƚŚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ďŝĐǇĐůĞ�ƐŚĞůƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ�ĂůŽŶŐ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ͖�ĂůƐŽ�ǁŝĚĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌŝƉĞ�ƚŚĞ�WĂƌŬ�Ăƚ�
DĞƌƌǇĮĞůĚ�dƌĂŝů͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚƐ�tŽŽĚ�DŝĚĚůĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ƚŽ��ĂŵĞůŽƚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌƚŚ 

ΨϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�dƌĂŝůƐͿ�� 

Zd-Ϭϯ�ͬ� /ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�
dƌĂŝů�;sŝůůĞďŽŝƐͿ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�sŝůůĞďŽŝƐ�sŝůůĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�
ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

ΨϱϲϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Zd-Ϭϲ tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ�
�ŝŬĞͬWĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�
ĂŶĚ��ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�
�ƌŝĚŐĞ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ�
�ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ 

WĞƌĨŽƌŵ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ďŝŬĞͬƉĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶͬĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�ďƌŝĚŐĞ�
ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�tŝůůĂŵĞƩĞ�ZŝǀĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŶŽŶ-ŵŽƚŽƌŝǌĞĚ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�/-ϱ�ĨƌĞĞǁĂǇ�ĚĞĐŬ 

Ψϭ͕ϯϴϬ͕ϬϬϬ 
;WĂƌƟĂů�

ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�
ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐͿ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 104 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-�� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���+එඏඐඍක�3කඑකඑගඡ�3කඒඍඋගඛ��6ඝගඐඟඍඛග�4ඝඉඌකඉඖග� 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 105 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-�� 

dŚŝƐ�WĂŐĞ�/ŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�>ĞŌ��ůĂŶŬ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 106 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-�� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���$ඌඌඑගඑඖඉඔ�3ඔඉඖඖඍඌ�3කඒඍඋගඛ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 107 of 129



�-�����:LOVRQYLOOH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ����� 

 &+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV 

3URMHFW� 'HVFULSWLRQ :K\�1RW�+LJKHU�3ULRULW\" &RVW 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�� 

Z�-Wϭ �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�Ϯ-ůĂŶĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ZŝĚĚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�
�ŽŵŵĞƌĐĞ��ŝƌĐůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�
ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƌĞĂ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ZŝĚĚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞ 

/ĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ŚĞůƉĨƵů�ĨƌĞŝŐŚƚ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ͕�ďƵƚ�ŶŽƚ�Ă�ĐƌŝƟĐĂů�ŶĞĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ 

ΨϮ͕ϭϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Z�-WϮ <ŝŶƐŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�;�ĞŶƚƌĂůͿ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�Ϯͬϯ-ůĂŶĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�
ZŝĚĚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ 

,ŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŐƌĂĚĞ-ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĚ�ZZ�ĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƚƌŽ�ůĂŶĚƐ͖�
ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞ�;ϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞŶƵĞͿ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ 

ΨϭϮ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Z�-Wϲ �ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�
KǀĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ 

�ǆƚĞŶĚ��ĂƐĂůƚ��ƌĞĞŬ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�/-ϱ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĨŽƵƌ-ůĂŶĞ�
ŽǀĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�ũŽŝŶƚ�tĂƐŚŝŶŐƚŽŶ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ͕��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�dƵĂůĂƟŶ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĞŬ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘�ZdW�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ηϭϭϰϯϲ͘� 

dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƟŵĞůŝŶĞ�ŝƐ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�
ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�d^W 

Ψϰϲ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

Z�-Wϭϱ WŝŽŶĞĞƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ 

�ǆƚĞŶĚ�WŝŽŶĞĞƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌƚŚ͕�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϭ͕ϬϬϬ�
ĨĞĞƚ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ͕�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ�ƚŽ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞƐƚ͘ 

/ĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�
WŝŽŶĞĞƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�ͬ�ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�
ĂŌĞƌ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZĚͬϵϱƚŚ��ǀĞ�/ŶƚĞƌƐĞĐƟŽŶ�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�;^/-ϬϴͿ 

Ψϰ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ 

hh-WϮ� �ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�
ZŝĚĚĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ŽŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐŝĚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ�
ŽŶ�ǁĞƐƚ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽŶůǇ 

,ŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�
ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƉĂƌĂůůĞů�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĞǆŝƐƚ 

Ψϱ͕ϵϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hh-Wϰ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ�'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�dŽŽǌĞ�
ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�ĐƌŽƐƐ-ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�ϯ�
ůĂŶĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�
ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ 

'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�Ă�ŬĞǇ�ƵƌďĂŶ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ��ŽīĞĞ��ƌĞĞŬ�/ŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂů�
�ƌĞĂ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ƐĞŐŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ��ůƵƩĞƌ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽīĞĞ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂů�ůĂŶĚƐ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ� 

ΨϮ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƉŽƚ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ� 

^/-WϮ 'ƌĂŚĂŵƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
hŶĚĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�
ZĂŝůƌŽĂĚ��ƌŝĚŐĞ 

ZĞĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƌĂŝůƌŽĂĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ-ĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�
tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�DŝŶŽƌ��ƌƚĞƌŝĂů�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ͖�,ŝŐŚĞƌ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ůŝƐƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�;ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞͿ 

>ŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�tĂƐŚŝŶŐƚŽŶ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ũƵƌŝƐĚŝĐƟŽŶ͕�
ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ-ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƌĞŝŐŚƚ�ƚƌĂǀĞů͖�
ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ŝƚ�ĐŽŵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƌĞŝŐŚƚ�
ƚƌĂĸĐ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ� 

Ψϰ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;�ŝŬĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂůŬǁĂǇƐͿ� 

�t-Wϭ �ĂŚĂůŝŶ�ZŽĂĚ��ŝŬĞ�
>ĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�<ŝŶƐŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů 

,ŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĂŝůƌŽĂĚ�ĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�ďĂƌƌŝĞƌ ΨϳϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

�t-WϮ �ŽŵŵĞƌĐĞ��ŝƌĐůĞ�>ŽŽƉ�
^ŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�/ŶĮůů 

&ŝůů�ŝŶ�ŐĂƉƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐĞ���ŝƌĐůĞ�
>ŽŽƉ 

/ŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂů�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶŽ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ 

ΨϭϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;>ŽĐĂů�dƌĂŝůƐͿ��� 

>d-WϮ �ƌĞĂ�ϰϮ�dƌĂŝů ^ŚĂƌĞĚ�hƐĞ�WĂƚŚ�ĨƌŽŵ�<ŝŶƐŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ dŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ�ĂƐ��ŽīĞĞ�>ĂŬĞ��ƌĞĞŬ�DĂƐƚĞƌ�
WůĂŶ��ƌĞĂ�ZĞĚĞǀĞůŽƉƐ 

ΨϮϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

>d-Wϯ �W��WŽǁĞƌ�>ŝŶĞ�dƌĂŝů ^ŚĂƌĞĚ�hƐĞ�WĂƚŚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŝů�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂů�ĂƌĞĂ 

/ĐĞ��ŐĞ�dŽŶƋƵŝŶ�dƌĂŝů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŬĞǇ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�
ƚŽ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�;ŵŽƌĞ�ĐƌŝƟĐĂů�ǁŚĞŶ��ŽīĞĞ�>ĂŬĞ��ƌĞĞŬ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉƐͿ 

ΨϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

dĂďůĞ�ϱ-ϵ͘��ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�WůĂŶŶĞĚ�WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�;EŽƌƚŚǁĞƐƚ�YƵĂĚƌĂŶƚͿ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 108 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-�� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���$ඌඌඑගඑඖඉඔ�3ඔඉඖඖඍඌ�3කඒඍඋගඛ��1කගඐඟඍඛග�4ඝඉඌකඉඖග� 

^ĞĞ�dĂďůĞ�ϱ-ϭϬ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 109 of 129



�-�����:LOVRQYLOOH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP�3ODQ����� 

 &+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV 

dĂďůĞ�ϱ-ϭϬ͘��ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�WůĂŶŶĞĚ�WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�;EŽƌƚŚĞĂƐƚ�YƵĂĚƌĂŶƚͿ 

3URMHFW� 'HVFULSWLRQ :K\�1RW�+LJKHU�3ULRULW\" &RVW 

ZŽĂĚǁĂǇ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�� 

Z�-Wϯ tŝĞĚĞŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�;tĞƐƚͿ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�Ϯͬϯ-ůĂŶĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ�
�ǀĞŶƵĞ�ƚŽ��ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ 

>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ͖�
ŵŽŶĞǇ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƐƉĞŶƚ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚŝŶŐ�
�ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ��ůůŝŐƐĞŶ�ZŽĂĚ 

Ψϰ͕ϯϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ� 

Z�-Wϰ tŝĞĚĞŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�
�ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�;�ĂƐƚͿ 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ�Ϯͬϯ-ůĂŶĞ�ƌŽĂĚǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂŶǇŽŶ�
�ƌĞĞŬ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ZŽĂĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͖�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�
ŽǀĞƌ��ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ��ƌĞĞŬ 

KŶůǇ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�
ŽŶ�ůĂŶĚ�ĞĂƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�ZŽĂĚ͖�
ĐŽƐƚůǇ�;ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�ŽǀĞƌ�ǁĞƚůĂŶĚƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�
ŚĂƐ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ͖�
ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƐƉĞŶƚ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚŝŶŐ�
�ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ��ůůŝŐƐĞŶ�ZŽĂĚ 

Ψϴ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ� 

Z�-Wϱ �ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�
KǀĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ 

�ǆƚĞŶĚ��ĂǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽŽŶĞƐ�&ĞƌƌǇ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�
�ůůŝŐƐĞŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĨŽƵƌ-ůĂŶĞ�ŽǀĞƌĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�/-
ϱ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�ũŽŝŶƚ�tĂƐŚŝŶŐƚŽŶ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ͕��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�tŝůƐŽŶǀŝůůĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�dƵĂůĂƟŶ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĞŬ�
ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘�ZdW�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ηϭϭϰϵϬ͘� 

dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƟŵĞůŝŶĞ�ŝƐ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�
d^W͘ 

ΨϰϬ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ
—�

Ψϱϯ͕ϰϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

hƌďĂŶ�hƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ 

hh-Wϯ 
�ͬ� 

�ůůŝŐƐĞŶ�ZŽĂĚ�hƌďĂŶ�
hƉŐƌĂĚĞ 

hƉŐƌĂĚĞ��ůůŝŐƐĞŶ�ZŽĂĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ��ĞŶƚĞƌ�
ƚŽ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ZŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�ĐƌŽƐƐ-
ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ďŝŬĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ͕�
ƐŝĚĞǁĂůŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

DƵĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ��ůĂĐŬĂŵĂƐ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ͖�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ƐůŽƉĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�
WĂƌŬǁĂǇ��ĞŶƚĞƌ��ƌŝǀĞ�ƚŽ��ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�
ZŽĂĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ƌĞƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�
ǁĂůůƐ�;ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ĐŽƐƚƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ŽĂŬ�ƚƌĞĞƐ�
ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ 

Ψϲ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ� 
;WĂƌƟĂů�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�

ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐͿ 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;>ŽĐĂů�dƌĂŝůƐͿ��� 

>d-Wϰ �ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�dƌĂŝů ^ŚĂƌĞĚ�hƐĞ�WĂƚŚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬ�ƚŽ�
�ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�dƌĂŝů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƚŚ 

>Žǁ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŽĞĐŬŵĂŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�dƌĂŝů�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ 

ΨϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ� 

^ƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�WĞĚĞƐƚƌŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŝĐǇĐůĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�dƌĂŝůƐͿ��� 

Zd-WϮ ^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�^ƉƵƌ�dƌĂŝů ^ŚĂƌĞĚ-hƐĞ�WĂƚŚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂŶǇŽŶ��ƌĞĞŬ�WĂƌŬ�ƚŽ�
^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ZŽĂĚ 

,ŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ůĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞƐ�ŝŶ��ůĂĐŬĂŵĂƐ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ 

Ψϭ͕ϲϰϬ͕ϬϬϬ� 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B
Page 110 of 129



 

&+$37(5����7KH�3URMHFWV����-�� 

)එඏඝකඍ��-���$ඌඌඑගඑඖඉඔ�3ඔඉඖඖඍඌ�3කඒඍඋගඛ��1කගඐඍඉඛග�4ඝඉඌකඉඖග� 

^ĞĞ�dĂďůĞ�ϱ-ϵ 

Ordinance No. 834 Exhibit B

Page 111 of 129



Ordinance No. 834  
EXHIBIT C 

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 4.1.2018 
 
 

Basalt Creek Comprehensive Plan and Transportation System Plan Amendments 
 

 
 
Exhibit C - Planning Commission Resolution and Record 
 

https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/planning/page/basalt-creek 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112 of 129

https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/planning/page/basalt-creek
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/planning/page/basalt-creek


Ordinance No. 834 Staff Report 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 
 
 

Basalt Creek Concept Plan and Supporting Documentation 
 

https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/ci
ty_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_
documentation.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113 of 129

https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf
https://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/meeting/27721/06._att_2_concept_plan_and_supporting_documentation.pdf


Resolution No. 2730 Staff Report       Page 1 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2730\a. Resolution No. 2730 SR.docm 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2019 
 
 
 

Subject: Resolution No. 2730 
Providing the City’s Parks and Recreation Department 
the authority to take over full maintenance and 
management of Landover, Willow Creek and Hathaway 
Parks and to take ownership of the land not previously 
dedicated. 
 
Staff Member: Michael McCarty, Parks and 
Recreation Director 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission 
Recommendation  

☒ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☒ Resolution Comments: N/A 

 ☐ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council adopt Resolution No. 2730. 
Recommended Language for Motion: I move to approve Resolution No. 2730. 
Project / Issue Relates To: 
☐Council Goals/Priorities ☐Adopted Master Plan(s) ☒Not Applicable 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL: 
To accept staff recommendation to assume ownership of the following three park areas, in “As Is” 
condition and to terminate HOA maintenance responsibility for Landover, Hathaway and Willow 
Creek Parks. Upon approval by City Council, the City of Wilsonville Parks and Recreation 
Department will assume all responsibility for maintenance and future upgrades to these three 
parks.  

Page 114 of 129



Resolution No. 2730 Staff Report       Page 2 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2730\a. Resolution No. 2730 SR.docm 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
Staff is recommending the acceptance of ownership, maintenance responsibility and future 
upgrades for Willow Creek Park, Landover Park and Hathaway Park by the City of Wilsonville.  
The parks are currently listed in the City park inventory and City management is assumed by the 
HOAs of each of the listed neighborhood parks. Staff believes the citizens in this area would 
benefit greatly from the City’s park maintenance expertise, which includes Certified Playground 
Safety Inspectors, an understanding of ADA compliance, and a high level of general park care.  
Staff believes City ownership and maintenance of these three parks is in the best interest of the 
community. 
 
The cost associated with the routine maintenance of the three parks, including staff time for 
mowing, weeding, edging, and park inspections, is approximately $25,000 annually, with an 
additional utility cost of approximately $7,000, and can be accomplished with current staff levels. 
Staff has requested additional funding for this and other acreage coming on board next fiscal year. 
 
The cost to replace play structures/playground amenities is approximately $25,000 per park, and 
is likely necessary every 10-15 years. 
 
Willow Creek Park* –  

• Approximately 1 acre. Includes: playground, basketball court, walking trails, and picnic 
tables. 

• In 1999, Wilsonville Meadows Home Owners Association, by dedication deed, dedicated 
certain land for use as a public park but agreed to be solely responsible for maintenance of 
this park.  

• Wilsonville Meadows Homeowners Association provided the City with a signed document 
relinquishing all rights and responsibilities for park, if the City Council agrees to take the 
park.  

 
Landover Park* –  

• Approximately 1 acre. Includes: playground, basketball court, walking trails, and picnic 
tables. 

• In 1999, Landover Park was established. The Landover Home Owners Association agreed 
to dedicate certain land for use of a public park, however, no evidence of dedication could 
be found. The HOA also agreed to be solely responsible for the maintenance of this park.  

• Landover HOA has signed a Quit Claim Deed that deeds any remaining interest it has in 
the land to the City. The City, in turn, will agree to assume all park maintenance 
responsibility and will release the HOA from such responsibility.  

 
*NOTE: Willow Creek Park and Landover Park properties sit adjacent to one another and are 
likely considered one park by users; however, they are currently maintained by different HOA’s. 
These parks are referenced as one park, “Willow Creek/Landover Park” in City publications. 
 
Hathaway Park –  

• Approximately 1 acre. Includes 2 playgrounds, a basketball court, and picnic tables. 
• Hathaway, Oakmont and Townhomes are parties to a maintenance agreement for park and 

Grant of Easement, dated June 4, 1998. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, Hathaway, 
Oakmont and Townhomes have been responsible for maintenance of the park and the 
improvements.   

Page 115 of 129



Resolution No. 2730 Staff Report       Page 3 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2730\a. Resolution No. 2730 SR.docm 

• CSL Properties, successor in interest to Hathaway Park, has agreed to convey title to the 
parkland to the City (the “Deed”) in consideration of the City assuming all responsibility 
for maintenance and improvements of the park and formally releasing the Owner/HOA 
from all responsibility for the park maintenance and upkeep.  

 
EXPECTED RESULTS:  
The City (Parks and Recreation Department) assumes responsibility for maintenance, 
improvements, and ownership of Willow Creek, Landover and Hathaway Parks beginning May 1, 
2019. 
 
TIMELINE:  
May 1, 2019: Assume responsibility for maintenance, improvements, and ownership of Willow 
Creek, Landover and Hathaway Parks. 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS:  
$5,000 for routine maintenance and utilities for May and June 2019. Additionally, $25,000 to 
purchase and install playground equipment for Landover Park. Funding is available in the current 
fiscal year budget to cover these costs.  
 
If annual playground replacement funds are available, replace the two play structures at Hathaway 
Park. All three play structures are unsafe and in need of replacement. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENT: 
Reviewed by: CAR  Date: 3/20/2019 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: BAJ  Date: 3/21/2019 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS: 
N/A 
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY:  
Staff believes this is a benefit to the community and that the residents in this area will have a safer 
and much more enjoyable park experience.  City management of the property will ensure equitable 
access citywide to well-maintained parks and playgrounds.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2730 
A. Maps of Hathaway, Willow Creek and Landover Parks 

2. Parks Map 
 

Page 116 of 129



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2730  Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2730 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT TO ASSUME OWNERSHIP 
OF AND ALL MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FOLLOWING 
NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS: HATHAWAY COURT, LANDOVER AND WILLOW 
CREEK PARK. 
 
 WHEREAS, when the above described local neighborhood parks were created 

several years ago, as a part of the development approval, the City was to be deeded the 

land for public parks purposes but the Home Owners Association for each of the parks 

was to be solely responsible for all upkeep and maintenance of their respective parks 

(collectively the “Parks”); and 

 WHEREAS, for continuity and quality reasons, the City has offered to assume 

maintenance responsibility for the Parks from the following three HOA who wish to 

transfer maintenance of the Parks to the City: Wilsonville Meadows Owners Association, 

Inc. (Willow Creek Park); Landover Homeowners Association, Inc.(Landover Park), and 

Hathaway Court L.L.C. and CSL Properties, Inc. (CSL Properties Inc. is the current 

landowner of the park area) (Hathaway Park); and  

 WHEREAS, although the land was to have been dedicated many years ago when 

the Parks were built, in one of the three cases no documentation or recordation of any 

dedication could be located and in another it is clear the land was not dedicated; and 

 WHEREAS, all Parks will be dedicated by deed to the City in consideration of the 

City agreeing to maintain the Parks and relieve the HOA’s from responsibility therefore; 

and 

 WHEREAS, at the recommendation of the Parks staff, City Council has 

determined it is in the best interest of the community to take over these Parks to ensure 

safety and upkeep consistent with other parks the City already maintains. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE RESOLVES AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. The City of Wilsonville will own, operate and maintain the neighborhood 
Parks, depicted on Exhibit A and known as Landover, Hathaway and 
Willow Creek. 

Page 117 of 129



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2730  Page 2 of 2 
 

2. The City of Wilsonville will take over responsibility for upkeep and 
maintenance of the Parks upon recording of transfer of title to the City. 

3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept deeds for the transfer of 
the land and to enter into agreements with the HOA’s, if requested, to 
reflect termination of their ownership and maintenance responsibilities. 

4. City Parks staff will assume maintenance responsibility for the Parks upon 
passage of this Resolution.  

5. This Resolution becomes effective upon adoption. 
   
 ADOPTED by the Wilsonville City Council at a regular meeting thereof this 1st 
day of April 2019, and filed with the Wilsonville City Recorder this date. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Tim Knapp, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 
 
SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
Mayor Knapp  
Council President Akervall  
Councilor Stevens  
Councilor Lehan 
Councilor West 
 
Exhibit: 

A. Maps of Hathaway, Willow Creek and Landover Parks 
 

Page 118 of 129



NHathaway Park

ALegend

o *'ron'n' r illll, n,,, 
o 

filil'i;i,'"l,..,,,o
0 ,u,rr. Park component

-JL
\-d lndoor Facility

lu f,
\

Ia

!

\ t
I

a
t
\

b
ffia*t-,un( 

ll-o,eer1 t I

II I mAq,afuk I

I rc1.l7rl -,o)Iren'tlui?

!

ra I
lr t

a a

I

I
ry

\ ffiffi,,ffi8Bffiffiffdffiffi

Open Space or Landscape Area

other Park or Rec Location

School

Trail Corridor or Connector

,0:, x
\

T/

t
.c2J2s .lLooF.Wz{k

0 7
\ Er{
r t

--.

//
I !

,-clt? - B?isikalttqll, Fza,lI,:r,
I

I

iIJ T
L-. /

EXHIBIT A

Page 119 of 129



lnitial lnventory Date: April2017

j zt.e i"jfl$".s3::i:""0 24 :'JX.?"#S'Jy

Hathaway Park
Approximate Park Acreage: 1

Owner: City of Wilsonville HOA maintained

Drinking Fountains

Seating

Dog Pick-Up Station

Security Lighting

Bike Parking

Restrooms

Shade

TrailConnection

Park Access

Parking

Seasonal Plantings

Ornamental Planting

Picnic Tables

2

1

2

0

0

2

2

2

2

0

0

2

0

Design and Ambiance

2

Small park in more densely populated neighborhood. Very little is ADA accessible in this park

MAPID Component

LO46 PARCEL

C223 Loop Walk

C172 Basketball, Practice

C171 Open Turf

C170 Playground, Local

Quantity Lights Neighborhood Community
Score Score Comments

Neither playground is ADA
accessible

2

2

2

2

,|

2

2

2

2

I

1

,|

,|

1

2

GRASP@ Atlas

GeneralComments

Gomponents with Score

EXHIBIT A

Page 120 of 129



Willow Creek and Landover Park
Legend

| *lnpon.n, '- Trail Et Park or Facility

A - WaterTrail Future Parkor Facility
y' Future Park Component

_J1_
\-d lndoor Facility

N

A
Open Space or Landscape Area

other Park or Rec Location

School

Trail Corridor or Connector

\\
I
o

,t
a

J ('
a V

I

/

0
ffii ^ Pilaq.grc'undo !

Itr

rczt';il - a

0

a ,

( I
err s:f, t=.erel,r,r*sef Il, l?'?Elai'{ceo Jl

I

-

a

@*ffi /
'a ,

,t eilslt - l(Elir?axA\?ea \I^/
0

a

\ a

a
a d

a

,

aa
F

s

I
l}7i

/

a'
-

-,

t I
a

-a

a

a

EXHIBIT A

Page 121 of 129



I

lnitial lnventory Date: April2017

26.4 l'Jfl$"#3::i:"* 33.6 :"JXS,"J$Ty

Willow Creek and Landover Park
Approximate Park Acreage: 2

owner: Not City of Wilsonville

Drinking Fountains

Seating

Dog Pick-Up Station

Security Lighting

Bike Parking

Restrooms

Shade

TrailConnection

Park Access

Parking

Seasonal Plantings

Ornamental Planting

Picnic Tables

2

2

2

0

0

2

2

0

2

0

0

2

0

Design and Ambiance

2

Street or neighborhood parking

MAPID Component

LO48 PARCEL

C222 Shelter, Small

C221 Open Turf

C153 Natural Area

C152 Basketball, Practice

C'151 Playground, Local

Quantity Lights

2

Neighborhood Community
Score Score Comments

This is more like two practice
courts than one full-court

Limited play skuctures and not
ADA accessible

2

2

2

2

2

GRASP@ Atlas

GeneralComments

Components with Score

2

2

2

2

2

1

EXHIBIT A

Page 122 of 129



Creek

d-t

li
I

I
I

I

I

I
I

Canyon

i,
L

t

Frog

Park
L

a
a

)-
\t\

s

;

t

I

..i

,I
i

l

+

w.

WILSONVILLE
PARKS & RECNEATION

lI Golf course
Open Space or Lendscape Area
Other Park or Receation Location
School

' Futu16 School
Wilsonville City Limits

dl r,lt"tro urban crowth Boundary

Legend

Populstion DGnslty + lndoor R.crca$on Facility
Rango 0 - 1/$.6 "-, Trail

Fewer Peoplo per Acre 

- 
Railroad

@ st*m
I River
I t{ore PeopleperAcre I OutdoorRecreationLocation

Future Outdoor Recreation

#'
N

s

\ -t,r
i:i,l:
l'l

I
I

,

I

I
I
,,

I

I

I

Pond
I
t-
i

Park

I Boeckman
Trail

Wllow

. :l': , :,

Boeckman

--'l
I
I

Crosslng Trall

Parks a4A
Recreation

Courtslde r

narrff

Olfice -... town' Center

Park

Park
Commuhily

_r'

LtL-:.
Plaza

I
7

Memorial
Park

)

l
tr t-

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 123 of 129



Resolution No. 2742 Staff Report       Page 1 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2742\a. Resolution No. 2742 SR ZM KR.docm 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2019 Subject: Resolution No. 2742 

Authorizing a Change Order with Paul Brothers, Inc. 
for the Memorial Park Dog Park and Community 
Garden Parking Lot Project (CIP #9132). 
 
Staff Member: Kerry Rappold, Natural Resources 
Manager 
 
Department: Community Development 
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission 
Recommendation  

☒ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☒ Resolution Comments: N/A 

 ☐ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council adopt Resolution No. 2742. 
Recommended Language for Motion: I move to approve Resolution No. 2742. 
Project / Issue Relates To: 
☒Council Goals/Priorities: 
Multi-Modal Transportation 
Network 

☒Adopted Master Plan(s): 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Master 
Plan 

☐Not Applicable 
 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL:  
A Resolution approving change orders for the construction contract with Paul Brothers, Inc. in the 
total amount of $131,437.67 for the Memorial Park Dog Park and Community Garden Parking Lot 
project. 

Page 124 of 129



Resolution No. 2742 Staff Report       Page 2 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2742\a. Resolution No. 2742 SR ZM KR.docm 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The parking lot project improvements include parking lot pavement, stormwater management 
facilities, utilities, lighting, landscaping, restroom pad, access roadway, bridge guardrails, and 
offsite transportation improvements.  
 
The Memorial Park Master Plan, adopted December 2015, included the project as part of relocating 
the Dog Park and expanding the Community Garden. This project had funding approved in the 
City’s adopted FY 2018-19 budget as the Memorial Park Master Plan Implementation (CIP # 
9132).  
 
The City received three (3) bids for the project and Paul Brothers, Inc. submitted the lowest, 
responsive bid at $636,538.70. 
 
Due to issues related to soft spots that needed over-excavation and additional gravel, an increase 
in the size of a water pipe, adding pavement and curb, installing a rock wall, rerouting the electrical 
connection, adding an electrical panel, and including bridge approaches, change orders were 
necessary to complete the project. These change orders exceed the 15% limit set by Wilsonville 
Code and require City Council approval. If approved, the total contract amount becomes 
$767,976.37 (this total does not include in-house costs for project administration and overhead). 
The total contract amount includes credits received for eliminating or reducing some of the bid 
items.  
 
EXPECTED RESULTS:   
Construct a new parking lot to serve the relocated Dog Park and existing Community Garden. 
 
TIMELINE:   
Construction began in September 2018 and will be completed by May 2019.  
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS:   
Project # 9132 is funded through Parks SDC fees. The adopted FY 2018-19 Wilsonville budget 
included $709,375.00 for design, construction, contract administration, and overhead for the 
project. Supplemental budgets approved for the project increased the total budget to $882,456, 
including $779,456 for construction.  
 

Budget Summary (Construction Costs) 
Adopted FY 18-19 

Budget 
Supplemental 

Budgets 
Total Adopted  

Budget* 
Construction 

Contract 
Total Change 

Orders 
Total Contract 

Amount 

$625,000 $154,456 $779,456 $636,538.70 $131,437.67 $767,976.37 

*Contingency is included in the total adopted budget.  
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: CAR  Date: 3/20/2019 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: BAJ  Date: 3/21/2019 

Page 125 of 129



Resolution No. 2742 Staff Report       Page 3 of 3 
N:\City Recorder\Council Packets\2019 Council Packets\4.1.19 Council Packet\Res. No. 2742\a. Resolution No. 2742 SR ZM KR.docm 

 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:   
In developing the Memorial Park Master Plan, the community involvement process included an 
electronic citywide survey, stakeholder meetings, three open houses, and website communications. 
The public input informed the location of facilities in the park, which included relocating the Dog 
Park near the Community Garden.  
 
The consultant team and staff developed a fact sheet about the project. Targeted mailings were 
sent to the surrounding neighborhood on Kolbe Lane, Schroeder Way, Rose Lane and Montgomery 
Way. These neighbors were invited to attend the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and City 
Council meetings, or provide any comments to City staff in lieu of attending the meetings.  
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY:   
As described in the Memorial Park Master Plan, the project will provide parking for the relocated 
Dog Park and the existing Community Garden. Without the parking lot improvements, it would 
not be possible to relocate the Dog Park.   
 
Every effort has been made to minimize disruption to the surrounding neighborhood and park users 
caused by the parking lot construction. Construction phasing and sequencing have maintained 
access to the Community Garden and minimized impacts to residents in the area. Signage and 
other information has kept the public informed about the project.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Three concept plans were developed for the parking lot project. The preferred concept was selected 
by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.  
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT:   
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
A. Project Location Map 
B. Resolution No. 2742 

Page 126 of 129



Project Location 

 

 

 

Page 127 of 129

neamtzu
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



ATTACHMENT B 

RESOLUTION NO. 2742  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2742 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE AUTHORIZING A 
CHANGE ORDER WITH PAUL BROTHERS, INC. FOR THE MEMORIAL 
PARK DOG PARK AND COMMUNITY GARDEN PARKING LOT PROJECT 
(CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT #9132). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has planned, designed, and budgeted for the completion of 

Capital Improvement Project #9132, known as Memorial Park Dog Park and Community 

Garden Parking Lot project (the Project); and 

 WHEREAS, the City solicited sealed bids from qualified contractors for the 

Project that duly followed the State of Oregon Public Contracting Rules and the City of 

Wilsonville Municipal Code; and 

 WHEREAS, three bids were received and opened on August 23, 2018, and Paul 

Brothers, Inc. submitted a bid of $636,538.70 for the Project, which was subsequently 

evaluated as the lowest responsive and responsible bid. 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville acting as the Local Contract Review Board 

authorized the City Manager to enter into a Construction Contract with Paul Brothers, 

Inc. for a stated value of $636,538.70; and 

 WHEREAS, change orders for the Project totaling $131,437.67 exceed 15% of 

the original value of the authorized contract; and 

 WHEREAS, the Wilsonville Municipal Code requires that change orders 

exceeding 15% of the authorized contract amount be approved by the Local Contract 

Review Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE RESOLVES AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. The procurement process for the Project duly followed Oregon Public 
Contracting Rules, and Paul Brothers, Inc. submitted the lowest responsive 
and responsible bid. 

2. The City of Wilsonville acting as the Local Contract Review Board 
authorized the City Manager to enter into a Construction Contract with 
Paul Brothers, Inc. for a stated value of $636,538.70. 

Page 128 of 129



ATTACHMENT B 

RESOLUTION NO. 2742  Page 2 of 2 

3. Change orders for the Project, totaling ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-
ONE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED AND THIRTY-SEVEN 
DOLLARS AND SIXTY-SEVEN CENTS ($131,437.67) and exceeding 
15% of the original contract authorization, are hereby approved and 
authorized by the City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review 
Board.  

3. This Resolution becomes effective upon adoption. 
   
 ADOPTED by the Wilsonville City Council at a regular meeting thereof this 1st 
day of April 2019, and filed with the Wilsonville City Recorder this date. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Tim Knapp, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Kimberly Veliz, City Recorder 
 
SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
Mayor Knapp  
Council President Akervall  
Councilor Stevens  
Councilor Lehan 
Councilor West 

Page 129 of 129


	1. 4.1.19 Cover
	2. 4.1.19 Amended Agenda
	city council mission statement

	3 .Canyon Creek Land Donation
	Canyon Creek Land Donation Staff Report
	Canyon Creek Land Donation - Exhibit A
	Canyon Creek Land Donation - Exhibit B
	Canyon Creek Land Donation - Exhibit C

	6. 2019 Volunteer Appreciation Proclamation
	7. Tree City & Arbor Day
	Tree City & Arbor Day Staff Report
	2019 Arbor Day Proclamation

	8. Rolling Schedule
	10. Resolution No. 2743
	Resolution No. 2743 Staff Report
	Resolution No. 2743
	Resolution No. 2743 - Exhibit A
	PLM_1.2 CoW TVWD CoH Garden Acres IGA Exhibit 5 - Net Spend Report.pdf
	Fill Out

	PLM_1.2 CoW TVWD CoH Garden Acres IGA 20190318-FINAL.pdf
	Article I -   PROJECT GOALS
	1.1 The Parties are coordinating the design and construction of the Road Work and Waterline Work to maximize the benefits to their constituents and the community at large. Road Work and Waterline Work shall hereinafter be referred to jointly as the “P...
	1.2 The Project is intended to achieve the following goals:
	WILSONVILLE: To design and construct Road Work to upgrade the existing roadway to an urban street cross-section in support of future development within the Coffee Creek Industrial Areas, part of WILSONVILLE’s ongoing capital program.
	WWSP: To design and have portions of the water transmission pipeline constructed to further the objectives of WWSP in increasing water supply, reliability, redundancy, and resiliency to its member service areas. The Waterline Work under this Agreement...

	1.3 The Parties understand that the Road Work and the Waterline Work must be completed according to the key milestones identified in Exhibit 2 and agree to work collaboratively to meet the established milestones. Further, Parties understand that if ei...

	Article II -   PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	2.1 WILSONVILLE Road Work consists of design and construction of the road improvements on Garden Acres Road, including the design, construction, and responsibility for permits, utilities, and appurtenances, as depicted in Exhibit 1.
	2.2 The WWSP Waterline Work consists of design and construction of a large diameter water transmission line and appurtenances according to design, plans, and technical specifications within the Road Work limits and beyond the Road Work limits, crossin...
	2.3 The Project consists of one Contract Document inclusive of two schedules of work: Schedule A Garden Acres Road and Schedule B WWSP PLM_1.2 Waterline Work covering work within the Project Area, as depicted on Exhibit 1.

	Article III -   WILSONVILLE OBLIGATIONS FOR DESIGN
	3.1 WILSONVILLE hereby designates Zach Weigel, P.E. as WILSONVILLE Project Manager for the Road Work and the WILSONVILLE representative responsible for coordination of the Waterline Work with WWSP pursuant to this Agreement. Patty Nelson, P.E. is WILS...
	3.2 WILSONVILLE will perform or cause to be performed all tasks needed to design and construct the Road Work and temporary access to Cahalin Road, including all permitting, real estate acquisition, public outreach, and developing construction document...
	3.3 WILSONVILLE will make all Road Work design and construction plans and information available to WWSP, as needed to coordinate the Waterline Work with the Road Work. Such information will include: Project milestones; permitting; specifications; opin...
	3.4 WILSONVILLE will prepare design plans and technical specifications for the Road Work. WILSONVILLE will provide the design topographical survey and Road Work base maps to WWSP. WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP the opportunity to review and comment on ...
	3.5 WILSONVILLE will prepare the Project bid package inclusive of the ‘front-end’ documents, including Bidding Information, Bid Forms, Contract Forms, Standard General Conditions, Special Provisions, Technical Specifications, design plans and others a...
	3.6 WILSONVILLE will prepare the draft Contract Documents and provide them to WWSP for review and comment. WILSONVILLE will incorporate or address/respond to review comments in a manner acceptable to both Parties’ Project Managers.
	3.7 WILSONVILLE will administer the Project bidding and solicit bids in compliance with all public contracting laws. Prequalification requirements for the Project will be included in the bid documents and will be a requirement of award of the bid. Min...
	3.8 WILSONVILLE will administer all addenda to the Contract Documents and related bidding activities, subject to the Administrative Charge, as identified in Exhibit 3, Design Costs (Exhibit 3), to the WWSP including the costs to incorporate any addend...
	3.9 WILSONVILLE will be responsible for right-of-way and easement acquisition; regulatory and land use permits and approvals, permit compliance, mitigation measures, and permit enforcement; and public information for the Road Work. WWSP will be respon...

	Article IV -   WWSP OBLIGATIONS FOR DESIGN
	4.1 WWSP hereby designates Eric Ward, P.E. as WWSP Project Manager for the Waterline Work and the WWSP representative responsible for coordination of the Waterline Work with WILSONVILLE pursuant to this Agreement. Mike Britch, P.E. will be the WWSP Pr...
	4.2 WWSP will perform or cause to be performed all tasks needed to design and construct the Waterline Work, including preparation of plans/drawings, standard details, technical specifications, engineer’s estimate, and other documents required for comp...
	4.3 WWSP will coordinate and will cause its consultants to coordinate with WILSONVILLE and its consultants, including attendance at all design team meetings, permit team meetings, real estate meetings, public information/outreach meetings, and other s...
	4.4 WWSP will share and coordinate updates on the Waterline Work schedule with the WILSONVILLE Project Manager.
	4.5 WWSP will provide necessary design coordination to advance the design and construction of the Project to achieve the key milestones described in Exhibit 2. This coordination includes timely review of Road Work design plans, additional geotechnical...
	4.6 WWSP will make its Waterline Work information available to WILSONVILLE and its consultants for the Project.
	4.7 WWSP will provide the design and design coordination for all Waterline Work, including impacts to the existing roadway, utilities, and adjacent properties for the portion of the pipeline outside of the Road Work area, as shown in Exhibit 1.
	4.8 WWSP will provide to WILSONVILLE a prequalified pipeline construction contractor list, developed in accordance with Oregon public contracting laws, for inclusion in Project. WWSP will provide WILSONVILLE upon request, supporting documentation demo...
	4.9 Ten business days prior to the bid advertisement date set by WILSONVILLE, WWSP will provide to WILSONVILLE a complete design for the Waterline Work previously approved by WILSONVILLE, including design drawings, plans, bid items, quantities, and te...
	4.10 For Waterline Work outside the right of way acquired by WILSONVILLE for the Road Work portion of the Project, as shown in Exhibit 1, WWSP is responsible for any other additional land and permits it may need for its Waterline Work, including but n...

	Article V -   JOINT OBLIGATIONS FOR DESIGN
	5.1 To minimize Project delays or cost increases, the Parties agree to work together diligently to identify and jointly resolve any design or constructability issues with the Road Work and Waterline Work at the earliest possible stage of the design pr...
	5.2 The Parties will hold a public information strategy meeting in accordance with Exhibit 2 to jointly develop and agree on the approach to be used for public information communications, publications, presentations, events, or signage.
	5.3 The Parties will coordinate and identify those technical specifications that apply to both the Road Work and the Waterline Work. Project Managers will agree on how to coordinate the specifications. The author of the technical specifications will b...
	5.4 The Parties agree that performance of the work by a prequalified contractor is imperative. As such, the Parties agree that the basis of award for of the bid will require confirmation that the contractor performing the work is prequalified for the ...
	5.5 The Parties agree to jointly develop and maintain a Project schedule and Project Managers shall work collaboratively to achieve Project milestones. These schedule milestones are included in Exhibit 2.
	5.6 The location of the pipeline and pipeline appurtenances related to the Waterline Work shall be mutually agreed to by both Parties during the design of the Project. If mutual agreement cannot be reached, WILSONVILLE shall have final determination o...
	5.7 The Parties will jointly perform a constructability review of the Contract Documents at 90-percent design completion of the Project and incorporate comments into final Contract Documents.
	5.8 The Parties will coordinate and attend regular design coordination meetings, regular permit team meetings, public information and outreach team meetings, and other meetings as required for successful coordination and completion of the Project. The...
	5.9 The Parties will work collaboratively in developing Project schedules, milestones, reviews, health and safety plans, Project performance metrics, and other activities as required for the successful coordination and completion of the Project. WILSO...

	Article VI -   COMPENSATION FOR DESIGN
	6.1 The Parties agree WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for Administrative Costs, as defined in Exhibit 3, attached, for work related to the design, coordination, and incorporation of the Waterline Work.
	6.2 The Parties agree WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for costs associated with coordination of the Road Work and incorporation of the Waterline Work in the Project design documents and creation of the Contract Documents. Costs for this effort shall i...
	6.3 The Parties will each be solely responsible for the fully burdened labor costs of their individual staff on their respective portions of work: WILSONVILLE for Road Work and WWSP for the Waterline Work.
	6.4 The Parties agree WILSONVILLE will be responsible for overall administration of the Project but will receive financial contribution from WWSP for its share of actual costs related to the Waterline Work as provided in Exhibit 3. WWSP will also reim...

	Article VII -   WILSONVILLE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE
	7.1 WILSONVILLE hereby designates Zach Weigel, P.E. as WILSONVILLE Project Manager and Construction Manager for the Road Work and WILSONVILLE representative responsible for coordination of the Waterline Work with WWSP pursuant to this Agreement. Patty...
	7.2 WILSONVILLE will be responsible for the overall management and administration of the construction contract for the Project.
	7.3 WILSONVILLE is responsible for engineering, inspection, construction management, and administration for the Road Work.
	7.4 WILSONVILLE will include the WWSP in regular construction coordination meetings, public information and outreach meetings, and other meetings as required for successful coordination and completion of the Project.
	7.5 WILSONVILLE is solely responsible for managing the Project schedule, including established milestones. WILSONVILLE will provide construction contractors’ baseline schedule and monthly schedule updates for WWSP review and comments. WILSONVILLE will...
	7.6 WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP a minimum of ten (10) calendar days to evaluate the bid results for the Waterline Work and shared costs prior to issuing notice of intent to award for the Project.
	7.7 WILSONVILLE will receive, catalog, and route to WWSP requests for information (RFIs), requests for substitutions, submittals, and any other documents pertaining to the Waterline Work for review and comment using e-Builder as administered by the WW...
	7.8 WILSONVILLE will cause the construction contractor to name and endorse WILSONVILLE and WWSP (or TVWD and CITY if no legal entity between them has been formed) their elected or appointed officials, staff, employees, consultants, and agents as addit...
	7.9 WILSONVILLE will have overall responsibility for Project administration and inspection of Road Work and at all times be responsible to monitor and manage the construction contractor's work as provided in the construction contract documents. With r...
	7.10 WILSONVILLE agrees and will provide in the construction contract that the Waterline Construction Manager or designated onsite inspectors may also stop the construction contractor's work if they observe, in their sole judgment, a situation involvi...
	7.11 WILSONVILLE will review the monthly estimate of Waterline Work performed by the construction contractor prepared by the Waterline Construction Manager and onsite inspectors based on their inspection of the work performed to date, the method of pa...
	7.12 WILSONVILLE will provide a final cost accounting for the Waterline Work and WWSP’s proportion of shared cost items, including all internal and external costs, to WWSP within forty-five (45) days of Final Completion of the Project and payment to t...
	7.13 WILSONVILLE will require the construction contractor to complete and submit Exhibit 5, Quarterly Net Spend Report. This report shall include, at a minimum, the following information:
	Total amount spent by construction contractor and each subcontractor, vendor, and supplier for the quarter;
	Subcontractor/subconsultant name, address, and type of service(s) provided; and
	Other business attributes that may be required by WWSP.

	WILSONVILLE will require the construction contractor to submit the Quarterly Net Spend Report to WILSONVILLE by the fifteenth (15th) day of the last month for each calendar quarter for the entire duration of its contract. WILSONVILLE will forward the ...
	7.14 WILSONVILLE will submit to WWSP all contract construction Change Order, Work Change Directive, or other proposed revisions to the Project for review to determine if the change impacts the Waterline Work. WILSONVILLE will endeavor to provide notic...
	7.15 WILSONVILLE will coordinate with WWSP on any disagreements, disputes, delays, or claims with the construction contractor related to or as a result of the Waterline Work as provided by Section 11.6.
	7.16 WILSONVILLE will perform actions regarding compensation as set forth in Article X, Compensation for Construction.
	7.17 WILSONVILLE will provide a potable water source for use by the WWSP during construction for testing of the Waterline Work as well as use of storm drain or sanitary sewer infrastructure, as directed by the WILSONVILLE Project Manager, for disposal...
	Upon completion of the Waterline Work and acceptance of the Project, WWSP, as Lessee as defined in the Ground Lease, shall operate, inspect, maintain, replace, and access the Waterline as provided in the Ground Lease for the duration of the Ground Lease.

	7.18 WILSONVILLE and the construction contractor shall participate in WWSP monthly health and safety meetings.
	7.19 WILSONVILLE will not authorize or consent to construction contractor’s changes to Waterline Work key milestones, as shown in Exhibit 2, without written approval by WWSP, except in the case of a force majeure as defined in the Contract Documents.
	7.20 Claims
	WILSONVILLE will promptly notify WWSP of any construction contractor claim or request for Change Order. If a claim or request for Change Order would increase the proportionate share of shared costs, or if it affects the WWSP-only cost for Waterline Wo...
	In the case of a claim or Change Order related to the proportionate share of shared costs, WILSONVILLE, as the contract holder, may need advice from WILSONVILLE legal counsel. WILSONVILLE will notify WWSP that it is seeking advice of legal counsel. WW...

	7.21 Bonds and Warranties
	WILSONVILLE agrees to assign all rights under performance and payment bonds, warranties, and claims arising out of the construction contract related to the Waterline Work to WWSP so that WWSP has a direct cause of action against the construction contr...
	7.22 Litigation with Contractor
	In the event of a dispute with any contractor or consultant that results in litigation, WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for all costs and attorney fees associated with all claims based on the Waterline Work, including but not limited to any claims for...


	Article VIII -   WWSP OBLIGATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION
	8.1 WWSP will designate a WWSP Construction Manager, ________________. The WWSP Construction Manager shall be the designated point of contact with the WILSONVILLE Project Manager. The WILSONVILLE Project Manager shall have authority to accept and act ...
	8.2 WILSONVILLE and WWSP will establish an account and Irrevocable Limited Power of Attorney Agreement with the Local Government Investment Pool (“Account”) which will authorize WILSONVILLE’s Director of Finance to make monthly withdrawals from an acc...
	8.3 WWSP will monitor permit compliance and coordinate with WILSONVILLE for compliance with the requirements of the Ground Lease and this Agreement related to the Waterline Work.
	8.4 WWSP will provide review of shop drawings, submittals, RFIs, and other requested clarifications related to the Waterline Work. WWSP shall provide a response to WILSONVILLE within the timeframe required by the Contract Documents.
	8.5 WWSP will reimburse WILSONVILLE for construction contractor mobilization based on bid amounts of the value of the Waterline Work and shared items. Mobilization for the Project shall not exceed eight percent (8%). WWSP will provide materials testin...
	8.6 WWSP will provide WILSONVILLE with the following Waterline Work construction documentation:
	Daily progress reports;
	Quantity documentation used for monthly payment estimates;
	Quality documentation and test results as specified in the construction contract; and
	Any other documentation reasonably requested by WILSONVILLE to administer the contract.

	8.7 WWSP will promptly review invoices from WILSONVILLE. WWSP will provide notice of any disputed amount within seven (7) business days from the day WILSONVILLE provides the invoice to WWSP. Parties will then meet to resolve the disputed amounts. Undi...
	8.8 WWSP will determine, in its reasonable discretion, when Waterline Work has achieved Substantial Completion and Final Completion. The Waterline Construction Manager shall provide a construction punch list to WILSONVILLE upon Substantial Completion ...
	8.9 WWSP must review and approve any Change Orders and/or Work Change Directives relating to the Waterline Work prior to issuance to the construction contractor. Within five (5) business days of receiving the proposed Change Order or Work Change Direc...
	8.10 WWSP will coordinate and meet with WILSONVILLE to resolve any disagreements, disputes, delays, or claims related to, or as a result of, the Waterline Work or WWSP’s share of shared costs of the Waterline Work as provided by Section 11.6.
	8.11 WWSP will perform actions regarding compensation as set forth in Article X, Compensation for Construction.
	8.12 WWSP, its consultants, and its construction contractors shall coordinate with WILSONVILLE and its consultants, including jointly attending regular construction coordination meetings, regular permitting and environmental meetings, real estate meet...
	8.13 The Ground Lease requires that unless otherwise agreed to, in writing, by WILSONVILLE, all WWSP pipe must be located below all WILSONVILLE utility pipes, including in Garden Acres Road. WILSONVILLE has agreed to allow the WWSP pipe to be above WI...

	Article IX -   JOINT OBLIGATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION
	9.1 The Parties’ Project Managers shall mutually determine the anticipated frequency and timing of meetings depending on the needs of the Project.
	9.2 The Parties will coordinate and work collaboratively in developing Project milestones, constraints, work sequences, construction administration requirements, quality control and assurance requirements, and other activities as required for successf...
	9.3 The Parties will coordinate and work collaboratively in coordination of the construction work, including work sequences, construction administration requirements, quality control and assurance requirements, and other activities as required for suc...
	9.4 To minimize potential Project schedule delays, construction contractor cost increases, or other Project issues, the Parties agree to work together diligently to identify and jointly resolve any construction issues with the Road Work and Waterline ...
	9.5 The Parties agree to include health and safety requirements in the Contract Documents that meet the objectives of both Parties for their portions of the Project.
	9.6 The Parties agree that the construction contractor shall be required to develop and maintain a Project baseline schedule on which the WILSONVILLE Project Manager and WWSP Construction Manager shall collaboratively review and comment. The construct...
	9.7 The Parties agree to co-manage complaints, including, but not limited to, general public complaints and complaints related to environmental and/or land use permitting.
	9.8 The Parties agree to the following guidelines for handling public/media interactions:
	Social media includes all means of communicating or posting information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to one’s own or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or diary, personal website, social networking or affinity website, web bu...
	Posting of social media content related to Waterline Work by WWSP or WILSONVILLE staff, consultants, or construction contractors is prohibited unless approved, in writing, by WWSP.
	Posting of social media content related to Road Work by WWSP or WILSONVILLE staff, consultants, or construction contractors is prohibited unless approved, in writing, by WILSONVILLE.

	9.9 The Parties agree to coordinate on outreach efforts such as signage, groundbreaking, and ribbon cutting.

	Article X -   COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
	10.1 Exhibit 4 summarizes the construction cost sharing for the Project. Parties will proportion actual cost for construction as shown in Exhibit 4 and as described below:
	Construction management - WWSP responsible for actual cost of Road Work consultant for coordination between Waterline Work during construction. Costs will be tracked separately by WILSONVILLE’s Road Work consultant. WWSP will be allowed to review and ...
	Construction administration - WWSP responsible for WILSONVILLE actual costs plus Administrative Charge as shown in Exhibit 4.
	Mobilization (Schedule A) - WWSP is responsible for the proportionate share between cost of the Waterline Work (Schedule B) and the total cost for construction plus WWSP portion of the Road Work (Schedule A) identified below. Mobilization for the Proj...
	Cahalin Temporary Road Bid Item (Schedule A) – WWSP is responsible for the costs of construction, demolition, and restoration of a temporary access road during construction of the Waterline Work, limited to and as detailed in the following sheets of t...

	Road Work (Schedule A) – WWSP responsible for the fixed percentage Road Work share as shown in Exhibit 4. The amount of the Road Work share shall be determined based on the Road Work bid amount and applying the fixed percentage Road Work share. The re...
	Waterline Work (Schedule B) - WWSP responsible for 100 percent.

	10.2 Subject to WWSP’s requirements to pay WILSONVILLE Administrative Costs, the Parties will otherwise each bear the fully burdened labor costs of their individual staffs on the Road Work and the Waterline Work. The Parties agree WWSP will pay to WIL...
	10.3 WILSONVILLE will submit invoices monthly as described below:
	Account withdrawals shall follow issuance of invoices.
	Prior to issuance of each invoice, the Parties will agree on construction contractor pay request amounts, design consultant Road Work fees, and other compensable costs.
	Each invoice shall be accompanied with documentation supporting all requested costs for compensation or reimbursement.
	Prior to withdrawal from the Account the above activities shall be completed. WILSONVILLE's invoice shall show the actual cost and percentage allocation between WWSP and WILSONVILLE for the shared costs.

	10.4 WILSONVILLE will submit a final billing statement within forty-five (45) days of the completion of the work authorized herein.
	10.5 WWSP will pay WILSONVILLE the amount due within thirty (30) days of its receipt of billing statement for costs not withdrawn from the Account.
	10.6 Work Change Directives and Change Orders shall use the following protocol:
	Work Change Directives will be defined in the construction agreement between WILSONVILLE and the construction contractor. WILSONVILLE can direct work that is considered minor that does not impact, delay, or affect Waterline Work. Work Change Directive...
	All modifications to the construction contract that will change shared costs or impact the schedule will not be effective until approved by a written Change Order, signed by the Parties. The Party causing the change in shared costs shall be responsibl...
	Change Orders to the Project that do not affect the Waterline Work or Waterline Work Schedule will be managed and approved by WILSONVILLE. If WWSP or WILSONVILLE dispute a shared cost Change Order, WILSONVILLE may still elect to proceed with the Chang...
	As provided in Section 8.10, Change Orders that affect the cost, schedule, quality of performance, workmanship, or material of the Waterline Work must be approved in writing by both Parties. Except as provided in Section 10.6.6, WWSP will respond with...
	WWSP may initiate Change Orders for the Waterline Work by providing WILSONVILLE a requested Change Order with supporting documents to negotiate the cost and time impact with the construction contractor, which shall be paid by WWSP. WILSONVILLE will pa...
	Any Change Order that increases the combined value of all prior Change Orders to a cost to WWSP of $875,000 or more shall require approval by the CITY Utilities Commission. No Change Order shall be binding upon WWSP while approval is pending, subject ...

	10.7 Within forty-five (45) days after the Final Completion of the Project, WILSONVILLE will provide WWSP a final statement of Waterline Work to be withdrawn from the Account. If insufficient funds remain, WWSP will pay the difference within thirty (3...

	Article XI -   GENERAL PROVISIONS
	11.1 Laws of Oregon
	Parties agree to abide by all applicable laws and regulations regarding the handling and expenditure of public funds. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oregon. The construction contract shall contain all required public cont...
	11.2 Default
	Either Party will be deemed to be in default if it fails to comply with any term, condition, or covenant in this Agreement. Parties agree time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. The non-defaulting Party will provide the defaulting...
	11.3 Indemnification
	This Agreement is for the benefit of Parties only and there are no third-party beneficiaries. Subject to the limitations related to government agencies under the Oregon Constitution, each Party agrees to indemnify and hold the other harmless, includin...
	11.4 Documents are Public Records
	All records, reports, data, documents, systems, and concepts, whether in the form of writings, figures, graphs, or models, that are prepared or developed in connection with this Project shall be subject to the applicable provisions of the Oregon publi...
	11.5 Modification of Agreement
	No waiver, consent, modification, or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either Party unless in writing, signed by both Parties. Such waiver, consent, modification, or change, if made, shall be effective only in specific instances and for the...
	11.6 Dispute Resolution
	Parties will attempt to informally resolve any dispute concerning any Party’s performance, acts, omissions or decisions under this Agreement, or regarding the terms, conditions, or meaning of this Agreement. Dispute resolution will conform to the requ...
	11.7 Remedies
	Subject to the provisions of Article X - Compensation for Construction, and the dispute resolution process set forth in Section 11.6, any Party may institute legal action to cure, correct, or remedy any default, to enforce any covenant or agreement, o...
	11.8 Severability
	If any term(s) or provision(s) of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be determined by a court to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of those terms...
	11.9 Nondiscrimination
	No person shall be denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefits of any services or activities made possible by or resulting from this Agreement on the grounds of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, d...
	11.10 Excused Performance
	In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, no default shall be deemed to have occurred where delays or default is due to war, insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, drought, earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of God, governme...
	11.11 Integration
	Except for the Ground Lease, which remains the controlling document, this Agreement supersedes any prior discussions or agreements regarding the Project.
	11.12 Assignment/Additional Parties
	This Agreement may be assigned in accordance with the assignment provision of the Ground Lease (Section 20.2).
	11.13 Access to Books, Records, and Accounting
	WILSONVILLE will maintain books, records, and reports of the Road Work and Waterline Work showing all income, receipts, expenses, and costs. These records shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years following Final Completion. All such books, ...

	Article XII -   TERM OF AGREEMENT
	12.1 The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution through the end of the Project warranty period, two (2) years following Final Acceptance of the Project, unless mutually agreed to by both Parties in writing.
	12.2 This Agreement may be amended or extended for periods of up to one (1) year at a time by mutual written consent of Parties, subject to provisions of this Agreement. In the event of default of this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party may terminate...
	12.3 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and year hereinafter written.




	11. 11.19.18 Council Minutes
	12. Ordinance No. 834
	Ordinance No. 834 Staff Report
	Ordinance No. 834
	Ordinance No. 834 -  Exhibit A
	Ordinance No. 834 -  Exhibit B
	Ordinance No. 834 -  Exhibit C
	Ordinance No. 834 - Attachment 2

	13. Resolution No. 2730
	Resolution No. 2730 Staff Report
	Resolution No. 2730
	Resolution No. 2730 -Exhibit A
	Resolution No. 2730 - Attachment 2

	14. Resolution No. 2742
	Resolution No. 2742 Staff Report
	Resolution No. 2742 Staff Report -Attachment A
	Resolution No. 2742




